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“We all need to compete for the survival of the fittest”. In the nature, fierce animals always put
their eyes on docile antelopes. Under the relationship of prey and predator, antelopes and lions
have to undergo catch-and-chase in the natural world endlessly, and only the smartest and fastest
could survive from predators. Therefore, as the rule of survival, antelopes have to remain cautionary
at all times and get well prepared for competition, learning the way of “Flexibility e Adaptability”
and moving forward continuously.

Operating over 30 years in the industry, the Group deeply understands the rule of elimination of
weak players and survival by making appropriate responses, and never allows complacency and stays
put. The Group understands the importance of exquisite craftsmanship and pursuit of excellence,
which is the rule of survival of antelopes, and makes flexible moves as antelopes under competition
in response to the ever-changing environment, acting swiftly as an arrow with neither any hesitation
nor being lagged behind from peers. As such, with the basic response method of “Flexibility
Adaptability”, the Group hereby encourages all of its parties to uphold the essence of the above
and dominate over different challenges and difficulties.
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Key Information for Shareholders

BRREEEH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2011

Announcement of 2010/11 results
28 June 2011

Last day to register for 2010/11
Annual General Meeting
26 August 2011

Annual General Meeting
2 September 2011

Last day to register for 2010/11
Final Dividends
7 September 2011

2010/11 Final Dividend
Payment Date
22 September 2011

e

—E-FF - FERELGEH
—E——FAA-HNE

—2-BF - FERREAFAL
BAEBREAN
“F-—FN\A=+KA

RERBFRE
—ET——FNA=H
BB/ ——FEXRHRE
BR&EZTHEH
—E——FNALH

—E-ZBF / —-—FEERHERE
TkRE B
—E——FNA=-+=H

Financial Year End MEELELR
31 March 2011 —E——F=A=1+—H
SHARE CAPITAL IR 2
As at
B
31 March 2011 30 June 2011
= —
=A=+—H8 SNA=1AH
Authorised (HK$) EE (OB7T) 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2217 (BT) 86,809,760 86,809,760
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Key Information for Shareholders

BRREEEH

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2011, the Company had 868,097,600
shares in issue of which approximately 29%" was held
by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 875 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register
of Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement
System as of 30 June 2011:

BRESBRKRRD 20

BHE-_ZT——FXA=1+H AQRIHEHETT
% 17868,097,600% + H R A RF R = L 15
29%0V . HER B - AR a) %A MR ERS?S
HoBERREMEPRAGEEIREZGEN -
——FRNA=ZTHRENSHERESRS K
PIRE TATIRE S HREREESLE

Number of % of % of
registered number of Number of total issued
Category shareholders  shareholders shares  share capital
B G HE BT
Bhl RREE R R EE % BEREE & 47 B A5l %
New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.11% 243,804,000 28.08%
Castfast Properties REFMENRR
Development Co., Ltd. BRAF 1 0.11% 165,000,000 19.01%
Ho's family® MRRE? 3 0.34% 206,502,000 23.79%
Directors® FE6 2 0.23% 1,402,000 0.16%
Individuals BAREE 698 79.77% 23,046,733 2.66%
Institutions, corporates MBI EE
and nominees TERER
RIEA 170 19.44% 228,342,867 26.30%
Total =) 875 100.00% 868,097,600 100.00%
Notes: i

(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public,
excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited,
Castfast Properties Development Co., Ltd., Ho's family and
Directors of the Company.

(2) Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

(3) Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

(1) »EF K E R K (BrNew Sense Enterprises
Limited * FIEFEMEHRRABR A A - A KRIE
RARBZEEMEROHEBEIN) ABRALTHFE
IR BE -

2 ARFEHZFERTEAEAISELL - JFTT
BERFBERAUEPHEERFABERL AR ©

() EERX (BfIEEELERFAEALEN) AL
RlZEE-

FANBERZERERAR ZF—8/—— FH



Key Information for Shareholders

BRREEEH

As at 30 June 2011 Shareholders Share of HK$0.1 each

R-ZE——FX<A=1+H BER BREE.1EB TR M

Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total

RO EE AE  h#EEESH #$E (EEEIL

1-2,000 544 62.2% 87,447 0.0%

2,001 - 10,000 55 6.3% 363,739 0.0%

10,001 - 20,000 40 4.6% 636,347 0.1%

20,001 - 50,000 64 7.3% 2,246,393 0.3%

50,001 — 100,000 57 6.5% 4,328,836 0.5%

100,001 - 200,000 37 4.3% 5,160,979 0.6%

200,001 - 500,000 23 2.6% 7,434,130 0.9%

500,001 - 1,000,000 16 1.8% 11,369,563 1.3%

1,000,001 - 2,000,000 16 1.8% 23,473,112 2.7%

2,000,001 - 5,000,000 8 0.9% 23,816,565 2.7%

Over 5,000,000 15 1.7% 789,180,489 90.9%
875 100.0% 868,097,600 100.0%

MARKET CAPITALISATION m{E

As at 31 March 2011 BE-_Z——%=HA=1+—H

(Closing Price: HK$0.59) (WTifE : 0.5978T)

HK$512,177,584 512,177,584 ¢

As at 30 June 2011 BE-_Z——%xXA=1+H

(Closing Price: HK$0.40) (Y™ {E : 0.4078 7T)

HK$347,239,040 347,239,040 T

Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in 2010/11

B2/ ——FEZREEZREXRE
Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
M () MfE (#7T)

Ikl T T
:' HLHHL N ) MLJWMNFMHWM { “JTij '_f M “T w M'

045 1 045

Apr'10 July Oct Jan"11 Apr

Trade Volume Trade Volume
(Shares in million) (Shares in million)
RUATE (EHER) RACR (HER)

4 4
3 913
2 42
| I |

Ll |||J,|J| 1 \|\ L ‘ | ||||| |I| Lol henl | ||\ | ”\ll\l “d ||\ Iy ||| | || Ll |I |\|I“II Ll |||
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Key Information for Shareholders

BRREEEH

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board
1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Branch
Share Registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Winnie Tsang

Senior Corporate Communications Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited

10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building

611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2437-6875

Fax:  (852) 2415-1608

Email: pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk

B A7 4w 5%
FEBMERHMBRAR
IR

1050

FFBRE
2,000

AR 3R AR %5

REREABERETRN 2E2H - SRFEKRNHE
& Fhdagit  BRBRES  SUAEM
BRI PR IBPER DR

EBPRLEEETLERAA
aE

ERRNBR183%
BRFL17181712-16F

B EL ¢ (852) 2862-8628
{EH : (852) 2529-6087

REERE
WA EER - BB

2w g/ e

SR CEEMEE

FEAERZERABR AR

BB

REE

SILAEK611-6195%

REIXKE10E

Bih 0 (852) 2437-6875

fEH : (852) 2415-1608

B H : pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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Corporate Calendar

LEXERR

Nov118

Dec12A

Jan1B

Mar38

Apr4A

May5 A

2010

Awarded the Certificate Merit of Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award (Manufacturing)
by Hong Kong Productivity Council

BEBLENRERRE [BEEGHEREARE - BRE| (BLESR)

Celebration for 30th anniversary

BRI =+ EF

2011

The Group acquired 100% the entire equity interests of Castfast Properties Development Co., Limited’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, the Yixing Karrie Commercial Building Development Company Limited (“Yixing
Karrie”) at a consideration of approximately HK$123.68 million. Yixing Karrie had beneficially owned the
parcel of land with a site area of approximately 20,012 sg.m. located in Yixing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The parcel of land is expected to develop a 21-floor commercial building

SEAK123.68AEATWERESMENRER AR Z2ENB AR ERENEEAEREGR AT
(T=ME%)) 2EBE - ZEAEBEREAUR BT #Ha BEET LR EmE420,012F 75K - &tk
KHE-ENBRCBERE

Launched production of Medical Products with a Japanese customer

RBAARRFPEEREREM

Awarded the Caring Company 2005/11 logo for 6 consecutive years by The Hong Kong Council of Social

Service

ERMERGHSREBECT [RHRRBE] 200511 1255

Awarded the “2010 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence - Certificate of Merit in

Manufacturing” by Environmental Campaign Committee

BREREEPZESRE (2010 BERFREBAE ] 2 [RAIS B3| LEXBRE

Acquired 1ISO13485 Medical Devices Quality Management System accreditation

FEENISO13485 8 se S £ E IR R

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11



Financial Highlights

MG@RE

Share Price Movement from 2002 to 2011
—EE-FE-E-—FIREESHE

Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
MfE (BT) MefE (BT)
4.0 -14.0

130

L J T MALFHHJ hﬂ,{hﬂ }1 ;

" |
1
fh 1
1.0 J ']_l 1.0
_ | L Hnphy Pl bty
ST ) I B
0 . . . . . . . . . 0
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Revenue HK$ million Profit attributable to equity holders HK$ million
WA BEAT RERELEF AEBT
Basic earnings per share HK cents Dividends per share HK cents
BREAEF B BRERE B

oz [ 28 08 [ 075
oo [ 58 oo [ 15
0 [0 22 0 [0 1
1 [ s 1
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Financial Highlights

MEEE

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location

REGFELHS NEEERS X

Turnover percentage by Products
REREBINEXTES R

@ Metal and Plastic Business ® Japan Hong Kong ® China
T e BBEK N o a3

@ Electronics Manufacturing Services Business @ Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and China)
EFEERIER M (TEEER - HERFH)

@ North America @ Western Europe
=M FaEx

13%
19%

10

2011 2010
2011 2010 % Changes
E——F —ET-TF AL
HK$ million B & T
Revenue WA 2,605 2,245 +16%
Gross profit EF 192 152 +26%
Operating profit L T 32 8 +300%
Profit for the year IS5 A 22 9 +144%
Profit attributable to equity holders BEIEF AEMMEN 21 12 +75%
Total assets BEBE 1,764 1,737 +2%
Shareholders’ equity IR 901 741 +22%
In Million =T
Number of shares D& R 868 577 +50%
Per Share Data grRER
HK Cents JEN
Basic earnings HAHF 3.4 2.2 +55%
Diluted earnings BEZRT 3.4 2.2 +55%
Total cash dividends H#IRBAR B 1.1 1 +10%
HK$ JEIT
Net asset value per share BIREEFEE 1.0 13 -23%
Financial Ratios B gL &
Gross profit margin (%) EREFR] (%) 7.4 6.8 +9%
Net profit margin (%) BERAEF (%) 0.8 0.4 +100%
Net current ratio FOR B = 1.4 1.3 +8%
Net quick ratio FIRB) L 0.8 0.8 -
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRITEEL R (%) 8 -4 +300%
Interest coverage R ERELL =X 12 1 +9%
Dividend payout (%) KB R (%) 32 45 -29%
Revenue to net bank borrowings WA B FHRITIE R X 36 N/A N/A
Non-current assets to JEMENE E R
total equity (%) BELE (%) 76 78 -3%

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11



Financial Highlights

MEEE

Definitions EE
/Basic earnings Profit attributable to equity holders SR E AT A AR

per share Weighted average number of shares * g NFE 5 A% 81

Diluted earnings Profit attributable to equity holders SRR LR F S EA AEL ST

per share Diluted weighted average number of shares SRR BE s AR s

Net asset value Net assets T BEFE

per share Number of shares as at year end SRAEFE FEAREL

Gross profit Gross profit o N il o EF o

margin (%) Revenue LU0 BIRER (%) U A x 100%

Net profit Profit for the year o X IRAE FE 5 T

gt Kl (9 0

margin (%) Revenue x 100% SEIRAER (%) g A x 100%

Current assets (less the lower of short- FEVEE CREHER
term bank borrowings or cash and bank RITEETHRER
. balances and time deposit) . [ KE A% ])
=
Net current ratio Current liabilities (less the lower of short- B LL % mEaE CREE
term bank borrowings or cash and bank RITEENTHRER
balances and time deposit) (K& A% )
Current assets (less inventories and the =EEE CRIEER
lower of short-term bank borrowings or 5 ERSR TR B ek F HATE 2k
cash and bank balances TR E [EK & A% )

Net quick ratio and time deposit) ARELLE =EAE CREHE
Current liabilities (less the lower of short- SITEERTHEX
term bank borrowings or cash and bank (&K E A% )

balances and time deposit)

Bank borrowings RITEE

. (less cash and bank balances N GRS RIRTTEE
NT g(i;ar)lng and time deposit) EE%E(T;{)E' = EEHFD)
e Total equity A i 5 100
Earnings before interest expenses, tax, HBFBeTE - BE -
depreciation and amortisation N WrE R EEDET
Nl é SEK P

Interest coverage Interest expenses MR IB L= FETH

Dividend Dividend per share o T IR E o

payout (%) Earnings per share x 100% TS L2 (%) BIOR T A

Revenue I@N
: B =
Ee\r/]ing er:gvciit . Bank borrowings ”Zgg;_\ e = WITEE
ank bo 9 (less cash and bank balances ST = AR S CRIBS RIRTTETE
and time deposit) N EHER)

Non-current Non-current assets IEnE & E EreaE

assets to total Total equity WEZS HEE L R (%) WEZS 4R EE

equity (%)

\

/
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHRE

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to
present the annual report of Karrie International Holdings
Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS
The Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic (“M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products including
computer casings, office automation products,
video tape cassettes, visual accessories, automobile
products, moulds, plastic and metal parts; and

- Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS") Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape drives,
laser printers, multi-function facsimile machines,
“point-of-sale” system, medical products and other
computer peripherals.

(1) Business Review

Though the global economy is recovering
continuously and steadily, the pace of recovery is
inconsistent, with that for developed economies
relatively is slower than that for developing
regions. Demand for consumer electronics is rapidly
increasing, while the demand for commercial OA
facilities is comparatively steady. As such, recording
only steady results for the year, the Group did not
achieve substantial growth amidst recovery.

During the year, turnover for the year ended 31
March 2011 increased by 16% or HK$350,337,000
to HK$2,591,101,000 (for the year ended
31 March 2010: HK$2,240,764,000) and the
profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company increased by 70% or HK$8,726,000
to HK$21,223,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2010: HK$12,497,000).

- The turnover of the M&P Business for
the year ended 31 March 2011 was
HK$915,010,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2010: HK$836,881,000), which is
9% higher than that for the corresponding
period last year. The turnover of the M&P
Business represents 35% of the total
turnover. The increase in the turnover
was due to the additional shipment of
server casings, new visual accessories and
automobile products.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHRE

- Owing to the increase in the shipment of
new models of our laser printers for one
of the major clients, the turnover of the
EMS Business for the year ended 31 March
2011 rose by 19% to HK$1,676,091,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2010:
HK$1,403,883,000), however the growth
rate in the second half has already slowed
down.

As mentioned in last year’s annual report, the
operating environment within the PRC is still full
of difficulties. Amidst such a challenging business
environment, the Group had raised the average
minimum wages per head in the PRC by over 15%.
Although the wages of the Mainland workers
are above the minimum wages requirement, the
Group had to increase wages and staff benefits so
as to retain workers. As a result, the labour cost
increased further during the year. In addition, the
appreciation of Renminbi and inflation in the PRC
continue to constitute an unfavourable business
environment, and the significant growth of both
result in the surge in costs. Nevertheless, given the
intense competition in the industry, the Group could
not transfer all additional costs to the customers,
resulting that the rapidly soaring production costs
cannot be reflected in most of the order prices. To
achieve steady results, the Group has adopted a
number of measures to cut costs and to increase
revenue.

—  EAXREEEGHITE#MER —fIE
ERFHHARNEEE M B
FTEERIEBRBE_ZT—F
A=t —HLECZEEBREFR
B FFA T19%%1,676,091,000/8
T(#HE-_Z-ZTF=ZA=+—H
1F £ 1,403,883,000/870) * AT ¥
F 2 I8RE AR o

BUMEFHNFRAM - PEHLELER
R NDARE  ERRENEERE
T AEBBRRN2BAFEFHIHEEIER
FRATHBBIS%  BWARANETIITEY
EREIZEERz2 L BABREET -
KREFBIN BT LLATIERETIRN - A
IWARFAN ETRARE—F EF M
o ARBAERBERBREEZEERT
FlEEIRE - ME 2 BEABERKAR
EFA - RTEBRFBR - MAEEEE
EHIEBEIKAERTEE  F%5]8
BERBELIEERMEZE EAMEER
Ke AEBEHRDNZEBRGH ANE
M A{EEEBIATFEBERE -
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHRE

The Group intends to develop its unique competitive

edges,

performs the mission of “DIRECT” (details

are set out on page 24 in 2009/10 annual report)
and adds more values in the course of production.
Higher efficiency is achieved in every aspect of
the value chain to minimize cost, paving the way
to lean manufacturing and diversified benefits.
To enhance the operation of the value chain, the
Group has adopted corresponding measures as
follows:

Value adding

Karrie provides one-stop specialized design
and production services, and thus raise the
competitive efficiency of the Group. With
more frequent contact between customers
and the relevant departments of the Group,
our design staff would swiftly participate and
understand the needs of customers directly,
thereby avoiding delay in communication
and responding rapidly to any doubts of
customers so as to provide the most cost-
saving production flow and design.

Research and Development

In the opinion of the Group, integration of
computer peripherals system (such as server)
could be achieved via technology research
and development and the establishment
of joint laboratory with the University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China
in Sichuan, Chengdu. As such, product
design capability, moulds development,
research and development of new products
as well as the management of supply chain
could be conducted in a manner customized
to customers’ needs, thereby assisting
customers to solve any aspects of technical
problems and planning on more product
modification proposals which avoid errors
and enhance the Group’s competitiveness,
creating better added values.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Logistics

Strategic procurement established several
years ago has become increasingly mature,
making procurement more forward looking
and providing logistics information and
professional services to customers in
response to the change in product cycle and
supply chain. Procurement is no longer just
an issue on the pricing level.

Streamlining

By merging segments with unsatisfactory
production efficiency, synergies could be
attained. Via continuous improvement
and lean manufacturing, bottle-neck in
the production line could be resolved,
thereby reducing the amount of labour
while lowering wastage and raising
production efficiency. Also, we co-operate
with the Hong Kong Productivity Council
to commence optimized technology and
production management plans. As a result,
two large production management projects
were implemented: (i) PMC optimized
production plan and introduction of lean
manufacturing, and (ii) training on the
improvement in hardware mould techniques.
To upgrade the hardware mould techniques,
various solutions have been introduced, such
as the analysis and improvement on the
defects and problems of hardware punching
press, the design and processing constraints
of hardware components, the improvement
on the design of hardware punching press
moulds as well as the processing techniques
and manufacturing methods of moulds.
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ERHE

Automation

Automation is crucial to the improvement
of production procedures and quality of
products with the application of automatic
mechanical facilities to replace manual
operation in certain trivial and repeating
production procedures. Given the surge in
wages in the PRC and the decline in the price
of machineries, the application of automatic
equipment could probably reduce the amount
of labour and expenditures, while fully
enhances the added value in the value chain.

HE1E

TETFMEMEEZNE  BF
FEEECHE - BB AW
BEARBAFRE-LEEHRE
ENEETF - ERBEARTERE
B AR R R EARAD T
ERABERE  EAREATR
A - BRt 2 ERTEEE L
ffonEE -

i+

By introducing mechanical laser welding, productivity as well as precision of craftsmanship are raised in an attempt

to pursuit excellence

SHEMMABCEIR RS - RIATEEN 28 - R B TERBEERA  BRBERE

Talents

Human resources, especially technical talents,
are invaluable assets. Efficient operation of
automatic equipment does not only rely on
machineries, but also on the organization
and collaboration of manpower. To reach
the maximum efficiency of automation,
technical staff shall work in line with automatic
equipment as one to realize the effectiveness of
automation. As such, the provision of adequate
and suitable training is of utmost importance
in order to raise the skills of workers to operate
automatic equipment efficiently.
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Chairman’s Statement

Joint Veenture

The operation of the Group’s 60%-owned
joint venture has been improving after
integration and reorganisation in the recent
years. Despite this, the profit attributed by
the joint venture to the Group falls short of
the target considerably and the joint venture
has not yet achieved the results that the
Group originally anticipated. In view of this,
the Group is now considering the future
of the joint venture and exploring a new
business model with its joint venture partner.

Yixing Plant

According to the original plan, Yixing Plant
would mainly serve the customers in Central
China region. No significant achievements
have been shown since the plant has only
commenced operation for a year. In addition,
as the ancillary supply chain for Yixing is still
immature, the development of Yixing Plant is
yet to be observed.

Diversification

Trial production of medical equipment has
been completed, and it is currently moving
to mass production process. Though medical
equipment is still under exploration stage,
ISO13485 certificate has been obtained. It
is expected that medical equipment would
contribute to the Group’s profit in the
coming year.
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EIRBEERESRE

Construction Plan For Yu Quan Plant
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H ® R 5 H 8

Floor Plan For Yixing Plant
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As industrial manufacturing is still in harsh
times, the Group currently only invests
strategically in the industrial sector. However,
with an aim to reduce the operational risks
of overdue reliance on the industrial sector,
the Group explores and analyses other
business opportunities from time to time,
while tending to adopt a more diversified
development strategy. As a result, on 22
October 2010, the Group and Castfast
Properties Development Co., Ltd. (“Castfast
Properties”) (a private investment by Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, our substantial shareholder)
entered into a sales and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which, the Group
acquired the entire equity interests in Yixing
Karrie Commercial Building Development
Co., Ltd. (“Karrie Commercial”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Castfast Properties, at
a consideration of approximately HK$124
million. Such agreement was passed by
independent shareholders on 6 December
2010, and was completed on 27 January
2011.

Karrie Commercial beneficially owns a plot
of land in Yixing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
with a site area of approximately 20,012
sg. m. The land would be developed into
a 21-storey commercial building with an
estimated gross floor area of approximately
34,733 sq. m. It is anticipated that the
first and second floors of the commercial
building would be planned as a shopping
mall or offices, while other floors would
be used as hotel or apartments. The
total investment cost is expected to be
HK$234 million. The commercial building
is scheduled to complete after two years.
Currently, eight floors have been completed
as scheduled.
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Yixing Commercial Building, a commercial center, is currently built up to the eighth floor

HHEEEAERGEEEE/\E

Design graph for the 21-floor Yixing Commercial Building
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Outlook of the composite office building of Yuquan plant in Fenggang
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The Capex for the industrial sector for the
year ended 31 March 2011 was approximately
HK$65,000,000.

The budget for the Capex for the industrial sector for
the year 2011/12 is approximately HK$55,000,000.
This is mainly due to the modification and upgrading
of machineries in an attempt to enhance efficiency
and productivity, as well as the investment in certain
infrastructures, such as the renovation of composite
office building in Yu Quan, to prepare for centralized
administration and management, thereby enhancing
the Group's competitiveness and attracting staff.

While the total investment cost in the property in
Yixing is to be HK$234 million, of which about
HK$110 million is to be incurred in financial year
2011/12 and the balance of HK$124 million is for
the financial year 2012/13.
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()

(3)

Capex
(excluding Net Gearing
investment Ratio
Turnover property) as at 31 March
EEEERE FRIT
(TEHE BELLR
=E S REWME) W=A=+-—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2007/08 2,799,967,000 199,000,000 8%
2008/09 2,460,578,000 115,000,000 -5%
2009/10 2,240,764,000 82,893,000 -4%
2010/11 2,591,101,000 65,000,000 8%
2011/12 N/ATN3E A 55,000,000* 40%*
* Initial estimation
b
Dividend Policy (Z) REEX

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend
Policy” since the first quarter of the financial year
of 2006/07, which outlines the factors that should
be taken into account in determining the dividend
for distribution, such as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company, cash flow and Capex.
After careful considerations of the aforementioned
factors, the Board hopes to maintain the Company’s
track record of paying dividends to shareholders
for fourteen consecutive years so the Board
recommends to pay a final dividend of HK1.1 cents
per share to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of members of the Company on 9
September 2011.

Geographical Distribution

The Group has always adopted a diversified
approach in transporting its goods and does not
rely on one single market. Details are set out in
segment information in Note 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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(4)

Prospects

Uncertainties arising from conflicts in Korea, turmoil
in Africa, the prolonged unresolved European debt
crisis as well as the recent nuclear crisis caused by
the unprecedented earthquake in Japan hinder the
track to economic recovery. Recently, Hong Kong
enterprises in the PRC face the problem of “three
aspects of shortages and two aspects of high costs”
that is, shortage of labour, financing and power
supply as well as high costs and high tax charges. The
sustained appreciation of Renminbi also adds weight
to the Group. The problem of shortage of labour does
not only concentrate on the period before or after the
Chinese New Year, and does not only appear on the
basic labour level, but also emerges in other kinds of
skilled labours and middle management level. As such,
the business environment will be extremely tough in
the coming year. The Group will cease to pursue a
surge in production volume, but rather place focus on
the capability to provide value added and profitable
business.

1. Foundation Consolidation

In the coming year, the Group will prudently
carry out financial management and stringent
cost control on its principal business, as well as
making strategic investments and diversified
development. When the business environment
is still not significantly improved, the Group
still moves towards to the track of deepening
of lean manufacturing, enhancement in
automatic production, increment in the
proportion of automation, standardization of
production flow and unification of all business
units. With lean manufacturing, the production
management efficiency of the Group could
be raised to another level, thereby attaining
a higher production efficiency with the most
effective costs with a view to provide added
value to customers in all aspects of production.
As such, the Group will also take an active
role in exploring new services to customers,
hence making the Group’s service offerings
more extensive. With satisfaction gained
from customers towards the Group’s one-
stop services, the Group is in a better position
to strive for a more reasonable price with its
customers. In respect of logistics, the Group
tries to provide point-to-point one-stop services
and standardizes the operational business
model for all customers with enhanced internal
connection among all supply chains, so that
excess stocks could be minimised.
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Production automation of metal stamping and plastic injection help to reduce the demand for labour and stablise

production efficiency and quality

heFRIBEEADEAMRIUEH HINER  ABARELEEREXREE

Indicators determination

In addition, the Group will establish Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI”) with its
departments. KPI could enable department
heads to clearly understand the duties of their
respective departments, eliminating weaker
players and enhancing the sense of competition
via the establishment of performance and
motivation mechanism, thereby utilizing human
resources in a more effective manner. Moreover,
KPI, being an indicative strategy, allows all
departments to move towards the objectives of
the Group in accordance with indicators. The
Group also intends to further implement overall
budgeting to strengthen cost control, reduce
energy consumption and lower wastage, and
thus creating better efficiency via the increase in
resources utilization rate.

Automatic Production

The Group will increase the application of
automation, thus achieving the aim at “success
in a job presupposes ready tools”. The Group
will co-operate with a professional automation
company to enhance its works on the
mechanical and automation system, training
technical staff as well as system research
and development. In April 2011, the Group
acquired twenty 6-axis versatile industrial
robots at approximately HK$5 million to match
its development of automation.
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Business Opportunities Exploration

| believe that, leveraging on my personal
success gained previously in the development
of Fenggang community with the business
model combining hotels, tourism, leisure
facilities, real estates and the wedding city
theme that has activated local economy and
gained support and encouragement from
local government, such a business model
could be introduced and applied to the
Group's development project in Yixing. Upon
the completion of properties in Yixing, they
could be leased out in accordance with the
prevailing market conditions to obtain steady
income, or disposed for profits and cash for
other projects for future development. The
Group could directly get involved in and
share the relatively faster economic growth
of the culture sector and Yixing via such
model, and actively explores different kinds
of business opportunities.

Amidst the toughs of the industrial sector,
the Group will not stay put but respond
with flexibility, moving forward with efforts
in pursuit of breakthroughs and business
diversification, which it believes future
business risks could be reduced accordingly.
As Yixing project is still in the construction
stage, it is anticipated that the amount of
CAPEX will continue to increase in next year.
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Conclusion

Under the tough and ever-changing
business environment, the Group strives to
explore new business, customers, services
and products on one hand, while raises
the proportion of automation to increase
operation efficiency, optimizing the operation
of every aspects of business and production
procedures, as well as improving the
Group’s industrial technology to strengthen
its existing business. The Group, with
comprehensive and quality services as well
as added value provided to customers as
its competitive edges, does not only focus
on prices in its competitive strategy. As a
result, the Group will increase its capital
investment in automatization and reinforced
lean manufacturing to provide newly added
values and diversified one-stop technical
support and services to customers. Also,
with close communication with customers
and understandings on customers’ needs,
a mutually beneficial win-win partnership
between both parties are developed in the
pursuit of a more quality business.

The Group’s unaudited turnover for the two
months ended 31 May 2011 was HK$376,236,000
(2010/11: HK$457,324,000), as the unaudited
turnover for these two months may not reflect the
final results for the year ended 31 March 2012,
investors and shareholders should exercise caution
when dealing in the shares of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Generating Ability

In the manufacturing sector:

With the improvement in business, working capital
was being tied up in the trade receivables or used
in the settlement of trade payables. The net cash of
HK$36,525,000 was used in operating activities this year.

In property development:

In view of acquisition of Yixing Karrie Commercial Building
Development Co., Ltd., completion is based on the issue
and allotment of shares by the Company as consideration
(please refer to the circular dated 12 November
2010 issued to the shareholders of the Company)
("Acquisition”). The Acquisition will therefore enhance the
shareholders’ equity and does not affect the Company’s
cash flow.

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio
staying below 1

The Non-current assets to Total Equity Ratio stayed at a
healthy level of 76% (2009/10: 78%). This means that the
Group is using long term shareholders’ fund to finance
non-current assets such as plants and machinery. The sole
purpose of the existing bank borrowings is to finance the
working capital.

Financing for Growth

As at 31 March 2011, the net bank borrowings was
approximately HK$71,930,000. As more fund will be
invested in the Yixing Project, we expect the net gearing
ratio will stay at a level of below 40% for the financial year
2011/12. We are also following our house rule of using
our profit after tax and proceeds from the Rights Issue/
allotment of shares to finance our capital expenditures:
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Financing Capex by Profit
LaFEREEEEREZESRKIR

HK$ million BEET 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11
Profit After Tax ek vl 125 13 20 9 22
Depreciation and P& K

Amortisation 54 60 57 48 50
Proceeds of Rights Issue it /AR &EE

or allotment - 122 - - 124*

179 195 77 57 196

Less: W
CAPEX BEEEEHRE 92 199 115 83 174
Dividend/Dividends To B ke

Be Distributed IR E 47 4 9 6 10
(Deficit)/Surplus (BR),/ Btk 40 (8) (47) (32) 12
(Net Bank Borrowings)/ — (HR{TEE),/

Net Cash SEIR S (141) (52) 36 31 (72)
Net Gearing Ratio/ FIRITEEH R

(Net Cash Ratio) CFREHX) 25% 8% (5%) (4%) 8%
* calculation based on the issue price at HK$0.425 per share * R EAREEITE0.4258 T HE

Resources Available

Total bank borrowings is about HK$364,884,000. The
Directors are confident that the cash in hand and bank
balances of HK$292,954,000 with banking facilities of
HK$1,124,000,000, the Group is able to meet its current
operational and capital expenditure requirements and to
make strategic investments when opportunities arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group's assets, liabilities and transactions
are denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
or RMB. As the exchange rates of the RMB against Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar rose continuously during the
relevant period, the Group was exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation risks and pressure on its production cost. The
Group will actively communicate with its customers in
order to adjust the selling prices of its products to mitigate
the impact of the appreciation of the RMB on its business.

AEAER
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

Tea-break with Individual Investors

We are glad that the “tea-break with individual investors” has
been successfully held for 15th times. Owing to the sluggish
market sentiment, particularly due to the lack of interests
among investors in the shares of small industrial enterprises,
the attendance rate gradually decreased over years. However,
the Group adheres to the principles of “openness, fairness and
equality” and believes that all investors (institutional or individual)
should have the same right to get access to the Company’s
information. With these principles in mind and considering that
the tea-break remains to be an effective and efficient way for
the Company to communicate with its investors, the Group wil
continue to organise tea-break with individual investors but will
only hold the tea-break once annually (provisionally to be held in
August each year). In the event that the investment environment
improves and investors become enthusiastic in participating in
the tea-break again, we will consider gradually increasing the
number of tea-break per year. The next tea-break is scheduled
on 19 August 2011 from 7 p.m. to 9 p.m. at Hover City
Chiuchow Restaurant, 1/F, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon (Lai Chi Kok MTR Station Exit). As
part of the Group’s social responsibility efforts, participants will
be asked to donate at least HK$150 to charity and the Group
will match the donation up to a maximum of HK$10,000. The
Group will request the relevant charity to issue a receipt to the
donor for tax deduction purpose.
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The Group has established for over 30 years not out of luck, but on the continuous and unfailing support from all stakeholders

SEIETESB=1H  BOEBARZE - ARIFNE —BEARAKRRN S
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Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website
at www.karrie.com.hk for more details. Application form
can be downloaded from the website or obtained by
calling 2411-0913 during office hours. Since seats are
limited, the Group will allocate the quota by lot if the total
number of application is more than the seats available. Only
investors whose applications are confirmed can join the
function. Investors are advised to grasp this opportunity to
communicate directly with the management of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At the end of March 2011, the Group had approximately
6,500 employees (approximately 5,650 employees at
the end of March 2010). With a good reputation in the
local community, the Group has rarely encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group will also
grant bonuses to employees with outstanding performance
based on its own audited business performance and the
appraisal and reward system. Other employee benefits
include medical insurance, “Cooperative Home & Car
Ownership Scheme” and mandatory provident fund.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group has adopted a performance based bonus
system and more objective performance assessment.
Employees with outstanding performance will receive
considerable bonus.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1.1 cents (2009/10: HK1 cent) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of the
Company on 9 September 2011. Together with the interim
dividend, total dividend paid for this year amounted to
HK1.1 cents (2009/10: HK1 cent) per share. The final
dividend, subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 2 September 2011, will be
payable to those entitled on 22 September 2011.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee made
up of one non-executive director and three independent
non-executive directors whose duties include reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems. The audit committee and the
management have reviewed the accounting principles and
major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters with the external auditors during the year. The
audit committee has reviewed the consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.

An appreciation is given to Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
for his services during the past years. He had resigned as
from 28 April 2011.

As at the date of this annual report, the Executive Directors
are: Messrs. Ho Cheuk Fai, Lee Shu Ki and Ms. Chan
Ming Mui, Silvia; the Non-executive Director is: Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming; the Independent Non-executive Directors are:
Messrs. So Wai Chun, Chan Sui Sum, Raymond and Fong
Hoi Shing.

By Order of the Board

HO CHEUK FAI
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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APPENDIX 1

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified
and generalized for easy
understanding)
1. Quotation Phase
— Around 12 to 15 months prior
to shipment, Customer A sends
out Request for Quotation (RFQ)
for a project to all “qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase
— Customer A confirms the
placement of the project to us;
— Customer A also provides
shipment forecast for the next
18 to 24 months, which is the
normal life cycle of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype Making

Phase

— According to Customer A’s
specification, we start to
perform the design works, make
the moulds and prototype;

— This process would take around
6 to 12 months;

— Customer A would also work
with our purchasing department
on electronics components and
the list of qualified suppliers for
such components.

4. Shipment Phase
— Customer A finalizes and revises
the final shipment schedule;
— We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT)
inventory warehouses.

5. Sales Recognition and Payment
— Customer A takes goods from
JIT warehouses;
— We get paid after the normal
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the
confirmed project and the related engineering works have
largely been completed, our problem is therefore one of
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report,
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Generalised Flow Chart of the Supply Chain Management System
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1.

We deal with projects, which can take one year
from initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods. A
project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the just-
in-time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI) or a combination of the above
methods.

Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher
than the initial projection.

Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the electronic components
are either sourced through the customers or their
designated suppliers.

While the metal and plastic enclosures business
is an integral part of the computer and computer
peripheral sector, the industry thrives only in Taiwan
but not in Hong Kong.

Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled
in China while the final products shipped to Asia or
Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market is by
shipment destination rather than country of origin of
the customers.
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APPENDIX 2

Corporate Governance

1.

Establishment of an Executive Committee to improve
decision-making efficiency. The day-to-day operations
of the Group are now in the hands of a group of
professional managers;

Efforts to improve transparency

— disclosing in annual report detailed explanation
of corporate strategies and the rationale behind;

— meeting with individual shareholders annually
through a new “tea-break” program;

— disclosing price sensitive information on a
timely basis, including continuing connected
transaction, profit warning and discloseable
transaction.

Clearly defined dividend policy of payment of 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to shareholders;

Establishment of vision through clearly defined
missions, values and objectives;

Encouraging executive directors to hold at least
500,000 shares of the Group;

Willingness to share wealth created with all
shareholders through dividend. Since 2000/01, the
aggregated amount of the Group’s dividends paid/
payable is around HK$592,783,000 or around 69%
of the shareholders’ fund.

Remarks: * Because of the importance of maintaining financial

stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.
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APPENDIX 3

Dividend and Dividend Policy:
RERRKREBUR
An unbroken 14 years’ record of dividend payment
145 LUK B A8 oK 1
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

SEBERSBEDRREMEERZ0%I A EBAERS

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

TIEBRIKE ZREZBIGE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final Subtotal  Special  Special Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
i R BHRE B
A R Pt REIRE HBEIRE et &t kB L&

(Excluding)* (Including)*
(FEEER)* (BEER)*

1997/98 Nil f& 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 13%  N/ATEAB
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ 4.00 58%  N/A TEHA
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 4.40 77%  N/A NER
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil £ 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil £ 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil % Nil % Nil & 20.00 87%  N/A TNEH
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ 21.00 58%  N/A TiEA
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil £ 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil & Nil & Nil & 11.50 38%  N/A TNEMA
2007/08 0.75 Nil & 0.75 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 0.75 27%  N/A TER
2008/09 Nil £ 1.50 1.50 Nil & Nil f& Nil & 1.50 39%  N/A NER
2009/10 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 45%  N/A TEMA
2010/11 Nil & 1.10 1.10 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.10 32%  NA TEA

Remarks:  * Excluding special dividend #Including special dividend

1At *TBEERRIBE TEREFRIRE
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APPENDIX 4

Inventory & Debtor Turnover

FERERIREEHY

No. of days H £k ;
4 ——A—— Inventory Turnover 17 & & 8% £

100 ~— o~ - Debtor Turnover f& Ui ik 5 H5

90 +

80 -

70 -

m - B
60 |- el I T~
- - S
=

50

40 - w

30 I I I I

06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11

(no. of days) (H&k) 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11
Inventory Turnover
FEIAEH 45 37 36 47 48
Debtor Turnover
JRE W bR 2R 5 67 56 62 68 53
Inventory turnover (Base on year end stock value/Cost of Sales) x 365 days FEBEEE CAFREFEE,HEKAK) x 365H
Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Turnover) x 365 days fEUR IR A HY (LAFREIRIR &2 %8) x 3651

Inventory Turnover Days 75 EE 1]

(no. of days) (H&k) 09/10 10/11 Change #1&%
Raw Materials B} 26 26 —%
WIP $ 85 8 9 +13%
Finished Goods 45K i 13 13 —%
Total &5t 47 48 +2%
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APPENDIX 5
Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
ERNREMRREDLE
(%)
30 - —A— Gross Profit Margin -~ EF= (%)
- - Net Profit Margin ~ 45F2& (%)
25
20
15
10
A\ —A— A —4
5F B
0 |~~~“-|:|————|—--——|:|'-"——|————|:|-————|———‘J:| )
06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11
(%) 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11
Gross Profit Margin 9.1 6.4 7.2 6.8 7.4
EF%E
Net Profit Margin 3.8 0.5 0.8 0.4 0.8
RIS
HK$(million) ( &&#T)
Revenue 3,328 2,803 2,464 2,245 2,605
WA
Profit for the year 125 13 20 9 22
RE A
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APPENDIX 6
FAQ

BUSINESS

1. What is so special about Karrie's business model?

- Normally we deal with projects, which
can take one year from initial project
confirmation, development and engineering
works to final shipment of goods. A project
shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

- Usually we are the only vendor for a
particular project confirmed. Combined with
the 18 to 24 months shipment cycle, we are
bestowed with relatively long-term business
visibility. (2004/05 Annual Report, page 60)

2. Would rising cost of raw material affect the

performance of the Group?

Under the Group’s versatile ‘Total Transparent Cost
Plus Pricing Mechanism’ most of the raw materials
other than electro-galvanized steel plates are
sourced through the customers or through suppliers
designated by the customers. A rise in raw material
price (other than steel) has only a marginal impact
on the bottom line. (2004/05 Annual Report, page

18)

3. Experts say RMB is going to appreciate more in the
coming two years. What is the impact on the Group?

- RMB payments represents about 15% of the

total cost of sales.

- As most of our competitors are also based
in China and on the basis that customers
stick to their present purchasing practice,
in theory we could raise price to cover the

increase in cost over the time.

4, To whom do Karrie sell its products?

Our products, including computer server casings,
laser printers, magnetic tape drive, are mainly sold

to multi-national customers.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CAPEX, DIVIDEND AND FINANCE

5. Are you worried about a high level of bank
borrowings?

The Group’s shareholders fund is much
higher than the non-current assets meaning
that the Group is financing its non-current
assets through stable shareholders’ fund
rather than bank borrowings;

Any increase in net bank borrowings could
therefore be attributed to the increased
working capital requirement due to an
increase in turnover. This is a positive news
but not the otherwise.

6. What is the status of new Yu Quan and
Yixing Plants?

The site area of Yu Quan Plant is
approximately 240,000 sq. m. as compared
to the combined site area of 89,000 sq. m.
of the existing Yan Tien Plant and Fenggang
Plant;

We will build Yu Quan Plants in various
phases depending on the economic
conditions. Phase | has launched production
in October 2006;

Phase Il of Yu Quan Plant was completed by
end of 2008 and has launched production;

Phase Ill of Yu Quan Plant has been
completed by the end of 2010;

Yi Xing Plant has commenced production in
February 2010.

7. Is Karrie going to change its dividend policy because
of the capex and working capital requirements?

*Remarks:

Our dividend policy is to pay out 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to
shareholders;

In 2010/11, we paid out a total of HK1.1
cents as dividend (payout ratio: 32%),
making the 14th year of unbroken dividend
payment record;

Because of the importance of maintaining financial
stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.
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By &k 7S (42)
EEERRAM
BAEEEEZNNERERKFE?

APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHERS

8. Should you worry about the corporate governance 8.
standard of Karrie?

42

9.

- For three consecutive years from 2003-2005, - BN = _FTTHEE
fund managers and research analysts have —EREMEEHEDS] ER2PH
voted Karrie as one of the best-managed BB EELRBSFONMBEETBE
companies in Hong Kong in the Asiamoney ErE NIZEETNEEEE]
Polls. In the 2004 Poll, Karrie was voted as the B BZEERBEERELEE
second best in Corporate Governance in Hong ARRIBF_H - RIZETRF
Kong. In 2005 Karrie was voted as the best EER | FEER(BEAREER
small cap in the same poll; NAEl— NI E|E—F

- We have made detailed explanation of corporate - RERPFABEEERRER
strategies and the rationale behind in our annual HERZES  WEIGE[HEEE
reports and our effort was recognised by Hong 2Xpe | ARTERE _FTZT S
Kong Management Association and awarded NZZEZ+FE [REFHRER
with “Honorable Mentions” in 2006 and 2007 ZBERFHREE  RARFTE[RE
Best Annual Report Award, also being awarded FRRME] —_ETEFE (&E
with 2007 IR Magazine Award “Best Annual FHREPEXRIFE—F - -RZFT
Report and Other Corporate Literature” Award. ZNF AEEESG[AEEERE
In 2008, we had been awarded “Citation ¥mel —_SETENFE [ REFK
for Achievement in Corporate Governance BRI V[ESPEERENER
Disclosure” in the 2008 Hong Kong Management 8]

Association Best Annual Reports Award;
- Since 2001 the day-to-day operation of - ZMBZEE-—FHREXH-NE
Karrie has been in the hands of a group of XEBATEBEHBEETE M
professional managers. The management team BB EERRRERBRE
is not related to the controlling shareholder;
- Karrie is also willing to share with shareholders — BNTEEERIRERSEREM
the wealth created through distribution of NEUE BZTTE T —F
dividend. Since 2000/01, the aggregated ERR BHE_ZT——F=A=+
amount of the Group’s dividends paid/payable —BHEBAHADIRE HIKEZ
is around HK$592,783,000 or around 69% of I8 4 I& B 49592,783,000/8 7T * 15
the shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2011; % 3R & & 869%
- To increase its transparency, Karrie -  RITRSEHE =7
a. arranges “tea-breaks” with individual a. BFEREAREERITEN
shareholders annually; EE

b. publishes an easy-to-read annual reports b. FHREWEEERERE]
with graphs, tables and other useful FREENEE  BREE
information; and B RERINNAEE : &

C. discloses price sensitive information on C. HERF AP EBBRER

a timely basis.

Who are the major shareholders?

- As at 30 June 2011, the Ho's family/New
Sense Enterprises Limited/Castfast Properties
Development Co., Ltd. held around 70.88% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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APPENDIX 7

B 8%+

Profit attributable
to shareholders

Capex Capex
ARt _Lap ) 3 A {3
HKS /000 EEERE HKS'000
FHET T
200,000 - - 200,000
?
160,000 - 160,000
120,000 - 120,000
80,000 - 80,000
40,000 - 40,000
el EEEEN OB
97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 | 04/05 | 05/06 | 06/07 07/08 | 08/09 09/10 10M 11/12*
— éﬁa%e'\;%ﬁi 67,604 | 76,176 | 56,595 | 65,034 | 14,675 | 24,488 | 58,842 | 62,236 | 92,059 | 91,625 |198,529 | 114,641 | 82,893 | 66,500 | 165,000
—o—  Profit for the year
33 27,865 | 25,162 | 20,616 | 26,368 | 78,370 | 119,808 | 90,440 | 146,573 186,379 | 124,928 | 13,148 | 20,433 | 9,110 | 22,333 ?
* Budget only Phase 1: Phase 2: Phase 3: Phase 4: Phase 5: Phase 6: Phase 7: Phase 8: Phase 9:
*faE Asian Restructuring, investment Rapid growth Consolid- Rapid growth Consolid- | Restructuring, | Global financial |  Establish vision for
financial and market repositioning ation ation investment turmoil 5 years and
crisis in fixed diversification
assetsand
market
reposit-
ioning
Bl B EEl BIREEE : ERRE EISBRER | BAREE B \BEER BNIEE
THER | $HEE - RERTISEIEL R EEH R BEES | EBEE- Rk AR JEI5E
mE B EE R RS
BAERMS
THERL
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Sustainability Report
AGHERREEE

Next generation of our staff (Note on P66)

BMETWT—RK HERF668)

INTRODUCTION

Sustainable development, according to the World Commission
on Environment and Development, is: “development that
meets the needs of the present without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs.” Being
the Group’s established and long-term strategy, sustainable
development is also the mission of the Group. While pursuing
corporate growth, the Group bears the well-being of the
future generations in its mind via reduction on the burden
on the environment and assistance in the protection of
common resources, satisfying the development of the current
generation. The Group upholds the tenet of persistence,
consistence and continuance and puts the concept of “Karrie
on Perpetual Motion” into practice, thereby becoming lively
and following the nature with perpetuity and harmony.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Sustainability Report
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The Group has adopted EICC (Electronic Industry Code of
Conduct) to ensure that it could continuously satisfy the
legal and customers’ needs in respect of the protection of
employees’ rights, business ethics, environmental protection,
occupational health and safety, as well as making continuous
improvement to fulfill corporate social responsibilities. The
Group is pleased to report seven scopes of work regarding
social responsibilities as follows:

Fairness and integrity

Concertedly build the “Karrie” brand
Caring for the community

Corporate governance

Training and development

Health and safety

Caring for the environment

Fairness and integrity

Adhering to the principle of being people-oriented
and respecting staff's interests, the Group does
not impose any discrimination, involuntary labor,
physical punishment and improper treatment
towards its staff. The Group respects to the
freedom of the formation of legal unions, and
does not employ any children labour, while the
employees’ working hours as well as wages and
benefits are complied with the requirements under
the regulation. With well-established policies, the
Group prohibits the occurrence of aforesaid issues
which breach labour and human rights, and also
has management procedures in place to implement
supervision. Meanwhile, promotion are made
to the staff to allow them to get acknowledged
of their rights, while training is provided to the
management, so that respect on human rights and
the practical knowledge of equal opportunities are
applied in the working environment.

With the fundamental principles of “employment
is based on talents”, recruitment, remuneration,
training opportunities, promotion, dismissal or
retirement would not be affected by race, social
status, nationality, religion, disabilities, gender,
sexual orientation, membership in labour union,
political belongings or age.

AEEBECRMEICCETITEITAZLEL - UER
NAIEEITHSRE  MEEE  RERE -
BERRAZESTEEEAFERTEER
BEREEN WHEBENSUZELELEET -
ANEERARER N7 tEEELEEETNITE
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Fair participation of stakeholders is crucial to
the Group's performance of its commitment to
sustainable development, in particular, the equal
participation of staff and shareholders. As explained
in the 30th anniversary special publication of the
Group, water is an invaluable resource, and staff,
being the water of the Group, allows the Group to
make great achievements over the last 30 years. The
Group encourages its staff to take part and actively
communicate with them, thereby establishing the co-
operation relation of interaction and mutual trust.

As shareholders are the major stakeholders, the Group
has the responsibility to strive for their maximum
interests. The Group has formulated its dividend
distribution policy, declaring 30% of the profit
attributable to shareholders, and has consecutively
declared dividends for fourteen years. The Group
adheres to the principles of fair participation
of shareholders and believes that all investors
(institutional or individual) would have the same right
to get access to the Company’s information. As such,
apart from the regular communication channel in
the annual general meeting, the Group also holds
individual investors’ meetings on an annual basis to
establish a communication platform with individual
investors, which has already been successfully
launched for 15 sessions.

Concertedly build the “Karrie” brand

On top of placing awareness on the physical health of
its staff, the Group also concerns about their mental
health, putting the objectives of the balance of work
and daily life into practice. In the opinion of the
Group, the living standard of its staff shall be raised
in addition to working, so that positive sentiments
and motivation could be formed to strengthen their
capability to handle emotion problems. Various kinds of
activities are also organized to facilitate interaction and
communication among staff with the development of
different teams such as “Castfast Youth Caring Team”
(=BT EF/)\E), “Staff Care Committee” (BIEE
TZE%) and voluntary group for charitable work to
organize different kinds of activities on a regular basis,
through which, staff are provided with opportunities to
participate in and establish team spirit. Also, renowned
psychological lecturers are arranged to teach relevant
skills to counselors.

(mn
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The Group also carries out a great variety of culture
and festival celebration events, including “Mid-
Autumn Festival and National Day Evening Culture
Party”, “30th Anniversary Camp Fire Evening Party”
and “Songshan Lake Gathering”, allowing its staff
to relax and gather happily to alleviate pressure,
while providing single staff with matchmaking
chances. In addition, based on Fenggang, the
Group respects the local Kegiao (&f8) culture and
co-organise “Fenggang Kegiao Culture Festival”,
with over 10 pairs of couples from the plant
participating in the collective wedding ceremony.
Furthermore, “Going to beach with Children” (&
SFREBUSIEE) is also organised for staff and
their children who lived apart from other provinces
to travel to Jinsha Bay in Shenzhen in order to
establish closer and stronger connection.

The Group has also established staff caring team
to show care and concern for solitarys staff. At the
same time, to train up the physical fitness of staff
and give them a chance to show off their skills,
the Group has organized the Karrie Cup table
tennis competition and basketball competition.
As this year witnesses the 30th anniversary of the
Group’s establishment, the Group held the “30th
Anniversary Athletic Meet” for the first time in
Yuquan sports yard, which has attracted over a
thousand participants from Mainland and Hong
Kong. The Group has also constructed the first
corporate staff indoor activity center in Fenggang,
allowing its staff to take part in all kinds of leisure
and sports activities regardless of the weather
conditions.

Karrie Health Month 2010, an annual event
organized by summer interns, includes activities
such as “Taking more fruits keeps the doctor away”,
Breakfast Day, Trivia Q&A Competition, “Ideal BMI
(Body Mass Index) Disease Prevention Project”. It
is hoped that staff could acquire more knowledge
in respect of BMI and disease prevention with the
explanation of dieticians, while encouraging staff to
put their knowledge of keeping themselves healthy
into action in their daily life as well as promoting
the idea to their family and the society.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Caring for the community
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Caring for the community

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group
clearly understands the needs of integrating into
the society, creating harmony and making full
commitments to social services. Since May 2005,
the Group has established a volunteer group for
charitable works. In Mainland, different internal
organisations including labour union office and
the party branch also organise various kinds of
charitable activities.

The Group has sponsored “Nothing is Impossible”
Outward Bound Program organized by Sheng Kung
Hui St. Christopher's Home from 2007, which
aimed at facilitating the all-around development of
children. Through various activities like war game
training and adventure-ship, children are cultivated
with spirit of “Nothing is impossible” to strengthen
their endurance. Besides, the Group sponsored the
clothings and registration fees for students with
slight mental retardation and teachers of HHCKLA
Buddhist Po Kwong School for their participation
in the 10km race in the Standard Chartered Hong
Kong Marathon for the fourth consecutive year so
as to train students’ willpower and persistence. In
respect of the PRC, with the tenth anniversary of
Dongguan Karrie Primary School of Hope donated
and constructed by the Group and its staff, Karrie
sent its representatives to the school for delivering
its kind greetings to the students and teachers. The
Group's Mainland and Hong Kong volunteer group
also pays visits to elderly centers or elderly houses
during Mid-Autumn Festival and Tuen Ng Festival
annually, celebrating the festivals with elderly and
giving them gifts.

To encourage active participation in voluntary
services, volunteer holidays have been set since
2008. During the year, hours of voluntary services
reached 1,390 hours. The Group also took part in
various social charitable activities during the year,
such as Hong Kong Community Chest Walk for
Millions, ORBIS Pin Day, ORBIS Mid-Autumm Charity
Sale and MSF Truck Exhibition.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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During the year, the Group has made charitable
and other donations amounted to HK$426,000
(previous year: HK$86,000), benefiting over 520
people in the society. To recognize volunteers for
their services to the community, the Group has
specifically awarded certificates to those actively
participating in community charitable activities
during the annual dinner.

In November 2010, the Group was awarded the
Certificate Merit of "Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Award (Manufacturing)”
by Hong Kong Productivity Council. The Group
was also awarded “5 year Plus”Caring Company
Logo 2005/11 by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in 2011 in recognition of its contribution to
charity in the society.

Corporate governance

The Company has well-established corporate
governance structure to enhance the accountability
to its shareholders and other stakeholders. Please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as
set out in this annual report for details. In order
to avoid excessive concentration of power, the
Company has established the Executive Committee
comprising professional management to handle
daily operations. Furthermore, the Company has
also established the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee has its
defined scope of duties and terms of reference.
All members of the Board of Directors have strictly
complied with the Model Code and confirmed that
they have observed the requirements regarding
securities transactions by directors. The directors
have also made disclosure of their personal interests
in the shares of the Company in accordance with
the relevant statutory requirements.

(v)
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The Group deeply understands the importance of
operation and business ethics. Necessary measures
are taken to ensure justice operation, publicity of
information, intellectual property rights protection
and confidentiality, while improper benefits and
business competition are avoided. In respect
of business ethics, the Group has formulated
standardized documentation and staff must
adhere to the standard of conducts, including but
not limited to the acquaintance or acceptance
of benefits, conflict of interests, handling of
confidential documents, intellectual property rights
protection as well as non-disclosure of the content
of confidential agreements.

In respect of suppliers and processors, the Group
has issued a letter named “Peers’ Belief ({4 A
ff5)" so as to urge them not to provide any benefits
to employees during normal course of business. All
of our staff is prohibited from taking advantages
of their powers and authorities for personal
interests and incur unfair business transactions.
All employees must maintain the highest level of
honesty, and are prohibited from obtaining any
benefits with their power and authority.

The Group has also formulated a management
system on risk evaluation and risk management
to identify the practical risks in respect of the
operating environment, health and safety as well
as labour. Suitable procedures and effective control
would be implemented upon the determination of
various risk levels. The Group has also established
the internal audit department to optimize the
internal control mechanism and strengthen risk
management via management and audit, project
follow-up, procedure review and specific projects.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Health and safety

Health and safety focuses on areas such as
occupational safety, responses to emergencies,
occupational injuries and diseases, industrial
hygiene, work with high physical requirements,
machinery protection, public hygiene, restaurants
and staff quarters. The above issues are all set
forth in the EICC manual with the requirements
on written standards, performance-based targets,
indicators and implementation plans, while the
industrial safety team is responsible for the specific
assessment on the performance. In addition, safety
personnel are appointed in every department to
carry out safety checks and various drills, such as
fire-fighting safety drills.

Significant achievements have been made in the
implementation of relevant measures. For instance,
the occurrence rate of occupational injury has
declined continuously over years, and is kept at a
relatively low level, maintaining the rating of no
material occupation injury.

Training and development

In respect of training and development, Karrie has
been adopting the “optimisation of professional
performance, motivation of staff’s potentials,
revitalization of learning culture and embraced
with corporate visions” as its approaches. As
a result, “training” is based on the increment
of knowledge, skill enhancement and quality
improvement of positions, while “development”
is oriented on the sustainable development of the
company and its staff.

In 2010, over a hundred internal and external
training projects were launched for training in order
to enhance the competitiveness of the Company.
Such training projects cover advanced management
skills, modification and upgrading of production
and engineering techniques, lean manufacturing,
55 management, ISO and quality management,
environmental protection and clean production,
information technology and EICC, etc, providing
courses for different kinds of areas and scopes.
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®

Optimisation of professional
performance

Industrial Upgrading and Business
Transformation for Hong Kong Enterprises in
Dongguan

During the year, the Company participated
in the “Industrial Upgrading and Business
Transformation Programs for DG TURN”
organized by Dongguan Bureau of Foreign
Trade & Economic Cooperation Bureau and
Hong Kong Productivity Council, which
allows the Group to capture the focus
for improvement and in turn enhance
its competitiveness and risk-resistance
capability. Under the assistance of Hong
Kong Productivity Council, proposals on
optimization of techniques and production
management have been commenced with
two major production management projects
as follows:

PMC Optimised Production Program and
Introduction of Lean Manufacturing

The Company has introduced 2 different
projects via this program to enhance its
competitiveness.

The introduction of lean manufacturing
could streamline the production procedures,
enhance production efficiency and raise
quality level.

Training and Upgrading for hardware mould
techniques

Targeting at the enhancement of hardware
mould techniques, different kinds of
advanced solutions are introduced.
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(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

Best practice of corporate citizenship,
introduction of different kinds of relevant
training and general education, such as
Electronics Industry Citizenship Coalition
(EICC) and training on environmental
protection and clean production,
introduction of training on various quality
management system as well as training on
occupational health and safety management
system.

“New Dongguan People (#7 = A)”
training program

In response to the establishment of skilled
talents of Dongguan government, the
Company has commenced the “New
Dongguan People (37 % A)” training
program in 2009. Upon passing the
assessment, participants would be awarded
national vocational qualification certificates
admitted nationwide, and around a
thousand people have completed the
Program till now.

“Financial Management Course for Non-
financial Management”

In an attempt to allow relevant management
to gain understandings on financial data
analysis, financial management, concepts
on cost control, highly effective budget
management and corporate financial
condition analysis, the Group organized the
“Financial Management Course for Non-
Financial Management” with Hong Kong
Economic Times — ET Business College for
2 days, which was hosted by experts of the
sector.

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

EBITRULELNREMEMAT
J7] 69 45 7 69 46 B 15 5 it 1E £ B
# & & 10 : Electronics Industry
C|t|zensh|p CoalitionEFTE R
Bk BR %ﬁﬂ'J(EICC)&f&1%&/ﬁ/,\
EFEE'I SIAZEREERER
IR BERERTEEEBRE
qul

[F#ZA ) 15 olaT1 &)

%if’iﬁ =™ BT B R RBEAT B
higk  ARER_ZETNFRRE
TIH=AIBIER » THEZ
HE®E Be ﬁﬁ‘f{\.kﬁﬁz.
RBEEREE T AT
B o

[FFAHA B Z B REE ]

SEALEXHEEEEERENB

%UFJN‘ - BRI I
2 AMEEERERMETBAA
ﬁ*ﬁ' Eﬁ%&/ﬁﬁ#&_%ﬁf/@ﬁ'ﬂr
BIT2RZ [EMBABZHBE
BRE] WHEAZRER -

FANBERZERERAR ZF—8/—— FH

55



e

Training and development @
S| IS

o 55

REMIH S em & S

TS AT

transformation help to enfiance the
fesastance capabilities

LA

. % 4 > 4/% 3{% \%‘JE\
% 3 i%’(ﬁ@i % e D %o R w ¥ B %E; i‘o it
% %W”’V}‘%ﬁ%/\ﬁéwﬂ%f{%ﬁ”g“ &: -
" 1 ‘ nd others as W
tond themselves & g ;
ement to undets i e
W\{MM(Q contanuouns ivarovzw\wt n accordance Wi e oA
A 1 + are arcange
1 Lcienct —finance mManagemen
msmﬁmcwwcms, non—f

ﬂwawcml& management, courses

YT —

LTS RIE Y g %ié &
! : 2 G T
) Amtdet, Loen, market compet

Grroup”

ton, the accelerataed upgracing ang

{ 1hr

5% 5810 35(6)

S £

TOR 5 ama,

¢ competrtiveness and rich—



%ﬁ%bT/ME@?%ABﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁm%ﬁ%%’
XA Aeju gk z L1 #ND g The management co-operate
| ! Bil closely to introduce tacget monogement ond petfovmmw‘basw{
ol eystem to the Crroup, bANgng womentum to the corporate
it of sustained wnprovement

culltuce for the pucsi

|
|

{ } A
‘ i ’ approd

e,

| i 5
| L” "i 0| raemcsar@enninsi &3

i
. { - ! FB IR
| } 1 1 . ¥ o) b fi & 9918 4p § 7 Teachers and ctudents of tertiary schools ore
1 " ",_ % . 1 f I I 4! acconged to make Vicite and exchanges from tame to time, o that they ¥
r l : e |4 . 'r i ‘ | Ih] | could understand the real~life operation of Manland plonte an pereon !
1 1
r]t (i |
F BT l*[ L
i & W
¢ A8
it
dhy
= .

Lo ABE B R am  BAE T RA
7L Our stoff actavedy pacticipates tn English tratning

QXW@@%@EJW%M¥%%Z@%'%%
fwREy ot @) %’DW*@/@@%\V%X%@ The sound
developent. of the Grovp relres upon the phweicad and wentad
health of its staff, ond Hhue activities including vartous
cominace on the knanledse of mental health ace orgonized to

dhow outc coce for staff

courses, puttang contanuous Learning and self development

n practice




58

Sustainability Report

AHFREREES

(B)

®

(ii)

Motivation of staff’s potentials

Training on management techniques for new
generation

To avoid insufficiencies in labour, staff from
all levels are connected to allow direct
exchange between staff of new generation
and management and to increase the
chances for knowledge sharing and learning.
The Group has organized various training
activities, including “Knowledge and training
for mental health for staff”, “How to guide
staff who were born in the 80s and 90s
effectively” and the subsequent event titled
“Team leader training series on how to guide
staff of new generation effectively”.

Advanced training and development scheme
on management and leadership skills

The management is determined to nurture
elites and enhances their comprehensive
working capabilities by actively providing
staff with potential with training
opportunities. In addition, suitable personal
development schemes targeting talent
development are also designed, which would
allow them to get well prepared for the
promotion to the management of higher
level.
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(9

Revitalization of learning culture

For the revitalization of learning culture,
staff is encouraged to undergo continuous
development. The Group promotes the
policy for diversified learning culture to
allow staff to study continuously and have
self-development, with the introduction of
different types of foreign language training
and encouragement for Mainland staff to
have training in Hong Kong. In 2010, the
Group, being the first enterprise to introduce
“academic qualification education”
in Fenggang Town in Dongguan, co-
operated with China Sun Yat-sen University
and launched the “2010 administrative
management tertiary course” to bring
university and professors into the corporate,
thereby allowing staff to receive tertiary
education, achieving self-development and
obtaining academic qualifications in addition
to working.

On top of revitalizing learning culture for
its staff, the Group also pays back and
contributes to the society by providing
various working and internship opportunities,
such as university graduates training
scheme (with talent pool schemes such as
project engineer trainee, industrial mould
engineer trainee, procurement trainee
and accountants), short-term placement
program for tertiary schools in Hong Kong,
summer internship scheme for staff's family
members, young technical talents training
and exchange program, as well as scheme
for Mainland university students.
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(D)

®

Co-ordination with corporate visions

Interaction and exchange as well as peers
recognition

In November 2010, the Group took part
in “Breakthrough Tradition - Business
Transformation and Upgrading Pioneer
Forum for Dongguan Processing and Trading
(EBRES - RENTESHENARTER
#8)" as the industry peer guest under the
invitation of Dongguan Bureau of Foreign
Trade & Economic Cooperation Bureau,
Dongguan Daily and Hong Kong Productivity
Council. Furthermore, Hong Kong
Productivity Council also wrote an article
about the Group which shared our case for
upgrading and transformation.

In May 2010, advanced metal industry
investigation tour hosted by the Hong Kong
Metals Manufacturers Association also visited
and made investigation on the Group’s
plants in Mainland.
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(ii)

(iii)

Awards and Honours
ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme

The Group has long been placing concerns
on the demand of human resources,
requirements of customers, keeping up with
the current situation as well as co-ordination
with corporate strategic development for its
talent nurturing and development works.
In April 2010, the Company was awarded
the “Manpower Developer 1st” logo by the
Employees Retraining Board of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region.

The Group was also invited to be the
outstanding “talent enterprise” under
the Enterprise Power™ series of the Hong
Kong Productivity Council, being one of
the designated talent enterprises for visit
and exchange by exchange tours, which
showcases and shares the effectiveness and
results of the Group’s talent management
strategies.

Prospects

Along with the growth and needs of the
Group, training no longer focuses on the
level of techniques training and on-the-
job training solely, but also on the level of
personal development, which helps the
Group to nurture successors with potential
and promote diversified learning culture.
Also, staff is encouraged to develop
continuously and have communication in
order to establish a well managed team.
Looking forward, the Group should lay
a solid foundation for optimization of its
management and nurture talents to match
corporate development.
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(VIl) Caring for the environment

Greener Production

The Group has realized the importance of good
utilization of resources long time ago and not to
exploit the rights of using resources for the next
generation. The Group adheres to the concept
of Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the Chairman of the Group,
with heartfelt dedication in all details, and saves
resources for the next generation. As such, the
Group’s production adheres to the concept of
reducing energy or material consumption from the
sources with the adoption of various environmental-
friendly measures and addition of energy-saving
equipment. With the concept of green and clean
production implemented in practice, the Group
continues to formulate policies for green production
and energy-saving policies, while introducing
different kinds of environmental-friendly equipment
to attain the objectives of clean production and
environmental protection. During the year, the
Group further complies with various international
regulations and requirements, inter alia, energy
audit, environment permit and report, pollution
prevention and resources saving, treatment of
hazardous materials, treatment of sewage and
solid wastes, control on air emission and control on
content of products. The Group actively participates
in external clean production and environmental
protection campaigns, while internally strengthens
its staff's awareness on the environment via
training as well as green and ecological activities. In
addition, green design approaches are thoroughly
implemented, so that the products would not pose
any damages to the environment.
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To comprehensively understand the standard
of energy management and status of energy
consumption within the plant, examinations are
conducted on problems and insufficiencies in
respect of energy usage to identify the potential
and the approaches for energy saving, thereby
reducing the amount of energy consumption and
production costs as well as raising the economical
efficiency for the company. From March to April
2011, energy audit was conducted. The Group
has formulated a series of energy management
systems, which standardise the practice of energy
management to raise the efficiency of energy usage
and effectively finalise and safeguard energy-saving
plans. On the other hand, the clean production
and energy-saving committee has already been
established since 2005, which unifies the energy
management of the company, and applies energy-
saving objectives into all workshops via adopting
new technology.

The Group has adopted the following energy-saving
measures during the year which also effectively
reduce the temperature of workshops:

o Modification of hydraulic system for injection
moulding machines.

o Adoption of new energy saving technology
for injection moulding machines.
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o New model of 80W energy-saving lamps
are used to replace 400W tungsten lamps in
production areas.

o Induction cookers are used to replace diesel
oil cookers in canteen.

o Nano reflector energy-saving lighting system
is set up.
o Energy-saving devices are installed in split

units or air-conditioners.

The Group has been playing an active and
determined role on environmental protection
and clean productions with extensive recognition
gained from governmental authorities, Hong
Kong Productivity Council or commercial unions
and bodies, receiving invitations for sharing its
experiences on environmental protection and clean
productions. Furthermore, the Group was also
invited to be designated site for inspection tours
on clean production, allowing other manufacturers
to carry out on-site plant inspection, which in turn
encourages them to implement clean production.
Apart from the above, domestic and foreign media
also made interviews with the Group for sharing its
experiences.
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Since 2001, the Group has already obtained 1SO14001
environment management system certificate. In 2009,
the Group was named the “Hong Kong-Guangdong
Cleaner Production Partnership”. At the same time,
the Group also makes arrangement to comply with
relevant international environmental regulations, such
as RoHS, REACH, WEEE, JCPSSI, Montreal Protocol
and QC 08, so that the whole process including
design, procurement and production can meet the
requirements for environmental protection.

Looking forward to the coming year, the Group
will still strive to implement energy-saving and
green production while putting EICC environmental
protection policies into practice. In response to the
“Twelfth Five Year” energy-saving plan, the Group
will reduce emission, better utilise resources and
carry out clean production, thereby further lowering
the indicator for the production value and energy
consumption level. The Group has formulated
energy-saving plan, and it is hoped that the amount
of energy consumption in 2015 would decline by
approximately 10.56% as compared with 2010,
achieving the objectives of energy saving and
reduction in consumption, while lowering production
costs and raising market competitiveness. As a
result, invaluable resources could be retained and the
environment could be kept in good condition.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELSWES

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (the “Year”),
the Group has applied the principles of the recently
promulgated Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and complied
with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
CG Code, save for deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1,
A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code. This report describes our
Group’s corporate governance practices and explains the
said deviations from the CG Code.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2011, the Board consisted
of eight Directors, comprising Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy
Chairman and Chief Operating Officer),
Mr. Lee Shu Ki and Ms. Chan Ming Mui,
Silvia as executive Directors; Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming as a non-executive Director and Mr.
So Wai Chun, Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing as the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has the
collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the
Group's affairs.
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1.2

1.3

1.4

Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis resigned as
an Executive Director, a Deputy Chairman,
and a Chief Operational Officer of the
Company with effect from 28 April 2011.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming re-designated as a Non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of
the Company with effect from 1 May 2011.

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products and
services. The Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the overall objective and
strategy of the Group; monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the standard
of corporate governance of the Group. It
also makes decisions on matters such as
approving the annual results, interim and
quarterly results, connected transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, declaring dividends and adopting
accounting policies. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the management.

The Board conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met seven times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group's annual results for the year ended 31
March 2010, quarterly and interim results of
the Group for the Year.
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The attendance records of Board meetings NTRAFEESEEZENLERL
held during the Year are set out below: B

Attendance of individual Directors at AEEEEERREANEENLE
Board meetings during the Year =

No. of attendance/
No. of meetings  Attendance rates

RS, ERRE HE =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai At ¥ 5T A 7/7 100%
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis® P ER A 717 100%
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRIFESEE 717 100%
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia* PR % R/ R 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FFMITEF
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming A BR S 717 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ FF#177E F
Mr. So Wai Chun EREE 7/7 100%
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond PR 3m AR 55 717 100%
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing apisE i bitas 717 100%
Average attendance rate THHER 100%
Notes: B5E -
# was appointed on 1 November 2010 # RZTE—ZTF+—A—HEZE
* resigned on 28 April 2011 * RZE——FEAZ+\HEHME
1.5 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board 1.5 E?E%%%@Wﬁ‘é%&ﬁ@]%%@
and to encourage active participation and ﬁX%%@%Eﬁi&ﬂEﬁ BER EFg
contribution from Board members, the ERVEZZEeATHEESR -
Board has established an audit committee TXEHIEEZEGZFHMHA - &
and a remuneration committee. Detailed ELESREBRAMTEARMNES
descriptions of each of these committees eERBTEERARREZET
are set out below. All of these committees AR gRBERHEARREERER
adopt, as far as practicable, the principles, RERREHEZRCHZ 2R 12
procedures and arrangements of the Board in Fr e ZeHE o

relation to the scheduling and proceeding of
meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion
of agenda items, records and availability of
minutes.
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2

Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2011, the Board comprises
eight Directors: four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming, the non-executive Director, is
the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The Board has received annual confirmations
of independence in writing from each of
the independent non-executive Directors
and believed that all the independent non-
executive Directors met the guidelines for
assessment of independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and
manage the Group, taking into account the
scope and nature of the operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, production
and quality control techniques, supply
chain management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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3 Appointment, Re-election and Removal of 3. EEHNZEE EERER

Directors

3.1 At each annual general meeting of the 31 REERREFAE ((RREF
Company (“AGM"), one-third of the X&)+t =92 FFEEHR
Directors are required to retire from office by RE-BF2Z2RIEEBARES
rotation. The Directors, since his last election FPREESFEURTHAEERE
or appointment who has been the longest WEEBRRRBFAREG LEEE
in office shall retire and be eligible for re- F-REEEERXER HEFH
election at the AGM. The Chairman and/or KBRS HIN R FEREINETERRE
the Managing Director of the Group shall BFERG LERFEREIZEFTAR
not, when holding such office, be subject B AR K o A ARGEEE
to retirement by rotation or be taken into JASFRIEHE S KRBT EERT
account in determining the number of BISFRIMEXA4.2 » EBEFENIT
Directors to retire in each year. With the BEHESE L E=F8RRE -

introduction of the CG Code and to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the
AGM at least once every three years.

32 As at 31 March 2011, non-executive 32 RZTE—F=A=+—H " 3#H
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming) TEE (MEATERIN BES
including the independent non-executive VHEBITEFUBREEHREE -
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not THEB=F  PAEFRTERILA
exceeding three years and all non-executive BEARQE 2 ARIMME ([ F 4
Directors are subject to the requirements Al RIRRBFRE LIwFRET
of retirement by rotation and re-election by WEREMF -

Shareholders at the AGM in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”).

3.3 The names and biographical details of 33 BREERFEFRE LERET
the Directors who will offer themselves EECHEEERERBRRE 2B
for election or re-election at the forth KA+ DA BN 1R S5 R SRR B/ I AN
coming AGM are set out in the circular to TBERFE ©

Shareholders to assist Shareholders in making
an informed decision on their elections.
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3.4  Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is
suitable to act as a Director, the Board
will consider the experience and skills of
the appointee; as well as personal ethics,
integrity and the willingness to commit
time in the affairs of the Group. Where the
appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During
the Year, the Board had also reviewed and
made recommendations in respect of the re-
appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the
last AGM.

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance. Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2011, the Company had applied
the principles and complied with the requirements
set out in the CG Code in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, except the
following:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company
does not segregate the roles of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr.
Ho") currently holds both positions.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has
substantial experience in the manufacturing
industry and property development and cultural
related business. At the same time, Mr. Ho has the
appropriate skills and business acumen which are
the pre-requisites for assuming the role of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person would provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows the Group to be more effective and
efficient in developing long-term business strategies
and execution of business plans. The Board
considers that there is no need to segregate the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Ho shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

According to Code Provision A.4.1, Non-executive
Director should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-
designated as Non-executive Director on 1 June
2007 without a specific term but Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming is subject to retirement by rotation according
to the Bye-laws of the Company.

Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 stipulated that
every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, the number nearest to one-third but
not greater than one-third shall retire from office
provided that notwithstanding anything in the
Company's bye-laws, the Chairman of the Directors
and/or the Managing Director of the Company
shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in
each year. Furthermore, any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
should hold office only until the next following
AGM and would then be eligible for re-election.
With the introduction of the CG Code and to
comply with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Group will voluntarily retire at the annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every
three years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good
corporate governance of the Company.
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The Company will continue to review its practices from
time to time to achieve high standard of corporate

governance.

B. BOARD COMMITTEE

1. Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board has established the RC in June
2005 with terms of reference, comprising
a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, which meets at least once a year. It
is chaired by Mr. So Wai Chun and comprises
two other members, namely Mr. Chan Sui
Sum, Raymond and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.
All RC members, with the exception of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors.
The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business by the RC is two.

The principal responsibilities of RC are to
formulate remuneration policy of the Group,
review and make recommendations to
the Board in respect of the remuneration
policy and to determine the remuneration
of the executive Directors and the senior
management.

The RC met once during the Year with an
attendance rate of 100% and reviewed its
terms of reference, the remuneration policy
of the Group and the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management staff.

2. Audit Committee (“AC")

2.1

The AC’s membership, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
comprised the independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2011:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing; and

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.
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2.2

2.3

The operations of the AC are regulated by
its terms of reference. The main duties of the
AC include:

o to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including
the review of quarterly, interim and
annual results of the Group;

o to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

o to examine the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control which
involves regular review in various
corporate structures and business
process; and

o to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such reviews
includes finance, operations, regulatory
compliance and risk management.

The AC met two times during the Year with
an attendance rate of 100% and reviewed
the interim results and the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2010. The AC had also reviewed the Group’s
audited annual results of the Year. The
Company Secretary of the Company keeps
all minutes of the AC.

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

1.1

The Company has adopted a Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the
Group (the “Company’s Model Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

2.2

2.3
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1.2

Having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, they have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out
in both the Company’s Model Code and the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2011.

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1. Financial Reporting

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group's position and
prospects and extending the coverage
of such information to include annual,
interim and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports
to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

2. Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control system to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the
Audit Committee, has reviewed and reported
on the adequacy of effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programmes
and budget.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the Audit
Committee. The responsible Department Heads will
be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group’s external
auditor HK$1,838,000 for audit services of
the Group and for non-audit related services
approximately HK$707,000, representing mainly
taxation services and other non-audit service fees.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

1. The Company strives to convey to
Shareholders pertinent information in a
clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration
their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders concerned. Their
views are communicated to the Board
comprehensively.
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The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication
of annual, interim reports, circulars,
results announcements and releases. All
communications to Shareholders are also
available on the Company's website at
www.karrie.com.hk.

We had provided sufficient notice for
Shareholders on all general meetings.
The AGM provides a useful platform for
Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll according
to the Listing Rules. The chairman of the
meeting will therefore demand a poll for
every resolution put to the vote of the AGM
pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-Laws.

F. INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors.

Results announcement

As from January 2009, the Company
had discontinued its practice of adopting
quarterly results announcement. Annual
reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’'s website. The
Company can still provide the Shareholders
and investors with an adequate degree of
transparency and information of the financial
position of the Company.
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Media and analysts briefings

Briefings for media are held on the same day
immediately after the interim and annual
results released via teletext. Briefing for
analysts by way of presentation at luncheons,
receptions or telephone conferences are
organized thereafter. During the briefing, the
Group’s management provides an in-depth
analysis of the Group's performances in
respect of the relevant periods and ensures
that the financial performance and accounts
of the Group are well understood. There is
also ample opportunity for the analysts and
media to ask questions and interact with the
executive Directors and senior management.

Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the
Group has been arranging tea-break with
individual investors to build up an interactive
and direct communication channel. This
allows individual investors talking to the
management of the Group. Meanwhile,
the Group would give an update about the
status of the Group’s development and share
of their feelings toward the Group.

The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and
the latest news of the Group’s developments
on its Company's website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’s
website, the management will give their
prompt response.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 65, was appointed as a
Director of the Company in October 1996 and is
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company as well as the founder of the Group. Prior
to founding the Group in 1980, Mr. Ho had over
10 years’ experience in factory management and in
running operations specialised in manufacturing plastic,
metal and electronic products. He is responsible for the
Group's overall corporate strategies and objectives. He
is also a director of New Sense Enterprises Limited and
Honford Investments Limited, a corporate substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the brother of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman, and the husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu,
who is a member of management team.

The solid business knowledge and working experience
gained by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized
by the academic. He was awarded with fellow
membership of the Asian Knowledge Management
Association in September of 2003 and Honorary
Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business
Administration and Honorary Doctorate in Management
by Lincoln University in April of 2007. He was
appointed as a part-time professor at the University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China in Sichuan,
Chengdu.

Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th
Guangdong Provincial Committee of Political
Consultative Conference in January 2008 and was
reappointed as a member of 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province in January 2007. He was also
awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. Mr. Ho
currently participates in affairs of different associations,
which include Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers
Association, China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Overseas Friendship Association
of Dongguan, Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, Hebei Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association, Hong Kong Hebei Association
Ltd, Jiangsu Yixing Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Guangdong Overseas Chinese
Enterprises Association, Hong Kong Youth Exchange
Promotion United Association, Hong Kong Jiangsu
Exchange Promotion Association, The Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s Association and
Dongguan University of Technology Education
Foundation of Dongguan City.
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Senior Management Profile

RREEARZEAARTH

Mr. LEE Shu Ki, aged 55, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in December 1997, and is the Financial
Controller and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Group's Accounting Department. Mr.
Lee graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
higher diploma in accountancy and is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom. He
has over 25 years' accounting and financial management
experience in manufacturing businesses. Mr. Lee joined the
Group in June 1995.

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 39, was appointed as
a Director of the Company in November 2010, and is the
General Manager — Human Resources and Administration
of the Group and responsible for the overall operation of
human resources, administration and IT department of the
Group. Ms. Chan is one of the members of the Executive
Committee and Internal Audit Committee of the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong
Kong majoring in Public Administration and Management.
She joined the Group in 1996 and has over 10 years’
experience in administration and management.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 57, was re-designated as
a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2011. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company
from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and was a Deputy
Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as well as the
Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group. He
was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2007. He is responsible
for the overall supervision of the Group’s operation
business. He joined the Group in 1980 and has over 20
years' experience in factory production. He is also the
brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu,
who is a member of the management team.
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RREEARZEAARTH

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been doing business in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years. His
businesses are mainly specialized in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
which is a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in
New Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond, aged 71, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
in February 1998. He graduated from Oklahoma Baptish
University in the United States with a bachelor degree
in Arts in 1964. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience
in the construction industry. He is also a director of Exalt
International Limited and Shelton Food Industry Limited.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
in December 2004. He has extensive experience in
accounting, finance and management. He holds a master
degree in professional accounting, a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration and a higher diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Senior Management Profile

RREEARZEAARTH

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 62, is the Director of Administration
of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of
the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years' experience in
office administration and purchasing. She is responsible
for supervising personnel and overall administration of
the Group. She is also the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who
is one of the executive Directors, the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and sister-in-law
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman.

Mr. LEUNG Kwok Ming, Daniel, aged 45, was appointed
as the Deputy Chief Operation Officer and the Convener
of the Executive Committee of the Group in April 2011.
Prior to this appointment, he was the General Manager of
System Integration of the Group, responsible for system
integration and factory operational management. Mr.
Leung graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering and Master
Degree in Mechatronics. He joined the Group in June 2009.
He has over 10 years of experience in global procurement
and over 10 years of global engineering and operational
management experience in the field of electronics and
system integration products.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 44, is the Senior Marketing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Group, responsible for the Group’s marketing development
related work. He joined the Group in 1985 and has over
15 years’ experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. WONG Siu Ching, aged 53, is the General Manager
of TIS Technologies (H.K.) Ltd., a joint venture company
of the Group responsible for general operation and
management of TIS as from 1 November 2009. Prior to
this appointment, he was the Marketing Director of the
Group, responsible for project development and marketing
for the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in 1988 and he
had over 30 years' experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 46, is the General Manager
— Production Operation and Quality and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate
in Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group
in 1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.
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RREEARZEAARTH

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 46, is the Assistant General
Manager at the Group’s factories in China and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Group, responsible for
the overall personnel and administration management.
She joined the Group in 1984 and has over 18 years’
experience in managing the production process of
manufacturing industries and 8 years’ experience in overall
personnel and administration management.

Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 59, is the Assistant
Internal Audit Director of the Group, responsible for
setting up internal audit procedure and reporting directly
to the Board and the Internal Audit Committee. Mr. Wong
graduated from Curtin University of Technology, WA with
a bachelor degree in Management and Marketing. He
also holds a master degree of Accounting from the same
University. He is a fellow member of The Association of
International Accountants, UK and is an associate member
of CPA Australia. He is also a member of The Institute of
Internal Auditors Inc. U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 10 years’
experience in internal auditing and 12 years’ experience in
financial accounting. He joined the Group in March 2003.

Mr. HA Hon Leung, aged 51, is the Technical Director
of the Engineering and R&D Department, responsible
for managing engineering capabilities and project
development. Mr. Ha holds a bachelor degree from The
University of Windsor, Canada, and a master degree from
The University of Waterloo, Canada, both in Electrical
Engineering. He also holds a master degree in business
administration from Heriot-Watt University, UK. Mr. Ha
has over 20 years’ experience in engineering and technical
management in the electronics industry.

Ms. LAM Po Ling, Regan, aged 48, the Assistant
General Manager of Supply Chain Management of the
Group, is responsible for the overall operation of the
Group’s supply chain management and logistics system.
Ms. Lam graduated from The University of Strathclyde,
United Kingdom with a degree in Master of Science
in Procurement Management. She is a member of The
Chartered Institute of Purchasing & Supply, United
Kingdom (MCIPS). Ms. Lam joined the Group since 1990.
She has over 28 years’ working experience in Purchasing,
Procurement and Supply Management.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of computer casings, office automation products,
moulds, plastic and metal parts (together referred to as
“Metal and Plastic Business”) and provision of electronic
manufacturing services business (“EMS Business”).

The Group’s turnover by principal product category and
geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1.1 cents (2009/10: HK1 cent) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of the
Company on 9 September 2011. Together with the interim
dividend, total dividend paid for this year amounted to
HK1.1 cents (2009/10: HK1 cent) per share.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 118 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 16 to the financial statements.
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EFERE

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 18 to the Financial
Statements.

As at 31 March 2011, the Company's reserves of
approximately HK$242,292,000 representing the
contributed surplus and retained profit were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$426,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the Year.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The New Scheme

The New Scheme was adopted on 21 May 2002 and was
subsequently amended on 4 August 2006 to comply with
the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
effected on 1 September 2001. Details of the New Scheme
are summarised herein below:

(i) The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity
(as defined in the New Scheme);

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11

(EN
AEBEARREAFEZ HHEHFERHERN
M RERME T o

BE-_Z—F=A=1+—H1F A aA#
DR T AR B IRE B #9242,292,0008 7T
BEABG - REGF REIRAZE

B

AREBRAFEETZIREREMBRE
426,000/ 7T °

BE - hEIEE KD

ARBIRENBRAREAFEAMERE NN
EARRB AR ©

BREE
et

FEHBR TR FRAST—RRM - R
R-TEAEN\AMARTEST  AHA=F
T—EAA—BERT ETRAEHLEZI
JRIE o FAt B2 FHEREMT

(i) S EESBAEReERZEEY
AEBEHER R REBHAEEHTBE
L BerzEE  ANTHEREE
HEMKEHR RGhtED) ER) B
BEIAT



Report of the Directors

EFERE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The participants of the New Scheme include any
employee, director (including executive and non-
executive director of the Group), shareholder,
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, other service
provider, partner and business or strategic alliance
partner of the Group or any Invested Entity (as
defined in the New Scheme) or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects may be any of the
above persons;

The total number of shares that may be issued by
the Company if all options granted under the New
Scheme have been exercised is 25,740,000, which
represents approximately 2.97% of the existing
issued share capital of the company at the date of
this report;

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company at the date of adoption of the
New Scheme and thereafter, if refreshed, shall not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit by the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time;

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting, no participants shall be granted any
option if the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to such participant in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's share capital in issue for the time
being and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme at any time during
a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
at its sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held
or a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised,;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted under the New Scheme is
determined based on a formula: P = N x Ep, where
“P" is the subscription price; “N" is the number of
shares to be subscribed; and "Ep” is the exercise
price of the highest of (a) the nominal value of a
share in the Company on the date of grant; (b)
the closing price of shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (c)
the average of the closing prices of shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and
as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the New
Scheme; and

The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date of the New
Scheme.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BIRELTE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Hsta (&)

(x)  Details of share option movements during the Year x) REFFERAFECBRESEFE

under the New Scheme are as follows: R
Number of Share Options
EREHA
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before  exercise Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at 31 March during during during at 31 March
Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2010  theYear  theYear the Year 2011
RERE RERE —Z-3f% —E-F
Rt AR iR ZA=t-B RAREE RAREE  RREE ZA=t-A
#H RAS THE yid ] 2B 2B HRTHE ERT T &¥/BE  HAAE
(HKS) (HKS) (HK$) (‘000) ('000) (000) ('000) (000)
(B7) (#7) (E7) (F) (F) (F) (F) (F)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
BEZRERTHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 450 - - - 450
fIEHEE 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 450 - - - 450
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 600 - - - 600
04/03/2020
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis ~ 05/03/2010  0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 900 - - - 900
PKEEHE 04/03/2020
05/032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 900 - - - 900
04/03/2020
05/0322010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 1,200 - - - 1,200
04/03/2020
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 05/0322010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 630 - - - 630
FRIBSEE 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 630 - - - 630
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 840 - - - 840
04/03/2020
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia ~ 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
R&kME 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 480 - - - 480
04/03/2020
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd) B8 (2)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) WEtE (&)
(x)  (Cont'd) x) (&)
Number of Share Options
EREYA
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/

before  exercise Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at 31 March during during during at 31 March

Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2010  theYear  theYear  the Year 2011
RERE RBRE —2-3F -2—-f
REAH XA ZA=t-B REEE REEE  REFE ZA=1-H
2] RHEH TEE s B 2B HRTE  ERF T AM/BE HAEHE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (‘000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
(#x) (&7) (8x) (F) (F) (F) (F) (F)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 270 - - - 270
&KLt 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/201- 0.54 - 270 - - - 270
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
04/03/2020
Mr. Ho Kai Man 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 0 - - - 90
0[Z3'¢: 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 0 - - - 90
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 120 - - - 120
04/03/2020

(i) Other Eligible Participants

AthAaBRSEE
Employees 05032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 6,315 - - (303) 6,512
E8 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 6,165 - - (303) 5,862
04/03/2020
05/032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 8,220 - - (404) 7816
04/03/2020

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11



Report of the Directors

EFERE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BRESE (2)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) atEl (&)
(xi)  Details of share option movements during the xiy WBEFFER=-_ZE——FOA—RBEZ
period between 1 April 2011 to 30 June 2011: T ——FRNAZTHIEZERESEF
BT
Number of Share Options

BRERR

Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during during during

Closing the period the period the period
Price Price at from 1 April from 1 April from 1 April
before  exercise Outstanding 2011 to 2011to 2011 to Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at 31 March 30June  30June  30June at30June
Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

8- ZB--f -“ZT--f§
RERE RERE -—Z--F NA-AZ WA-HEZ WMA-AE —B--F
REHA 78 =B=t-B ~B=tE A~A=tH AA=tH A~RA=tH

%% REAH THE s 2B 2B EATE ERT o &%/BE  EERTHE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (000) ('000) (000) (000) ('000)
(%7 (&) (%7) (%) (F) (F) (%) (F)
(i)  Directors/Chief Executives
EEREEIBAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 050032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 450 - - - 450
EREE 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 450 - - - 450
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 600 - - - 600
04/03/2020
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 050322010 0.5 01/12/2010- 0.54 - 900 - - (900) -
PAERE 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 900 - - (900) -
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 1,200 - - (1,200) -
04/03/2020
Mr. Lee Shu i 05032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 630 - - - 630
FEERE 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 630 - - - 630
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 840 - - - 840
04/03/2020
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EFERE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd) BRETTE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Etdl (&)
(xi)  (Cont’d) xiy (#&)
Number of Share Options

BRERE

Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during during during

Closing the period  the period  the period
Price Price at from 1 April from 1 April from 1 April
before  exercise Outstanding 2011 to 2011to 2011 to Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at31March ~ 30June  30June  30June at30June
Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

“2--f ZB--f -ZZ--f§
RERE RERE -—2--5 NA-AZ WA-AEZ WMA-AE —E--§
REAA 78 ZB=+t-B ~B=tE A~A=tH AA=tH RAE=tH

#4 RLAS TEE TS AL 2B EERTE ERT o &%/BE  MEATE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) (000) (1000) (1000) (000)
(%7 (&) (%7) (%) (F) (F) (%) (F)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Sivia 050322010 0.5  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
Bk ME 04/03/2020
050032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 480 - - - 480
04/03/2020
Ms. Ho Po Chu 050032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 270 - - - 270
WERTL 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 270 - - - 270
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
04/03/2020
Mr. Ho Kai Man 05032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 90 - - - 90
WENEE 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 90 - - - 90
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 120 - - - 120
04/03/2020

(i) Other Eligible Participants

EtEER2EE
Employees 05032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 6,512 - - (135) 6,377
E& 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 5,862 - - (135) 5,727
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 7816 - - (180) 7,636
04/03/2020
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

A professional actuarial firm has been invited in the year
of 2009/10 to perform a valuation of the share options
granted under the share option schemes.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2"), the cost of share-based transactions should
be recognised as an expense over the period from the date
of grant until they are exercisable by the receiver of such
payment. The expense required to be reported for share
options granted on or before 31 March 2011 would be
estimated as follows:

BRESTE (@)
et (&)

—REEBERAR-ZETN, —TFEEH
AHEARD R BEREEEMER -

RIBBEMHEREERNE 5 ([FEVHER
2]) - BERERRL SN QHEARBRERORE
SmHIAEE BEHESRPNG - BH
R-FB——F=A=1T—HIARELHOER
REFTE AR B m IR ST H A

Financial Year

B
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total

At

P&L expenses (HK$'000) 4,700 1,588 299 7,006

Bk (F787T)

Employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated income statement are determined with the
Trinomial Model valuation model based on the following
assumptions:

Date of valuation CEER=R:G

Date of grant R HE

Option value RIHEEE

Market price at date of grant RIRL B 2 TI5EE
Exercisable price TEE

Risk-free interest rate e P

Life of options RIHE R R HA

Expected Volatility (120 months) &R 8 (12018 7 )

Expected Dividend yield TREA G RRAR B

KRR BEaRTHRZEERREERIIRE
ATBRERIR=ZEARRGHE

05 Mar 2010 —E-FF=AAHA

05 Mar 2010 —ET-TF=HAHAH

HK$0.223-HK$0.244 7B#50.223-78160.244

HK$0.55 75 #50.55
HK$0.55 75 #50.55
2.68% 2.68%
10 years T+
50.73% 50.73%
2.78% 2.78%
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

There are several relevant measures that may be considered
to assess the financial impact of the share option schemes,
including the expense of share-based transactions under
generally accepted financial reporting standards (e.g.,
HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based transactions is
attributed over the period from the original transaction
date (i.e., grant date) to the date when the recipient’s
entitlement to the payment has been fully realized (i.e.,
vested).

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

The result of the Trinomial Model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an option’s
actual value may differ from the estimated fair value of the
options due to limitations of the Trinomial Model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted during
the Year and the expense of share-based transactions
under HKFRS2 requirement, the Trinomial option pricing
model has been used. The Trinomial Model is one of the
generally most accepted methods used to calculate the
value of options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the Trinomial Model include the risk free
rate, dividend yield, exit rate and trigger price multiple.
The risk free rate has made reference to the yield Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date. The dividend yield makes
reference to the dividend history and it is assumed that the
grantee will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 199 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in Note 9 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 March
2011 are set out in Notes 20 to the financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman &

Chief Operational Officer) (resigned on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

(was appointed on 1 November 2010)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman)
(re-designated on 1 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for specific terms and hold office until 30 June 2012, 4
February 2012 and 6 December 2011, respectively, subject
to extension.

In accordance with Article 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and A.4.2. of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All such Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

EEEHN
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following
connected and continuing connected transaction, certain
details of which had been disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected Transaction

On 22 October, 2010 after the trading hours, Kar Sharp
Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
with Castfast Properties Development Co., Limited (“Castfast
Properties”) whereby the Group has conditionally agreed
to acquire 100% of the entire equity interests of the Yixing
Karrie Commercial Building Development Co., Ltd. (“Yixing
Karrie”) at a consideration of RMB105.12 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$123.68 million at that time), which
will be satisfied by the allotment and issue of 291,000,000
new shares of the Company (“Consideration Shares”) at
HK$0.425 per Consideration Share (the "Acquisition”).
The sole asset of Yixing Karrie is the parcel of land with a
site area of approximately 20,012 sq. m. located in Yixing,
Wauxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The Directors believe that
the Acquisition shall enhance the sources of income of the
Group, diversify the business of the Group and reduce the
Group’s reliance on its existing manufacture business and
seize opportunity to acquire landbank and solid property
development business during the economic rebound.

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, the controlling
Shareholders, are ultimately interested in 97% of the issued
share capital of the Castfast Properties. Accordingly, the
Castfast Properties is a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and will
be subject to the reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements as set out in Rules
14A.45 to 14A.48 of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition was
approved by independent shareholders on 6 December 2010
and was completed on 27 January 2011.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Continuing Connected Transactions

Upon the expiry of the previous lease agreement on 17
November 2009, a new lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) dated 16 November 2009 was entered into
between Kings Lion Development Limited (“Kings Lion”)
as landlord and Karrie Industrial Company Limited (”Karrie
Industrial”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as tenant for the lease of a portion (being 26,573 square
feet in gross floor area) of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories together with one car parking space in the same
building at a monthly rental of HK$132,865 (that is, at
approximately HK$5 per square foot) for a term of two
years commencing on 18 November 2009.

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together with
his spouse, control 100% of the voting power in general
meeting and also control the board of Directors of Kings
Lion. The transaction contemplated under the Lease
Agreement (the “Lease Transaction”) therefore constitutes
a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Lease Transaction have been set out in the announcement
dated 16 November 2009 issued to the shareholders of
the Company.

On 10 July 2008 (Hong Kong time), Karrie Technologies
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a shareholders’ agreement (the
“Shareholders’ Agreement”) with Sagem Communications
SAS (“Sagem”)* for the establishment of a joint venture,
Sagem Karrie Technologies (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (the “JVCO"). The JVCO entered into a servicing
agreement (“Sagem Servicing Agreement”) and a supply
agreement (“Sagem Supply Agreement”) with Sagem.
The technical services to be provided by Sagem under the
Sagem Servicing Agreement encourages technical support
services in relation to technology qualification, required
certification, product safety, etc. The products to be
delivered by the JVCO to Sagem under the Sagem Supply
Agreement include multi-function fax printers, TS and TT
fax machines, related PCBA and associated spare parts,
which will be supplied by the JVCO to Sagem.

* Sagem Communications SAS was re-name to Sagemcom SAS
in October 2009.

N

REXZRSEBERS (4)
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ZRIEHERHER S ((HERS ) BRE(L
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RZZEZENFEA+H (FEEM)  ARFZ
ME2EMNB AR ZMIRKER AR HSagem
Communications SAS ([Sagem]) *&] 32 iz &
s ([ARRBZE]) KIZA B AR = LER
B (EE) BRAF ([ABRA]) A8 AR H®H
Sagemi] ZSagemfR 7 # & ([ SagemfR 7% 1
&) KSagemtfE 7% ([SagemEtfEpaE ) ©
SagemiR #&Sagem AR 7% 1 & 15 1R 4 BT AR 7% 22
EHEE B IEEE ERLTESEIZR
T2 1% - & &R AR ESagem it FE W 45 X +F
FSagemZ EMBIEZHBREEITH# - TSk
TTEE# - BEMPCBAKRMBZ M -

* RZZEZAF+ ASagem Communications SAS
F k% T ASagemcom SAS.
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EFERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

Following the completion of the Shareholders’ Agreement,
the JVCO will become an indirect 60% owned subsidiary
of the Company. By virtue of its 40% interests in the
JVCO, Sagem will become a substantial shareholder of
the Company at subsidiary’s level and hence a connected
person of the Company. The transactions contemplated
under each of the Sagem Servicing Agreement and
the Sagem Supply Agreement will therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those
transactions have been set out in the circular dated 11
August 2008 issued to the shareholders of the Company.

On 5 February 2009, the Company entered into the
raw materials purchase agreement (the “Raw Materials
Purchase Agreement”) and the products supply agreement
(the “Products Supply Agreement”) with Sagem.

It was originally intended that the Sagem Supply
Agreement would replace the existing supply arrangement
with Sagem (the "Existing Supply Arrangement”) after
all the orders committed thereunder had been delivered
and completed by the end of 2008. However, as the
production equipment and machinery in the factory will be
installed in phases, the JVCO will not be able to commence
full operations until January 2010 to take over all the
manufacturing activities which would have otherwise
been undertaken by the other members of the Group
under the Existing Supply Arrangement. The Products
Supply Agreement will enable the Group to continue
supplying the Products to Sagem and its subsidiaries (the
“Sagem Group”) after the termination of the Existing
Supply Arrangement but before the JVCO commences full
operations under the Sagem Supply Agreement in January
2010.
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EFEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

It was originally intended that the existing raw materials
purchase arrangement with Sagem (the “Existing Raw
Materials Purchase Arrangement”) would be terminated
as and when Sagem had completed the delivery of all the
orders committed thereunder by the end of 2008, after
which the Group would source raw materials from other
independent third party suppliers. In view of the changing
market conditions, the Group now takes the view that it
is beneficial for the Group to source raw materials from
the Sagem Group instead of sourcing the same from
the independent third party suppliers directly. The Raw
Materials Purchase Agreement will enable the Group
to reduce the administration costs, eliminate the risk of
default of independent third party suppliers and ensure a
reliable supply of raw materials with consistent quality.

The transactions contemplated under each of the Products
Supply Agreement and the Raw Material Purchase
Agreement therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions have been
set out in the circular dated 5 March 2009 issued to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Transaction and confirmed that the Transaction has
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of its business and on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in the paragraph above in accordance with paragraph
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2011

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to

EERBRSTRAEZROER

R-F-——F=ZF=+—H

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company

RARIBEEE K
*Hﬂyk/j&_. (BxR(

ke
FHE

*ﬁﬁz/\s\EmAﬁ&fﬂﬁj
B M EREIEG) ([(EHIE
BY]) BEXVEL) % ﬁmafaﬂxmw&ﬁm&

HEKE MEZSEEDZN

) 35218 T

3 K NCIE:

([¢Z%

% (a) R & (& 75 15
S e FATRCERE ¢ l(b)
TEZR HNIZE

S:Up

EsTRID ) B A ZI-VD\ AIRBEBBMER S

BRAT (TBRAH) -

LAl

() REQFzER

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIBIZEBREE
Corporate/
Personal Family Other Total % of issued
interests interests interests interests share capital
EEERE N
Bz XEER HithiE EitER HFRESK
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Al s o A 138,492,000 464,804,000 408,804,000 603,296,000 69.50
(N(\):[e 1) (Ngj[e 1) (ij[e 2)
(MsE—) (MtsE—) (Mtex=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming  fa] 588 % 4 13,604,000 — 408,804,000 422,408,000 48.66
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(=) (H3E=2)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, — ZFxkE2 54 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 0.46
Francis (Nc\)\te 4)
(P =ERE )
Mr. Lee Shu Ki RS E 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 0.40
(qute 5)
(PFf=ET)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, B4t/ 18 1,200,000 - ~ 1,200,000 0.14
Silvia (Note 6)
(B¥EE77)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing  J5 38 5 4 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu AIERZ T 56,000,000 547,296,000 408,804,000 603,296,000 69.50
(Note 7) (Note 7) (Note 2)
(H3E+) (M=) (fEE=)

Notes: MizE -

1. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai comprise - fEE ﬁ\igi\/\ 1 5 ) 4%138,492,0000%
138,492,000 Shares. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be ARBFBBERG - [AIZREERE RIS
interested in (a) 56,000,000 Shares held by his spouse, Ms. Ho () EH B 1B 7 = I%\ﬁ THEREHREAARE L
Po Chu, as beneficial owner and (b) 408,804,000 Shares in 56,000,000/ & {7 : K (b )ﬁﬂi;ﬁ%@zﬁ@?—#%
which his children under 18 are interested. Such 408,804,000 408,804,000 B 5~ #E 25 © % %E@L,H\\?fiﬁw
Shares in which his children under 18 are interested duplicate %2 F 4 i A HE 2% 2 408,804,000 B 15 Tﬁﬂﬁ

=iz}
Y8 2K A VE B Ho Family TrustBIsz AR i &t
FriR—$a R R 2 B S o

with his interests as founder of The Ho Family Trust in the
same block of Shares referred to in Note 2 below.
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(A)

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

The 408,804,000 Shares comprised (i) 243,804,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New Sense”), and (ii)
165,000,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties Development
Co., Ltd. (“Castfast Properties”), 87% of the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Honford Investments
Limited (“Honford Investments”), which in turn is wholly-
owned by Equity Trust (BVI) Limited (“Equity Trust”)as trustee
for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai is deemed to be interested in these 408,804,000 Shares
as founder of The Ho Family Trust. Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s children under 18 are
the discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust and are thus
deemed to be interested in the 408,804,000 Shares held
under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
408,804,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
12,104,000 ordinary shares and 1,500,000 outstanding share
options.

The personal interests of Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
comprise 980,000 ordinary shares and 3,000,000 outstanding
share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Lee Shu Ki comprise 1,400,000
ordinary shares and 2,100,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia are
1,200,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
55,100,000 ordinary shares and 900,000 outstanding share
options. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be interested in (a)
138,492,000 shares held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
as beneficial owner and (b) 408,804,000 shares in which her
children under 18 are interested. Such 408,804,000 shares
in which her children under 18 are interested are duplicated
with her interests in the same block of shares referred to in
Note 2 above.

EENESTRAEBZROER (&)

() RARQTz#EHE (&)

— - 408,804,0000% A% 7 B #E()ENew Sense
Enterprises Limited ([New Sense]) # & 2
243,804,0000 B 1 (i) =EEMERESR
RAAF([ZEEHME] #5 2165,000,000
fE B 1n » H B %17 I8 & 287%J5 fAHonford
Investments Limited ([Honford Investments|)
H 25 ¥ A ° Honford Investmentsz & #B & %
77 & X HEquity Trust (BVI) Limited ([ Equity
Trust]) fE A2 #{E7Ho Family TrustZ 5EA
BH - e85 A EAH Family TrustZ B3
A AR B 255408,804,000% i 15 7 B &
oo B d - A EEEE RAEBEE 2 K
M185E T BHo Family TrustZ 225 A - &
W18 BFHo Family Trust#F#& 2408,804,0000%
OB o Bt - ([e@ il MBGRL:
%ﬁ}ﬁﬂﬂ5‘&Hﬁz%m&sm,oooﬁﬁH&fﬁZf*ﬁ?&
W ESE -

AR 2 B AEZEH12,104,000/0 A A &)
RALA 19 521,500,000 A 1T1E 2 BBEALHEARAK -

/g FBoKERSLA Z A AREZ 980,000 A A R il
R% P& 15 523,000,000 & AR 1T 1E 2 BE AR 4H A -

f FREAEZEAEZHAT,400,0000% AR 8 EF
AL AED %2,100,000 1 AT 2 BACHEARAK ©

N BRALR/NE 2 B AR Z1,200,0000% i K FTE
BB -

- BT 2@ A#EZB55,100,0000% 48 A &)
L@ MRS 19 %2900,000 1 AR 1718 2 BERSHEAR AR -
MERZTHR AT (@)EB B AEE L EE
BB SRR N 2 138,492,0000 8% 1 ¢+ K(b)
E R85 F 2 A 408,804,000 A% I {7 2 7
% © 7% %408,804,0008F B (D Z 2k - WAR AW
B (KA RERBI8HEMF X
ZHEES 7 RS -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERBETRABZROER (&)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated (Z) REELIEZEZRAR
corporations

() Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL") ()  EHESBERIG ([ ZFER])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100E T2 ERZREEROHE

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEEES
PN 53 REEL HitriEz aitlEs BRESWL KB BRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
lesE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(FfsE—) (=) (HEE=) (fEE—) (HEE=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
MR L (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(& —) (fEE—) (fsE=) (FEE—) (fEE=)
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i)  FEHRZERAA ([FEHK))

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100ETZERFREERGHA

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEER
BARR REER Hftfgs AR KREAL KE ERESWL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
BlShFs (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(Bt —) (=) (M=) (=) (M=)
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INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

EER

E|—&T
KE&S1

(2) REBEEzRER KR (&)

(i) Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL") (i) FEHREHFREGRAE] ([ZFEE])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREE1ETZERFREEROEE

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

EEEES
PN 53 FEER Hftfgs aitlEs BRESWL KB ERESHL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
lesE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(Bt —) (BzE—) (FfzEm) (=) (Ffzkm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
DEt S en (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(FE—) (FE—) (FsEm) (B5E—) (FfzEm)

Notes: P EE -

1. Karrie International (B.V.L.) Limited (“KIBVI”), a direct - Kar{ig Internjzi\o\nal (B-\f\-Q Limitsd quBle '

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been AR EZE@EEWE’A Al EH?JJ%E@JE&
granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk ﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬁiﬂﬂ,\fﬁkﬁiﬁ/\%ﬂﬁuﬂ ;\%E\ﬂﬁi
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred &?*'Jhﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ&m%ﬁ%ﬁxi ° R
shares in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. Accordingly, 1 ¥B e R o) 5 Afiﬁi.ikﬁﬁ&‘?%%%ﬁ%
KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non-voting QEEﬁBﬁZ//\F’ K|BV|%%\7E ﬂzg{ﬁ{({ﬂ 1B
deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk @ BE RN (F)IRARF #a] 2K
Fai and Mr. Ho Po Chu have each created short é* ?_&—?ﬂ¥ l{”@ﬁj&ﬁ%ﬁ)ﬂ;&g‘lﬁ’]%ﬁ
positions. In addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in %ﬁ\$@\ Bl ﬁiﬁiﬁi‘i%%ﬂ@iiﬂiﬁix
the Company; and (i) the interests of their children E%&%ﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁEIBVITEZ gf_ﬁi{ﬂ i o KT
under 18 in the Company, as referred to in Notes @RAEARNGSERDEDDEERR °
1, 2 and 3 under the section headed “(A) Interests
in the Company” above, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms.
Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be interested in the
long positions that KIBVI has in these non-voting
deferred shares. Such interests are duplicated with
their personal interests in these non-voting deferred
shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises = 5 MIE E?%?:IH%QEES0,00EHEH&E{E1QO§§
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each Eiﬁ&m%ﬁkﬁﬂﬂ K10l &R EE 1004 T
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. Z BRI AR ©

3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises = 7§§ﬂﬁagj‘fﬁ%ﬁ%1oﬁogﬁg%ETEWO}%
10,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each Eiﬁ&m%}ﬁkﬂﬂﬂ K10 B REE10078 7T
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. 2 P s A7 AR

4, The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2 e BRRRED BTG EEZH&H&ETEW‘%T_E\Z%

non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10
ordinary shares of HK$1 each.

FEEEEER A R OB EE1/ETT 2 & B

AR 4B K ©
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EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any associated corporations which were
(a) recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

As at 30 June 2011

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company

EENEETRAEBZROER (&)

B EXFIES  ARBBEEZRESITRA
BYEEEAEADE RAERMBEEENRN
BB REFET VRS SRE - MaSHE
@ MR R (a) IR CREFIERD) B352(RA T B
2B MArRCirE  Sk(b)RIE (RS AI) B A
ZAYNSIPSE B

R-E——FEXA=1H

ARBZEENEHTERABEARRR REMR
HEEE (Bx R (EFRBEER) ([(EH K
FI) 1) FEXVER) B R 10 K A8 B8 A {0 o B A B
@ MORR - Mk FEm SRR @IRIE (B 7FF
1) FE352FA T 7 2 B M Frac g + sk(b)
EE(LETRAREFTETESF X FNZETERD
(IKRESTRD ) BRARRR RBEBE B
BRAR (B -

() REQFzEH

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIEBIZEERYE
Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
EEE R
B AR KEERE Hitthg s artEE FRESW
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Al pB o A 139,298,000 464,804,000 408,804,000 604,102,000 69.59
(Nq(e 1) (ij[e 1) (Ngj[e 2)
(HtEE—) (BEE—) (Mysx=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming  {a] 28R %4 13,604,000 — 408,804,000 422,408,000 48.66
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(Btex=) (MeE=)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki TR LS 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 0.40
(Note 4)
(M)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, [ #x/ N8 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.14
Silvia (No\te 5)
(FFR)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing i e 4 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu BE$7 3 56,000,000 548,102,000 408,804,000 604,102,000 69.59
(Noj[e 6) (Nc\)\te 6) (qu[e 2)
(M) (B (MsE=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(A)

Notes:

1.

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai comprise
139,298,000 Shares. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be
interested in (a) 56,000,000 Shares held by his spouse,
Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner and (b) 408,804,000
Shares in which his children under 18 are interested. Such
408,804,000 Shares in which his children under 18 are
interested duplicate with his interests as founder of The Ho
Family Trust in the same block of Shares referred to in Note 2
below.

The 408,804,000 Shares comprised (i) 243,804,000 Shares
held by New Sense, and (i) 165,000,000 Shares held by
Castfast Properties, 87% of the issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Honford Investments, which in turn
is wholly-owned by Equity Trust as trustee for a discretionary
trust, The Ho Family Trust. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be
interested in these 408,804,000 Shares as founder of The Ho
Family Trust. Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai's children under 18 are the discretionary objects
of The Ho Family Trust and are thus deemed to be interested
in the 408,804,000 Shares held under The Ho Family Trust.
Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 408,804,000 Shares duplicate
with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
12,104,000 ordinary shares and 1,500,000 outstanding share
options.

The personal interests of Mr. Lee Shu Ki comprise 1,400,000
ordinary shares and 2,100,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia are
1,200,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
55,100,000 ordinary shares and 900,000 outstanding share
options. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be interested in (a)
139,298,000 shares held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
as beneficial owner and (b) 408,804,000 shares in which her
children under 18 are interested. Such 408,804,000 shares
in which her children under 18 are interested are duplicated
with her interests in the same block of shares referred to in
Note 2 above.

EENEETRAEBZROER (&)

() RARQB 2D (&F)

GEE

fa] 4 iﬁ % 2 & A # 2= 8 $5139,298,0000%
AN QD E RS ﬁkﬁf»ﬁﬁ‘am&’ﬁﬁhﬁ
(a )Eﬁaﬁﬂ%fﬂzﬂ'ﬁﬁ EnBAEAREREZ
56,000,0008% B {7+ M(b)E R W 1858 B T 22 i
408,804,000 10 2 #am o ZEFHEARM18
B2 F A W a2 408,804,00008 3 15 8 fa] &
#E S EAHo Family TrustBISZ AT XM sE—
R — 38RO EE 2 RESE -

408,804,000/% I 1 £ #E(i)New Sense¥s B 2
243,804,0000% & 10 K(il) ZEEHMEFE 2
165,000,000/ & 17+ E B2 é’é TIRA 287%
J5 fAHonford Investments® %5 # & ° Honford
Investmentsz & & B2 817 & AR HEquity TrustfE
AE#E{EFEHo Family TrustZ RFEARA ({118
¥E S Ve AHO Family TrustZ BISZ A - A8 AR
52%408,804,000%%{9}43%ﬁﬁéﬁé o (A BIRK
A EREEERAIEEBEEZ R RISHK T K
F%Ho Family Trustz 2#EZm A - HIER B Ho
Family Trust¥ B 2408,804,0000% % 19 # & #
oo Bt SIS A ERA L RAEMAEL
HRE%E408,804,0000% i 10 < HEZS WL BB & -

Al B A 7 B A H12,104,00008 2 A
TRARAR 1D K21 ,SO0,000rﬁﬂETTﬁZﬁ%Hx%@EX

TR £ 2 @ AEZZA1,400,0000% A QA E
3B 522,100,000 & AT 2 BERS AE4EAK o

PR 22tk /NE 2 B AFEZS 2 1,200,0000% i AR 1T 1E
2 BERRAE -

Al 8 TR 22 - 2 {8 A #E % $855,100,000% A A &)
3 A% % 1) £2900,0000% AR 7T 2 BE R A AK o
ﬂ%‘%ISkzzﬂ&‘%ﬁ%%ﬁ(a)ﬁ@aﬁmﬁﬁf‘aE{’E
AEREA AEAE 2139,298,0000F /%1 + FK(b)
E*ﬁmwﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁms 804,000% f% 1 2 #E

° 7% 55408,804,000/ ik 5 2 i - AR B
ggiszzt(lzuﬁﬁuf Frraft) RERRI18HEN T L
ZEEBZ RS -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERBETRABRZROER (&)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated (Z) REELEZEZRAR
corporations

() Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL") ()  EHERBERIG ([ZFER])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100ETZERFREEROHE

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEEES
PN 53 REEL HitiEz aitlEs BRESWL KB BRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
lesE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(=) (=) (HEE=) (fEE—) (HEE=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
MR L (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(& —) (fEE—) (fsE=) (P —) (fEE=)
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i)  FEHRZERAA ([FEHK))

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100ETZERZREEROHA

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEERS
BARR REER Hftfs AR KREAL ®E ERESWL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
@ (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(Bt —) (BfzE—) (M=) (=) (M=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

EENESTRAEBZROER (&)

(2) REEBEEzRERXR (F)

(i) FFIEEZERBRAE] ([FZHRE])

(ii))  Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL")

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREE1ETZERFREEROEE

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

B
EAER REER Hitfgs AR KRESL KE ERESWL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
lesE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(Bt —) (BfzE—) (BfaEm) (=) (BfaEmm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
DEt S en (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(HE—) (FE—) (FsEm) (BE—) (FfzEm)

Notes: UER

1. KIBVI, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the - KlBVL' $Q\EjZE}%%;§EW%/&a =%&7:§73

Company, has been granted options to acquire from EE%E?}J\E%WE’E% iﬂmﬁﬁﬁim?%ﬂf%m §
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non- ;%%?M&&%ﬂ&éfﬁﬁ%ﬁE’Uﬁ&%‘ﬁ;}ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
voting deferred shares in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. f,\ ° Eﬁéfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁiﬂﬁ%\j&ﬁiJ:‘ﬂﬁf?‘if
Accordingly, KIBVI is taken to be interested in these uZJﬁ%T?%ﬁﬁ%_E ELERMIKA - KlB\\/I%ﬁﬁaZ
non-voting deferred shares in respect of which Mr. %E{({D z*‘%@ ° ﬁ_% ’E/Q\J:ﬂ () TRAR ﬂ,\Z
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Po Chu have each created i ] ZWEE— . :_)32: W; ﬁﬂTFﬁ\{}ﬁJSﬁEM
short positions. In addition, by virtue of (i) their ;E@‘T‘ﬁ%ﬁzﬁ%\ﬂz%ﬁ ’ {Ef{ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂ]@
interests in the Company; and (ii) the interests of %Iﬁﬁgﬁé %&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁK'BVfﬁ\ﬁzgfﬁi{ﬂ 2
their children under 18 in the Company, as referred m ° R EEmIREEAR G LR O B E
to in Notes 1, 2 and 3 under the section headed BH -
“(A) Interests in the Company” above, Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are each deemed to
be interested in the long positions that KIBVI has in
these non-voting deferred shares. Such interests are
duplicated with their personal interests in these non-
voting deferred shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises = %%lj%%g%ﬁ%@ﬁﬂso,ooo@H&@ﬁmoiﬁ
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each Eiﬂ%’fi‘%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ K10/ & i E H 10078 7T
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. 2 E B HEPK ©

3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises = %%ﬂ%g%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ@%mmgﬂgH&E{ﬁ1qoi§
10,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each Ei%*ﬁ’f%ﬁgﬁﬂﬁ K10 R E E10078 7T
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. Z BB HEPK ©

4. The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2 me BANRECETRHE2ZREREEET &

non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10
ordinary shares of HK$1 each.

HEREER D R0l A E 1B T 2 BB
A7 BB ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competes with the business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 March 2011 and 30 June 2011

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

BEENBRETHRAEZRDER ()

(2) REEBEEzRERXR (F)

B EXPTREESN  ARRBEEZENRRITHA
B Em A AR R R AT EOE B H B
MR REFETOERIAE - MESE
& SR B ()R 1B KRB 1R ]) F3521K B TR
ZEBRMARCERE  S(b) kg (RS A B
AR MBS o

EERGFERB 2ED

ARAEEERBRAREDBRHF 2 £55
B (L2 o

FERR
R-E——F=A=+-AR=-F——F~H
=+A

ATAL (TEREEFRARFAZESITHA
8) RARA R AR DT EAEREAR

AER GERIED)) F336EFE 2 B0M 2 E
HEAE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIBIZEBEREA
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder interests  Other interests percentage
EEREER
REARE PN HftifEzs ERES
New Sense 243,804,000 - 28.08%
(Note 1 FfisE—)
Castfast Properties 165,000,000 - 19.01%
(Note 2 HffzE =)
Honford Investments - 165,000,000 19.01%
(Note 2 ffizE=)
Equity Trust - 408,804,000 47.09%

(Note 3 fizE=)
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EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont'd)
As at 31 March 2011 and 30 June 2011 (Cont’d)

Notes:

Equity Trust is deemed to be interested in the 243,804,000
Shares held by New Sense by virtue of the fact that Equity
Trust as trustee for The Ho Family Trust owns the entire issued
share capital of New Sense.

87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by Equity
Trust as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust.
The interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of
the Castfast Properties.

Equity Trust is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
New Sense and Castfast Properties by virtue of its acting as
the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011 and 30
June 2011, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
in Shares” above, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

FERR

R-CE——F-HJ=+—HAR=-ZF——FRXA
=+H (#&)

B

— - FEquity Trust/Z#FENew SenseZ #E E1TAX R
ZHo Family Trustz & 5F + #Equity Trustiig &
HAEZ S HNew SenseRFH 2243,804,000/% it
D2 e o

Z =EEMEDRZFITRA Z87%J FHonford
Investments&E z # A ° Honford InvestmentsZ
2P BT A T REquity TrusttE AR RE(ES
The Ho Family Trustz %% A# & ° Honford
Investments Z S E R IEEHE 2 EmE L o

m

Equity Trust##18 & LAThe Ho Family TrustZ 5%
ANFBDHANew Sense N 5218 B i E A5 A IR
AR o

BREXKREERESTHRAEREE NG
TBRABZBRGOER] FEEIN R ——
FZA=Z+—BEKR=_ZE——FXXA=Z+H I
EATHEBEARRD TZ&H&@@&@ZW*E
KB MZSERIARTIRE (BHEH) $
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS' INFORMATION BRELTRUE1351BAMREL ZES
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING BEREMN

RULES

Change of information of the Directors, which is required BIE EMRAIE135IBNGRETHRBRECZESE
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing B EhHE 5| I T -

Rules are set out below:

Name of Director

Detail of Change

EEHA SEFEE

Mr. Lee Shu Ki annual salary increased from HK$811,200 to HK$835,200 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2010

FRIHEA FHh811,2008 /LB hNES35,200/8 L (TREIEMERL) BT —ZTFt

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

(OELPES

Mr. So Wai Chun
IEEEE

Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
BRImAR T4

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

k=2 %t

Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
ARERFHE

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
PR 1k A

A—BAEX

was re-designated as the Non-executive Director and Vice Chairman and his
annual salary increased from HK$280,000 to HK$400,000 with effect from 1
May 2011

AERIENITEEFRBIEFE - FHH280,000/8TE MM E400,00087T - B=F
——FRA—B4AX

annual salary increased from HK$95,000 to HK$100,000 with effect from 1 July
2010
FHH95,000/ T ANZE 100,000 70 * BT —TFEA—BAK

annual salary increased from HK$95,000 to HK$100,000 with effect from 1 July
2010
FHrH95,000/8 T INZE100,0008 7T - BT —TFA—HEXN

annual salary increased from HK$57,000 to HK$60,000 with effect from 1 July
2010
FHH57,000/ T INE60,00087C * BT —TF+EA—BAM

resigned as the Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer with effect from
28 April 2011
HIBETEREERY B2 —FWOAZTN\BARK

was appointed as the Executive Director with effect from 1 November 2010

EZERMITEE BT TF+—A—BEX
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EFERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2011 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 18%
Five largest suppliers combined 39%
Sales
The largest customer 28%
Five largest customers combined 84%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 8 September 2011 to Friday, 9 September
2011 (both dates inclusive) during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2011, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday 7 September 2011.

ANNUAL GENERAL METING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 29 August 2011 to Friday, 2 September 2011 (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on 2 September 2011, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26
August 2011.

FTEEFRHER

BHE-_Z——F=A=1+—HIFE K&EH
EFrEHERAEFPZEBENEER LA

BE
&AHIER 18%
TR R A 39%
HE
BARF 28%
AREFHE 84%

Brbaish  REEZ  WENBEAXNESH
A AR B AN B HB5 % 2 IR HE B (E ]
PRAREEERHEEH LTS 2%

REREEFMEBFET

AKARER—_ZE——FNANB (BB &Hh
ANE (28R (2EEEMX) EEHER M
BEELFE WHAFEERBEE-_Z—F
“A=ZT—HUEFEZBRERRPKRE ZERE
FrEEZ s RhERXHEREBAZIRE A
RZZF——FNAtH (EH=) TFHEEFE=

DRREARRNARBBZIBRNDBEERE : F
RBEZTERAT I ABEEFEFA
BRI18IFAMPLITEI7TI2EGE »

BRREFASREFREBFERL

AKANREH-_ZE——FNA=-+1H (EH—)
EE——FNAZH(EHRH) (BHEEEMR
X)EERERNDBFELFE WA ZAHE
FEEeRN_—_E——FNA_BRITZREAF
ARERFRENER  FIEEZZRHOEEXH
BERABZKRE  BR-_E—FENA -+
B (28R TFOEEBE=1+2mM&XERARTNE
BZBRHDBPERLRER  BEPRELFELER
NE] it ARE BT 2F AER1835R A FAF
DM7H171286%F °

FANBERZERERAR ZF—8/—— FH

111



112

Report of the Directors

EFERE

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

3L % BEh IR

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

EERKEGT SR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 116 to 198, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whenever due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Independent Auditor’s Report

3L % BEh IR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2011, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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Balance Sheets

BERARE

As at 31 March 2011
R-E——H=HA=+—H

Group Company
REE b /N
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-TF —TTHhE ZB--§ —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TET FHET FEx FET
Note (restated) (restated)
BaE (B&3) (B&E3)
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights M A 6 62,697 63,826 71,060 - =
Property, plant and ME - BER
equipment s 7 486,768 472,387 436,768 - -
Investment properties REME 8 108,932 - - - —
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZIRE 9 - = - 665360 489,319
Investments in associated NN g g
companies 10 27,921 28,299 601 - -
Other non-current assets HitEmeEE 12 825 12,803 = - -
Deferred tax assets EREBIEEE 21 941 1,692 349 - -
688,084 579,007 508,778 665,360 489,319
Current assets MBEE
Inventories FE 13 317,706 269,636 227,062 - -
Trade receivables B 5 IR 12 378,929 416,150 419,064 - -
Amount due from A Ch NG
a subsidiary IR 9 = = = 11,000 7,000
Amount due from an Al h/NE]
associated company 1R FK 10 3,779 10,226 = - =
Prepayments, deposits and BAR - B K
other receivables HAh IR X 12 82,892 43,119 69,486 906 411
Time deposit EHER 14 96,000 91,312 - - -
Cash and bank balances B RIBITHER 15 196,954 328,003 641,440 431 375
1,076,260 1,158,446 1,357,052 12,337 7,786
Total assets BERE 1,764,344 1,737,453 1,865,830 677,697 497,105
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves KAEEREEA
attributable to the FEIERR A &
Company’s equity holders i
Share capital AR 16 86,810 57,710 57,710 86,810 57,710
Other reserves Hih#E 18 351,032 199,812 199,748 536,214 387,077
Retained earnings R
~ Proposed final dividend — BRI A 9,549 5,771 8,657 9,549 5,771
— Others — Hith 412,746 438,780 432,054 39,558 43,078
860,137 702,073 698,169 672,131 493,636
Non-controlling interests FEn R 40,513 39,403 43,026 - -
Total equity M 900,650 741,476 741,195 672,131 493,636
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Balance Sheets

BERARE

As at 31 March 2011
R-E——H=HA=+—H

Group Company
REH ¥ NG|
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF —TTHhF ZB-—-F —_T-TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TET FHET FEx FET
Note (restated) (restated)
BaE (B&%) (BF7))
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERE AR
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIEEE 21 5,340 4,742 6,880 = -
Provision for long service REREE
payments A 22 9,520 8,264 12,929 813 749
... 14860 13006 19,809 [ 813 7439
Current liabilities A=Y
Trade payables B S EMIRK 19 294,995 405,143 298,596 - -
Accruals and other FERTE R R HAL
payables FEIR X 19 165,404 166,171 175,341 4,753 2,720
Receipts in advance FEUIR SR 1,749 4,884 3,636 - -
Amount due to an FE{SEsE & N R
associated company IR 10 357 305 211 - -
Tax payable e 1A 21,445 18,638 21,107 - —~
Short-term bank borrowings ~ BHIRITEE 20 364,884 387,830 605,935 = =
848,834 982,971 1,104,826 4,753 2,720
Total liabilities BEEE 863,694 995977 1,124,635 5,566 3,469
Total equity and liabilities BnkaBeEE 1,764,344 1,737,453 1,865,830 677,697 497,105
Net current assets mEEERE 227,426 175,475 252,226 7,584 5,066
Total assets less current BEERITE
liabilities afE 915,510 754,482 761,004 672,944 494,385
Ho Cheuk Fai Lee Shu Ki
EIph R
Director Director
EF EF
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these MisE R ANAR S B T Sk < AR Bl

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

meERaR

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEE

2011 2010
=F——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Note (restated)
BEE (BEF)
Revenue N 23 2,605,399 2,245,172
Cost of sales SHEKA 24 (2,413,669) (2,093,154)
Gross profit EF 191,730 152,018
Distribution and selling expenses DI RHEER 24 (32,883) (27,276)
General and administrative expenses —MMITHE B 24 (127,133) (116,858)
Operating profit LR F 31,714 7,884
Finance income LR LN 26 2,267 3,312
Finance costs BT TSR AR 26 (6,871) (5,392)
Share of loss of associated companies — JE{EEEE AT 18 10 (40) (2,682)
Profit before taxation BB Rz A 27,070 3,122
Income tax (expenses)/credit 5% ()5t A 27 (4,737) 5,988
Profit for the year FE A 22,333 9,110
Attributable to: (L -
Equity holders of the Company KATIEZIZA A 21,223 12,497
Non-controlling interests SRR A 1,110 (3,387)
22,333 9,110
Earnings per share of profit RATHERRFB A
attributable to the equity e FR R T
holders of the Company
— Basic and diluted — HEANEE 29 3.4 cents #l 2.2 cents 7Bl
Dividends & E 30 9,549 5,771
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these X AARGRE gk 2 B ER D

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEREBRER

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-—ZT——F=A=+—-HLEFE

2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE THET FHET
Profit for the year FEF 22,333 9,110
Other comprehensive income/(expense): EAt2EUWA (BFA) :
Currency translation differences EEsmE =R 18 2,083 (591)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHM2EUA
Corbeyer S L (21)
Total comprehensive income for FE2ERBA
the year ke 24,416 8,519
Attributable to: FE1h -
Equity holders of the Company RANRIERIEHEA A 23,306 12,142
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AT 1,110 (3,623)
Total comprehensive income for FE2EMBA
the year EEE] 24,416 8,519
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these MERAGEMBRER ZEKE S

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AeEHRRBXR

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
KARRERHE ALY
Other Non-
Share reserves Retained  controlling Total
capital (Note 18) earnings interests equity
Hitfdfs FER
B (FfzE18) REER 35 BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL T FHL FHL THL
Balance at 1 April 2009 “TTHEMA—B 7R 57,710 199,748 440,711 43,026 741,195
Comprehensive income/(expense) ZEWA /(ER)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF /(ER) = = 12,497 (3,387) 9.110
Other comprehensive expense Htv2EER
Currency translation differences ElmEER - (355) - (236) (591)
Total comprehensive (expenselincome 2 () AR D B 6ol i
Transaction with owners HEREEARS
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE :
~ value of employee services -RERKBE - 419 - - 419
Dividend paid BIREE - - (8,657) - (8,657)
Total transaction with owners BERBEBAR BB - 419 (8,657) = (8,238)
Balance at 31 March 2010 ZZ-TEZA-T-RAZER 57,710 199,812 444,551 39,403 741,476
Balance at 1 April 2010 “T-ZEMA-BEH 57,710 199,812 444,551 39,403 741,476
Comprehensive income EXELON
Profit for the year EREN - - 21,223 1,110 22,333
Other comprehensive income HivZEBA
Currency translation differences ERHEER - 2,083 - - 2,083
Total comprehensive income  REMA®E S ARz LD
Transaction with owners HERREARS
Issue of shares R 4T 29,100 145,500 = = 174,600
Reduction of reserves in connection  AEUEENB A A2 R
with the acquisition of a subsidiary — (Pfiz¥31)
(Note 31) = = (37,708) - (37,708)
Employee share option scheme: EERERETS :
~ value of employee services - EERBEE - 3,637 - - 3,637
Dividend paid B E = = (5,771) - (5,771)
Total transaction with owners HESHEAR S LS 29,100 149,137 (43,479) - 134,758
Balance at 31 March 2011 “E——FZA=t-Hz&# 86,810 351,032 422,295 40,513 900,650
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these MIEE AANAR & B TSk 2 B A ER (D

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERaRER

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEE

2011 2010
e —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Note (restated)
BaE (BE7)
Cash flows from operating activities RESTEEN VIS TRE
Profit before taxation MR B2 BE A 27,070 3,122
Share of loss of associated FEIRER & AR 2 B
companies 40 2,682
Depreciation of property, W - BELRREZ
plant and equipment e 49,355 47,047
Amortisation of land use rights b {sF AR 2 A S 1,129 1,221
Share-based compensation expense AR AR S A~ R B .
4 3,637 419
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BEK
plant and equipment Bl it
(ozs) 1,609 (658)
Gain on disposal of land use rights H &+t {E AR
sk - (845)
Reversal of provision for B 5 RHMEK
impairment of trade and IRFOREER <
other receivables o] #3 (4,466) =
Provision for obsolete and PREE RBHTE LR
slow moving inventories 4,592 3,667
Provision/(reversal of provision) RHRSSEE
for long service payments (2 B #) 1,383 (4,665)
Interest expenses FELH 6,871 5,392
Interest income B WA (2,267) (3,312)
Operating profit before working LEESEERIZ
capital changes R 88,953 54,070
Inventories 7Es (52,662) (46,241)
Trade receivables Z 5 ER K 41,687 2,914
Prepayments, deposits and RS ek
other receivables H A EUTIR R 702 13,564
Amount due from an associated JE Lt & A BIR 5K
company 6,447 (10,226)
Trade payables B S IR (110,148) 106,547
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R EHAL
FERTIR SR (842) (9,170)
Receipts in advance TEUIR K (3,135) 1,248
Amount due to an associated FEJ B 2 BIIR K
company 52 94
Cash (used in)/generated from e (A, EXx
operations ZBe (28,946) 112,800
Interest paid EAFE (6,871) (5,392)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBREH (703) (6,219)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REBBNER 122 6,257
Long service payments paid ENRBREE (127) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from EES (FTA)/
operating activities EEZFR® (36,525) 107,446
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERaRER

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEE

2011 2010
—E2——-F —_ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Note (restated)
BEE (BE5])
Cash flows from investing activities KEEHZRETRE
Purchase of property, plant and NEYE BEK
equipment B (64,918) (82,893)
Purchase of investment properties REREME (1,575) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  MEM
plant and equipment R FTISE 571 885
Proceeds from disposal of HE T HFERE L
land use rights FriS 5K - 6,858
Increase in investment in associated by )i NE] g
companies ®E = (30,380)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31) U B B BB A R
(B¥EE31) 115 -
Interest received EUF S 2,267 )12
Increase in time deposit 0 7E BATF 3K (4,688) (91,312)
Net cash used in investing activities K& ESFTA
W FH (68,228) (193,530)
Cash flows from financing activities BB LIRS RE
New bank borrowings FiRTTEE 940,605 647,200
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITEE (961,605) (814,500)
Decrease in trust receipts bank loans BAMEFEWE
RITERK (1,946) (50,805)
Dividends paid RS (5,771) (8,657)
Net cash used in financing activities REEEFTRAZ
IH 4 HEE (28,717) (226,762)
Net decrease in cash and RekReEEDZ
cash equivalents FRAD (133,470) (312,846)
Cash and cash equivalents at year FYzRe M
beginning BE&EEM 328,003 641,440
Effect of foreign exchange rate ANEE [ R B Bf) 2 2 B
changes 2,421 (591)
Cash and cash equivalents FEZHER
at year ended BeZEEY 15 196,954 328,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of computer
casings, office automation products, video cassette
housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and provision of
electronic manufacturing services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), unless otherwise
stated, and have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28 June 2011.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

1 —RER
EFERERERAT ([AAF]) REWBA
A (ABIAEE]) FERERERHETH
IR WAEXEES B EIR EA
ERRSBHBERNEEFEERTER -

ARBR—NMNANEFETAZTLERBRES
- #r=EEiik = Claredon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

ARBZEBOR—NANARET—A+NBERE
BHARXSMARIRERET

HEMBBRRATETE®R (BRIEXBHA) -
HEMBEHRRECKHESTEE _T——FH
T N\BHAETIE -

2 EESTHRREE

RAENREMBRREA 2 E RS EREIAN
T BRRBHBI - WEBREMZHR P
BEENERER -

2.1 wEEE

A BHREARREFTEMHHRELEAN ([F
BUBEL ) - RIRE SR KNAERE

MUENEB U BEAN M BEREAFTEEMAS
TS ENFTEEEBERALE
Bzt BRBRETPITEEAE - FRIEH
M mEEMIE 85 - 305 kYRS MER
REBEARKRMEET 2 EIE - M T4 HEE -

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(@) The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the Group

HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2010
in accordance with the effective date and transitional
provisions of the amendment. The Group has reassessed
the classification of unexpired leasehold land and land
use rights as at 1 April 2010 on the basis of information
existing at the inception of those leases, and recognised
the leasehold land in Hong Kong as finance lease
retrospectively. As a result of the reassessment, the Group
has reclassified the leasehold land in Hong Kong from
operating lease to finance lease.

The land interest of the Group that is held for own use
is accounted for as property, plant and equipment and is
depreciated from the land interest available for its intended
use over the lease term.

The effect of the adoption of this amendment is as
follows:

2 EESTERBE#)

2.1 REEE (F)

(@) AFBELEFRAL T ERRER 2 EET

REFBEHENT (BF]) 2ERA MBS
BMEIR  WEFTREEHRAR T —FF
MA—BXZRFARFREHAR - AEREZRE
HERBR < RBER  EFFHE_FT—F
FUA-—BAREREELHWE T HMEREZ D
B UEPERABTLECHEL W ARERE -
ERHEE  AREC KB EHEL R EN
EBMHOBRARENRE -

AEEFIEARZ TS ARBYE - W5
Nk TRt HERERERIZEEL
HEHFHRINE -

RALLIERI 2 EMT ¢

As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 1 April

2011 2010 2009

—E——F —T-TF —TTNF

=A=+—-H =A=+—H MH—H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT T FHT
Decrease in leasehold land and &+ &+ fE A2

land use rights A (982) (1,009) (1,036)
Increase in property, plant and WS R N2 g

equipment 982 1,009 1,036

The adoption of this amendment also resulted in an
increase in depreciation of property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$27,000 (2010: HK$27,000) and a
decrease in amortisation of leasehold land and land use
rights of the same amount for the year ended 31 March
2011 and 31 March 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(@) The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the Group (Cont'd)

HK-Int 5, “Classification by the borrower of a term loan
that contains a repayment on demand clause”, requires
a term loan to be classified as current or non-current
liability by reference to the rights and obligations. As a
result of the reassessment, the Company has reclassified
certain long-term bank borrowings to short-term bank
borrowings.

The effect of the adoption of this interpretation is as
follows:

2 EESHERREE #)

2.1 REEE (EF)

(@) AEBUERAATELRERZEET
(%)

FEnBs [ERAYESRBREEGRZE
HEFZAR] AHMERTRRESLREETD
BERBEIFERDEE REHFHEER AR
B MO RBRTEESHOBA/EHRITE
& o

RtRBzEE0T

As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 1 April

2011 2010 2009

—E——F —E-FF ZETNF

=A=+—H =A=+—H mA—H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T THT FHT
Decrease in long-term bank REBRITIER B

borrowings (70,900) (76,300) (118,700)
Increase in short-term bank REHRSRTTE R 2 12 0

borrowings 70,900 76,300 118,700

HKAS 7, “Statement of Cash Flow"”, requires that only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the
balance sheet can be classified as investing activities.

BEETERN7 [R2REXR] XHRAR
BERERTHEARBEE THEIBARK
BEE -

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEZSTHERE #)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 21 RYMEE (F)

(b)  New and amended standards, and interpretations (b) SER-ZF—ZFFPIH—HZEEFLE

Zéﬂﬁ#ﬂffﬁr% 16 23 iy 51 7N 5 [3]
BRI AT REEETERIRZFE -

mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2010 but not currently
relevant to the Group

126

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Current/non-current BB AR BB T A RE
classification of convertible (1&31) ERB DA
instruments

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Classification of expenditures EbesH L7 DEAEREELS M
on unrecognised assets (1&3])

HKAS 18 (Amendment) Determining whether an BBEETERNS EETTIRELEL
entity is acting as a (f83T) ZEAHRIEA
principal or as an agent

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of rights issues %E:/( @”‘EJSEE 132 HAE 48

1857

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Unit of accounting for BE@ET4HI36 EmERENR
goodwill impairment test (1&31) SOIRE

HKAS 38 (Amendment) Additional consequential BB G AR BB RS ZER3
amendments arising (1&7]) (8HER]) EAE 2 &I

from HKFRS 3 (revised) and

MEREER - METE

measuring the fair value of EEBEREEZ
an intangible asset acquired BmEEERTE
in business combination
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedge items ?7\(%@5%2?@%39 EEEEHIER
1857
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time adoption of HKFRSs BB IR SR VG RN
(&4&7T) H2H|

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional exemptions for BB RS R BIRENE 2 BINAR
first-time adopters (1&3])

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group cash-settled BB R EAER2 SBUBREHEE A
share-based payment (1&3]) BinRER
transactions TRRS

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations E/(% Bﬁkﬂ%i&m] %66

g<«{ uT

HKFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-current Assets Held for BB ETRE RS BEGEZIERDEE
Sale and Discontinued (1&3T) AR PR ETE
Operations

HKFRS 8 (Amendment) Disclosure of information BB B HREAERS DEEBEZERZHE
about segment assets (1&37)

HK(FRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of embedded B8 (BRI BHRE MASTAETAZ &
derivatives “EZET)

— 29

HK(FRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment 55 (BRI EmRE BN ERFIRE

in a Foreign Operation REZEY)
— 216

HK(FRIC) = Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash 55 (BRI EmE MATEE D

Asset of Owners “EZEY) FREEE
—2E17

HK(FRIC) = Int 18 Transfers of Assets from B (BRI BERE REEEEE

Customers “EZET)
— %18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

() New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

The following new standards,

amendments and

interpretations have been issued and are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1

April 2011

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKAS 34 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Revised)
HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) -

Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendment)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 19

Presentation of financial
statements (effective on or
after 1 January 2011)

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets (effective
on or after 1 January 2012)

Related party disclosures
(effective on or after
1 January 2011)

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
(effective on or after
1 July 2010)

Interim financial reporting
(effective on or after
1 January 2011)

Limited exemption from
comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first time
adopters (effective on or
after 1 January 2011)

Business combinations
(effective on or after
1 July 2010)

Financial Instruments Disclosures
(effective on or after
1 January 2012)

Financial Instruments
(effective on or after
1 January 2013)

Fair value of aware credit
(effective on or after
1 January 2011)

Prepayment of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
(effective on or after
1 January 2011)

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
(effective on or after
1 July 2010)

2 EESTHEREBE#)

2.1 RBEE (E)

(© DKL AE BT HEIERFRAZ E L

.2 FT2EA -

ATE Az &R &

ISR

1EFT Rz FE

REB

AR T ——FHA - HARZEMIAZ T BF

EERA

BB ER
(&3T)

BB ERI34
(£3T)

(ki)

BBV HHREERI3

(EIEFT)

BRM RS
(K1E7T)

ARG RELER9

A% (ERHBRS

Z2EZLEg)
—#%E13

B8 (BRM GRS

2EZEE)

— 2814 ({B8E])
&5 (BB BRE

ZEZE®)
—#E19

BBMBHRELELN

A7

MBHRER 2]
(B=F——F
—A—BaZRER)

EFEFIA ¢ YOl AERE

BE (R-T—=F
—RB—BskzEE®)
RaHE
(A=Z—F
—A—B®Hz2EBER)
AHMEBT KRR
(A=ZE—ZF
+A—BszEER)
RHART IS 3R
(A= —F
—A—Bsz L)
BB EREER7
%4 R= N
RRAEBRELRR
(A=Z—F
—A—B®z®BER)
¥BE6t
(H=ZE—ZF
+tA—B8zEBER)
ﬁﬂlﬂﬁ%
(A=ZE—=F

—ﬂ E&Z&E&)
EIE

<m =F
—RA— HiZ&Eﬂ)
BEES 2 AFE
(A=ZE——F
—A—BHzBER)
HEESHRT 2 BANK
(=%
—B—Bsz®BER)

PAERS T AEA
SHAR

(=T —FTF
tA—ARZREXR)

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation
(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(@) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2 EEETHEREBE ®)

2.2 #HAwRE (&)
(a) HWEBRAE (&

BECHEBWHBE HEMAIFFERESR - ARE
WETER i EREBE R FE B
BARBREMBENHRFEERATFEZIH
B IREE -BREBEMS - A%EEE
RITBEAMBARFEEL AV E ZERE
EHEGAEEmPaRTER -

SEARBZHAZRS BHERERLET
A3 - RERBBEITTUALEHE -HEBRARZ
S BRERFTEHELNE  UERELAEE
RN ZHRTE 2 -

(b) HEIFERERZLS

AEEGHENERERET IR HRBER
SERSHAEEETIRS - KRB FEBHER
ZREE - BT 2 (A4 (B EL AR BE e 5 P UK BB
MBARFEERAE L ZHECE SR - [
FERERCREZ W BRI CREE R
o

EEETBREZNEXEARE N £ ER
ZIEARBEREFRAEEQRTVE KEEZ
BB ERaTER A TESRRERE IR
BARME 2MMIREE ERBE  a2%
TREE ° I ZATEE AL 2 ERA T iR
ZEMBBBEOAKECERREERBEEM
BE - EERZFZAEEMES 2@kt i’
R BB NEERE

e 2 SR ARARBNREERAZE
B RERLHIK 2 EEMERS 2maET
ERzBREFOREED (WEE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net
of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars (HK$),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “finance income
or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within
"other (losses)/gains — net”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available for
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as
available for sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The annual
rates used for this purpose are:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings 2% to 4%
Fixtures and leasehold improvements 8% to 12%
Machinery 6% to 15%

Moulds and tooling 15%
Furniture and computer equipment 15% to 33.33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6  Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plants and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.5.

2.7 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plants and buildings are situated for periods
varying from 10 to over 50 years. Amortisation of land use
rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of the land use rights.

2.8 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the Group or for sale in the ordinary
course of business, is classified as investment property.
Investment property also includes property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases.
Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating
lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs incurred for the purpose of acquiring,
constructing or producing a qualifying investment property
are capitalised as part of its cost. Borrowing costs are
capitalised while acquisition or construction is actively
underway and cease once the asset is substantially
complete, or suspended if the development of the asset is
suspended. After initial recognition, investment property
is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods, such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Valuations
are performed as at the balance sheet date by professional
valuers who hold recognised and relevant professional
qualifications and have recent experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued.
These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts in
the financial statements. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or
for which the market has become less active continues to
be measured at fair value.

Investment property under construction for future use
as investment property will also be measured at fair
value with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the fair value can
be determined reliably. However, where the fair value is
not reliably determinable, the property is measured at cost
until the earlier of the date construction is completed and
the date at which fair value become reliably determinable.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on
a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected
in respect of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of leasehold land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Investment properties (Cont’d)

The fair value of investment property does not reflect
future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance
the property and does not reflect the related future
benefits from this future expenditure other than those a
rational market participant would take into account when
determining the value of the property.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Investment properties are derecognised
either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal.

2.9 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or
associated companies is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary or associated
company in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.13 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and associated companies operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17 Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

Group companies operate several pension schemes.
The plans are generally funded through payments to
trustee administered funds. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

() Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date
on high quality corporate bonds which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to the
consolidated income statement in current period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(d) Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations are
recorded as a liability and charged to the consolidated
income statement when the Group is contractually
obliged or when there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.18 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period);and

o excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Share-based payments (Cont'd)

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related

receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(c) Management income

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised when the service is rendered.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24 Comparative figures

The Group adopts the classification of the following
financial statement items in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated balance sheet with effect
from 1 April 2010:

o Provision for overseas tax expense for the year
ended 31 March 2011 and the reversal of over-
provision for overseas tax expense in prior years
amounting to HK$1,568,000 and HK$18,824,000
respectively are classified as income tax expenses
in the consolidated income statement. The
corresponding provision overseas tax expense for
the year ended 31 March 2010 and the reversal
of over-provision for overseas tax expense in
prior years amounting to HK$1,568,000 and
HK$5,723,000 respectively have been reclassified
from the financial statement item “general and
administrative expenses”.

. Provision for overseas taxation as at 31 March
2011 amounting to HK$3,713,000 is classified as
tax payable in the consolidated balance sheet. The
corresponding provision as at 31 March 2010 and
1 April 2009 amounting to HK$20,969,000 and
HK$25,124,000 respectively have been reclassified
from the financial statement item “accruals and
other payables”.

° “Cost of inventories” disclosed in prior years’
financial statements have been renamed as “raw
materials and consumables used”. In addition,
“changes in inventories of finished goods and work
in progress” amounting to HK$113,215,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2010 has been reclassified
from “Other expenses”.

Management considers that the current classifications
are more appropriate. Comparative information has been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates
and mitigates financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group's operating units. The Board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and cash management.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the
PRC and most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK dollars, United States
dollars (“US dollar”) and Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations
that are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. As HK dollars are pegged against US
dollar, management considers that the Group is mainly
exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to Renminbi.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. The Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk as at 31
March 2011. The conversion rate of Renminbi to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

At 31 March 2011, if HK dollars had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the Renminbi with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$2,064,000 higher/lower
(2010: HK$4,459,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
the net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Renminbi-denominated other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
which are primarily issued at variable rates. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2011, with all other variables held constant,
if the interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis-
point, the corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings will result in a net decrease/
increase in the Group's post-tax profit by approximately
HK$1,523,000 (2010: HK$1,619,000).
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e MERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group's credit
risk mainly arises from financial assets and deposits with
bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to the customers, including outstanding trade and other
receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only
independent parties with high credit rating are accepted.

Customers are assessed and rated based on the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. It performs
periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its customers. Other
receivables are assessed by reference to the historical
information about counterparty default rates. Individual
risk limits are set by management and the utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit limit was
exceeded during the year, and management does not
expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these relevant parties.

There is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group’s sales are made primarily to a few
key customers. As at 31 March 2011, the trade receivables
from five largest customers accounted for approximately
87% (2010: 90%) of the total trade receivables.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments, if any, are only
carried out with financial institutions of high reputation.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available at all time.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
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the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. EHEEIREERS o
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Less than Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2and5 years
BRER PR—F —ZWEF —ZREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FAT T
Group AEE
At 31 March 2011 R-E——F
=A=+—H
Trade payables ) ANLEN = 294,995 - -
Accruals and other payables [EtE A &
EL A & - R 3K - 144,588 - —
Bank borrowings RITEE 364,884 - - _
At 31 March 2010 (restated) N-ZT—FF
=A=+—8”
(BE&E75)
Trade payables 2 Z IR - 405,143 - -
Accruals and other payables fEEFE R K
E PR - IR 3K - 141,379 = -
Bank borrowings IRITEE 387,830 = - -
Company ¥ NN
At 31 March 2011 MR_E——F
—HA=+—H
Accruals and other payables [fExtE A &
EL A & -] IR 3K - 4,753 = =
At 31 March 2010 N-E—TF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and times deposits. Total capital is calculated
as equity, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus
net debt.

The Group's strategy, which was unchanged from prior
year, was to maintain an acceptable net gearing ratio. The
net gearing ratios at 31 March 2011 and 2010 were as
follows:
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2011 2010
—%——F b

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Total borrowings (Note 20) ®EE (MEE20) 364,884 387,830
Less: Time deposit (Note 14) B EEIERR (FiEE14) (96,000) (91,312)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15)  J& : 3B & MBS HEY (M3E15) (196,954) (328,003)
Net debt/(cash) FEE () 71,930 (31,485)
Total equity S RE 900,650 741,476
Net gearing ratio SFRITIEE L 8% -4%

3.3  Fair value estimation 3.3 AT EME

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade ﬁ%ﬁguﬂﬁ R K JE T IR SR 2 IR E (B F0 BR R (B 48
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation BRBETEOEATE - (EABEBEN 2B
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for BEAFEZMFERKEHNASRENLE
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future BB AR A8 2 M RIE 2 M REEIRET

contractual cash flows at the current market interest Ele
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives. It will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.

(b) Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.
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e MERRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(c) Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Employee benefits — share-based payments

The valuation of the fair value of the share options granted
requires judgment in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected on the shares, the
risk-free interest rate during the life of the options and the
number of share options that are expected to vest. Where
the outcome of the number of options that are vested
is different, such difference will impact the consolidated
income statement in the subsequent remaining vesting
period of the relevant share options.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into two
main operating segments. They are (i) metal and plastic
business; and (ii) electronic manufacturing services
business.

Others mainly comprise rental and management fee
income.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective. From a
products and services perspective, management assesses
the performance of metal and plastic business, and
electronic manufacturing services business. And there is
further evaluation on a geographic basis (Japan, Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Asia (excluding Japan, Hong
Kong and Mainland China), North America and Western
Europe). Management assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on operating profit. Segment
information provided to management for decision making
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
financial statements.
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZoEER &)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2011 are BE_Z——F=-A=1+—HLEFEZ2HIH*
as follows: BT
2011
—E——F
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
heBE BErE¥E
ES) RIEH Hit e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FHERT FET
Segment revenues 2 BB
Total segment revenue DEBUR A LBEE 1,048,392 1,676,091 14,298 2,738,781
Inter-segment revenue 7 EBFEUA (133,382) - - (133,382)
Revenue from REIBEF 2
external customers WA 915,010 1,676,091 14,298 2,605,399
Gross profit S 106,696 70,744 14,290 191,730
Distribution and selling DIERHEEERAR
expenses and general and — R RITRER
administrative expenses (94,615) (65,134) (267) (160,016)
Operating profit eviny 12,081 5,610 14,023 31,714
Operating profit includes: KRR IE -
Depreciation e 27,776 21,579 - 49,355
Amortisation B8N 565 564 = 1,129
Provision for obsolete PRERBHTE
and slow-moving EE
inventories 3,056 1,536 - 4,592
Reversal of provision for 85 REAM
impairment of trade and JEM IR FRIE
other receivables gz (363) (4,103) - (4,466)
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 SWER (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2010 are HE_Z—ZETF-A=+—HIEFEZHH*
as follows: BT

2010 (restated)
—ZT-TF (BEEF)

Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
FEBR BFEX
7% RIS HAth aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&L THET AT THT
Segment revenues 2 BB
Total segment revenue DEBUL A A2 5E 958,741 1,403,883 4,408 2,367,032
Inter-segment revenue o 2BEIU A (121,860) = = (121,860)
Revenue from REINBRFEZ
external customers WA 836,881 1,403,883 4,408 2,245,172
Gross profit S 103,284 44,326 4,408 152,018
Distribution and selling NIEREEERK
expenses and general and —MRRITHRER
administrative expenses (71,378) (72,756) - (144,134)
Operating profit/(loss) R T(E8) 31,906 (28,430) 4,408 7,884
Operating profit/(loss) R R (E518)
includes: B -
Depreciation e 23,949 23,098 — 47,047
Amortisation BN 638 583 = 1,221
Provision for/(reversal of [RE MR E
provision for) obsolete and %4 (&
slow-moving inventories E1BZ:) 5,318 (1,651) = 3,667
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d)

A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before taxation
is provided as follows:

5 SHEHR (&)

RERAAMERT RGO

2011 2010

—E——F —T-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

(restated)

(BE5)

Operating profit KR 31,714 7,884
Finance income B TSI 2,267 3,312
Finance costs B RER R (6.871) (5,392)
Share of loss of associated companies JEILEE AR 2 BB (40) (2,682)
Profit before taxation FR 58RI 2 A 27,070 3,122

The segment revenue by geographical information is
analysed as follows:

RIBHWEER D BBWADTAT

2011 2010

—E-—F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Japan =N 173,390 172,198

Hong Kong B 350,952 434,752

Mainland China el NS 667,983 619,036
Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and TN (TEREAR - FEK

Mainland China) B A ) 303,560 258,257

North America EZEM 212,600 251,695

Western Europe [ris] 2 896,914 509,234

Total revenue NGk 2,605,399 2,245,172

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the
final destination of shipment is located.

The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2011, the
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted
for approximately 84% (2010: 87%) of the Group’s total
revenue.
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows:

6 THERAE-ZFXKEH

AEER T ERAEs EaARBNEERE
TR - REREFESTAT ¢

2011 2010 2009
—E——F —E-TF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT
(restated) (restated)
(2&75) (2&E75))
Net book amount at beginning of FUMRENFE - 22
the year, as previously reported 64,835 72,096 46,873
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 BB A S ER|7
(Amendment) (1&85]) z o2& (1,009) (1,036) (1,063)
Net book amount at beginning of FUMREFE - BES)
the year, as restated 63,826 71,060 45,810
Transfer from deposit paid FFEEMERSEA
in prior year - = 26,400
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31)  UeBEFMIBAE (FFFE31) 75,659 - -
Transfer to investment properties EHEIRE Y (75,659) - -
Disposal He = (6,013) =
Amortisation charged to cost of sales  ##H5T ASHE R A (1,129) (1,221) (1,150)
Net book amount at end of the year  FEEIRE FE 62,697 63,826 71,060
Cost, as previously reported KA - B2 72,399 72,399 78,587
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 KBRS TEANT
(Amendment) (187]) 22 (1,663) (1,663) (1,663)
Cost, as restated KA - 2E7 70,736 70,736 76,924
Accumulated amortisation, RIEEE  E2W
as previously reported (8,720) (7,564) (6,491)
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 BN E e 7
(Amendment) (1&83]) z o2& 681 654 627
Accumulated amortisation, RIFEE - 287
as restated (8,039) (6,910) (5,864)
Net book amount at end of the year  FEIRE FE 62,697 63,826 71,060
Leases of 10 to 50 years FEIRRE — ER10E50F
in Mainland China 61,782 62,893 70,109
Leases of over 50 years KR — HERS0F M L
in Mainland China 915 933 951
62,697 63,826 71,060

The land use rights located in Mainland China is held
under lease terms of 45 to 57 years expiring in April 2043

to October 2062.
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE-BEERE-FEH
- GROUP
Furniture
Leasehold and
Leasehold Construction- improvements Toolsand ~ computer
land  Buildings in-progress and fixtures  Machinery  equipment  equipment Total
gL BF REIR nEER e  BERTE BAREKZE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T T Thn Thr Thx i T
At 31 March 2009 “EENFZA=t-H
Cost, as previously A B2
reported - 273113 26,074 102,590 424,905 24,553 55,608 906,843
Effect of adoption of FEkes T
HKAS17 (Amendment) (fg3T) 278 1,663 - - - - - - 1,663
Cost, as restated A BES 1,663 273113 26,074 102,590 424,905 24553 55,608 908,506
Accumulated depreciation,  Z7EHE - 225
as previously reported - (46,069) - (48,898) (315,902) (15,364) (44.878) (@n.1)
Effect of adoption of Rhaaes T
HKAS17 (Amendment) (Bi]) 252 (627) - - - - - - (627)
Accumulated depreciation,  Z7EHE + EE]
as restated (627) (46,069) - (48,898) (315,902) (15,364) (44.878) (471,738)
Net ook amount, IREE 2 E5
as restated 1,036 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 436,768
Year ended 31 March 2010 EZ-%-Zf&
ZR=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount, R S(E
as previously reported BER - 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 435,732
Effect of adoption of Rnakeszan
HKAS17 (Amendment) (fgiT) 278 1,036 - - - - - - 1,03
Opening net book amount,  EFIIREH(E
as restated 2Ej 1,036 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 436,768
Additions WNE - 18,536 24,672 5,208 27,161 2577 4739 82,893
Transfer inflout) g\/(H) - 18,990 (19,025) 35 (88) 90 ) -
Disposals & - - - - (217) - (10) (227)
Depreciation Vi 27) (6,084) - (7.831) (24,258) (2,818) (6,029) (47,047)
Closing net book amount ~~ EARIEE%fE 1,009 258,486 31,721 51,104 111,601 9,038 9428 412,387

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 WE- -HBERSZE-TKE (&)
— GROUP (Cont'd)
Furniture
Leasehold and
Leasehold Construction-  improvements Toolsand ~ computer
land  Buildings in-progress and fixtures  Machinery  equipment  equipment Total
HELH B¥ HBIR V] HE  EARIE RARSKRE At
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T T Tin TiEn Tirn Fin T
At 31 March 2010 “E-EE-f=1-8
Cost, as previously reported ~ FK > B2 - 310,639 31,721 107,833 449,555 27,236 60,243 987227
Effect of adoption of REReRElT
HKAS17 (Amendment) (B3]) 272 1,663 - - - - - - 1,663
Cost, as restated A BES 1,663 310,639 31,721 107,833 449,555 27236 60,243 988,890
Accumulated depreciation,  ZFEHE - 223
as previously reported - (52,153) - (56,729) (337,954) (18,198) (50,815) (515,849)
Effect of adoption of FhakesEr
HKAS17 (Amendment) (fB3]) 778 (654) = = = = - = (654)
Accumulated depreciation  2iEHE + EE7 (654) (52,153) - (56,729)  (337,954) (18,198) (50815) (516,503
Net book amount REZE 1,009 258,486 31,721 51,104 111,601 9,038 9,428 472,387
Year ended 31 March 2011 HZ-F-—-%
ZAZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount, ~ H¥IRESE  E2H
as previously reported - 258,486 31,721 51,104 111,601 9,038 9,428 471,378
Effect of adoption of FEReRElT
HKAS17 (Amendment) (fg3]) 72 1,009 - - - - - - 1,009
Opening net book amount, ~ HAIEEFE - &
as restated 1,009 258,486 31,721 51,104 111,601 9,038 9,428 472,381
Additions NE - 23238 639 11817 20,947 2,207 6,070 64,918
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ YEENBAA]
(Note 31) (Fzk31) - - 31,698 - - 187 M 32,69
Transfer to investment BERENE
properties - - (31,69 - - - - (31,69
Transfer in/{out) £ /(1) - 30,985 (31,876) 891 = = - =
Disposals HE = - - (1,685) (383) (87) (25) (2,180)
Depreciation Vil 27 (7.289) = (8,230) (24,836) (3,048) (5,869) (49,355)
Closing net book amount~~ SRIEEZ(E 9% 305420 184 53891 107,279 8,897 9815 486768
At 31 March 2011 “E-—-£Zf=1-H
Cost R 1,663 364,864 484 117,184 464,358 29,955 62,842 1,041,350
Accumulated depreciation ZHNE (681) (59,444) - (63,293) (357,079) (21,058) (53,027) (554,582)
Net book amount REFE 982 305,420 484 53,891 107,279 8,897 9,815 486,768
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE- -BERSRE-TKEE &)
— GROUP (Cont'd)

Depreciation expense of HK$48,188,000 (2010: ¥r & 48,188,000 T (= = T F

HK$45,292,000) and HK$1,167,000 (2010: 45,292,000 7T) &1,167 ooo/%m(_% 2

HK$1,755,000) has been charged to cost of sales and & : 1,755,000 7T) D AIET AHEKR A K —

general and administrative expenses, respectively. RITHER -

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings at $E.E$Ei%ii@&@$ZT IR H IR E FE

their net book values are analysed as follows: DT
2011 2010
S —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(restated)
(BE5)
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, RA&EBFAZHE T RIET
held on leases between 10 to 50 years 102505 87 E 2,923 3,027
Buildings in Mainland China, RPBEAEREEF
held on leases between 10 to 50 years 10E50F B2 HE 301,114 254,049
Buildings in Mainland China, RABEREREETF
held on leases over 50 years ZiRS0F v HE 2,365 2,419
306,402 259,495
8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 8 REYXE-FKHE
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
Transfer from property, plant and equipment  E¥1% - BE &R EE A 31,698 =
Transfer from land use rights T R A 75,659 -
Additions during the year NE 1,575 -
Fair value at end of the year FEAFE 108,932 -
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Mainland China Rl RRE — HEHR10E505F 108,932 -

The investment properties are under construction and R RE R 2IREYETIRE A 40
located in Mainland China under lease term of 40 years FEEE-ZATFN\AL) 2+ AEMm
expiring in August 2050. BB -
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9  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 9 RHEBATAZKRE -A2F
— COMPANY
2011 2010
—g——% -3-=%&
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Unlisted share investments, at cost IE TR D 2 AR E 193,285 193,285
Less: provision for impairment of investment & : RIB AR Z RERE
in subsidiaries i (3,087) (3,087)
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note i) FEUIBT B A RIR R (B ki) 475,162 299,121
665,360 489,319
Amount due from a subsidiary (Note ii) JE B B 2 RIBR 3R (B &Eii) 11,000 7,000
Notes: BiaE
(i) The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries represent 0) EUH B AR 2 IERBIRRRER AR RIRHAES
funding provided by the Company to the respective AR A R B R 2 B AR - IR AR
subsidiaries with a similar nature as equity, and are unsecured, - AHAERTARKRTZEAEE - R
interest-free and not repayable within the next twelve months BITRER -
and are denominated in HK dollars.
(ii) The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free (if) FEUCPHT B A RIIR R AR - REH R S EESK
and repayable on demand and is denominated in HK dollars. BHEE - RABTTABENM -

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-E——F=A=+—HXENBRARIZER :

2011 are:
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
EaiiioAve: LY
B EEERER TEXRBREE Y ERTRESRE BREE
Karrie International (B.V.l.) British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, Ordinary share of US$100 (i) 100%
Limited limited liability company the British Virgin Islands LAAR10037T()
EBRAHBEREMALNR REER ZBRLHS
Castfast Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong, limited liability  Plastic injection moulding operations, Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Limited company Hong Kong LiR100757T
EEBBREERAR EREREMEAR REBBIE  BE Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$990,200 (ii)
BREEELR

990,2007% 7 (i)
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

— COMPANY (Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

9 RHEBRAAZKRE -A2F @)

Principal activities and

Particulars of

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
MR IR
B EERRER TEXBREE LN ERTRESRE BEEE
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacture of computer casings, ~ Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Limited company office automation products, LAR100757T
EEZE2B R EREREEAT moulds and plastic and metal Non-voting deferred share of =
ARAT] parts; provision of electronic HK$10,000 (i)
manufacturing services, property % ZHEEEA
holding and investment holding, 10,0007 7t (i)
Mainland China
SUEBRINR - BREXEEM
BEARZEBEREEIHM : Rt
BTEXRIRS - HAENER
REEZR - PEAE
Castfast Magnetics Moulding  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacture of plastic injection Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company moulds and metal stamping dies, & #EAR1057T
EENETEBER AR BRBREAAH Hong Kong Non-voting deferred share of =
SETBEARSBNERS - HK$30,000 (i)
&R BREERIER
30,0007 7z(ii)
Grandway Investment Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
(Group) Limited company Mainland China EBER1ET
RERE (5E) BRRA  BEAREMEAR REER - hEARE
Hong Kong Hung Hing Metal  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacture and sale of metal parts, Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Manufacturing Company company Hong Kong LAAR10075 7T
Limited EBRAREMELA BEREE B - BF Non-voting deferred share of
BAGECEBRMARAR HK$250,000 (ii)
ERFEELTR
250,0007 7 (i)
Jiang Su Castfast Electronic ~ Mainland China, limited Manufacture of computer castings  Paid-up capital 100%
Technologies Company liability company office automation US$31,100,000 (iii)
Limited REEREEAR products and provision of EHER
IHREETRRERAR electronic manufacturing services, ~ 31,100,0003 7 (iii)
Mainland China
BUEBRINRI D E B E m R
BTEEAIRY - PEIAE
Kar Sharp Development Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited company Mainland China LTRk1BT
EHERAR LA BEEBRAEARA REER - PEIARE
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9  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 9 RHEBRAAZKRE -A2F @)
— COMPANY (Cont'd)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
MR IR
B EERRER TEXBREE LN ERTRESRE BHRE
Karrie Industrial Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacture and sale of video Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%
Limited company cassette housings, sale of LiAR1,000/57T
EHERERAR EBRREMELA computer casings, office Non-voting deferred share of =

automation products, plastic and HK$5,000,000 (ii)
metal parts, metal stamping dies, R ZEELTR
plastic injection moulds, 5,000,000/ 7z(i)
Hong Kong

SUERSHERT IR
HEBRINR  BRENEER
ZRREBHMN  TERAK
tEHERA BB

Karrie Logistic Company Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$2 100%
Limited company Mainland China LRk2ATT

FAMRERAR BEBRARERA REER - hEAE

Karrie Technologies Company  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacturing and sales of plastic ~ Ordinary share of 100%
Limited company parts, sales of metal stamping HK$30,000,000

EARERBARRA EBEREEAR dies and plastic injection moulds  E3@f%30,000,0007 T

and provision of electronic
manufacturing services,
Hong Kong
BUENHERR A HELE
FEEE FBEA R
RESFEXRIRE - B8

Karpo Technologies Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%
FENBRBRAR company Mainland China TER1,00087T
BEEBBEMAT REER - REIARE Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$1,000,000 (i)
BRFERTR

1,000,000/ 7t (ii)
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9  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 9 RHEBRAAZKRE -A2F @)
— COMPANY (Cont'd)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
MR IR
B EERRER TEXBREE LN ERTRESRE BHRE
Karwin Engineering Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Design, manufacture and sale of Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company computer casings, office LRRI10BTT
RERMIRERRA EREREEAT automation products; sale of Non-voting deferred share of ~
plastic and metal parts, metal HK$100 (i)
stamping dies, plastic injection  EIRZEEITMR
moulds, Hong Kong 1007 7
Rat ~ WERHEEERIMNR -
WMAENGRER  HELR
ReBHH  REECBPEEA
RFERE - B
Karwin Technologies The United States of America, Provision of consultancy services Ordinary share of US$100 100%
Incorporation limited liability company to group companies, the United ERAT100ET
EEEREEAR States of America
REBEARGTARELR - X6
Kings Dragon Investment Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$2 100%
(HK) Limited company REER B8 L@Ek2AT
SEERE (B8) BRDA  BEEREARA
Kings Horse Investment Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Property holding, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company BEME B8 EEA10BTT
YEREBRAR BEBEREEAR Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$10,000 (ii)
BREEELR
10,0007 7%
Kwong Hing Computer Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Property holding, Mainland China Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Metallic Components company BEME - PRIk EEA100787T
Limited BEEEBEEAT Non-voting deferred share of -
ERERCBRIERAR HK$1,250,010 (i
BRFERTR
1,250,010 7T (ii)
Sagem Karrie Technologies ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Provision of electronic Ordinary share of 60%
(Hong Kong) Company company manufacturing services, HK$110,000,000
Limited BEBERELLA Hong Kong 3EA2110,000,000/87C

RATERR (BR) ARAT]
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9  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 9 RHEBRAAZKRE -A2F @)
— COMPANY (Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
SRR S B
28 LEERER TTERREENY BRTREARAK BEEE
RESEESIEZARAT  Mainland China, limited Property holding, Mainland China ~ Paid-up capital 100%
liability company REME - PEARE HK$24,000,000 (iv)
HEAREERH B #1& 724,000,000 7(v)
BEZNEHAERE Mainland China, limited ~ Property development and Paid-up capital 100%
BRAR liability company management, Mainland China US$15,000,000 (v)
REAREERT MERERER  PEKE B #& 715,000,000 7T(v)
Notes: P EE -
(i) The shares of Karrie International (BVI) Limited are held (i) Karrie International(B.V.l.)Limited Z B&1n T34 A
directly by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are AIEERES - EMME AR ZRG HA A EREE
held indirectly. A o
(ii) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. (if) BEREREERNIFAAREMES - 5Lk
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to ROEICERE TEESZRE - BRIFEH
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding NAIEBBRFRAESTERRERE 2 BEBB
up unless a sum of HK$200,000,000,000 has been distributed 200,000,000,000/8 7T : RBIZERMERESZ
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares. FERDIE
(ii) Jiang Su Castfast Electronic Technologies Company Limited (i)  IEHBEETEHRARDE D R BRI
is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland SEHEAINERSE  HEEHRARTF K=
China with an operating period of 50 years up to January THhNFE—HER -
2058.
(iv) HERTEFEEARAT is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise (v RERHESTEXARDIAD—RRBEAEMRY
established in Mainland China with an operating period of 25 SEBEEIINELE  HEEBRA-TAHF B
years up to 18 February 2030. ZE=TF A+ NRER °
(v) HEZNEEABERZEARAT is a wholly-owned foreign (v) E%%‘J@%K%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ*%q: B AP
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating PR ZEHERINERE  HEXHR AT +F -
period of 40 years up to 2 December 2049. RZZBOAF+=—A=BER °
(vi) None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any Vi) REEZZT——F=A=1+—RHLFEASHE
time during the year ended 31 March 2011. ARHEAME BT ZEEER -
(vi)  All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a financial (vii)  EKBARTERRE - AR BERER T ZHE

accounting year end of 31 December in accordance with the
local statutory requirements, which is not coterminous with
that of the Company. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group were prepared based on the management
accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve months ended
31 March 2011.

NRAZHBELEBAT-_A=+—H @BAQA
WA —B o NEB 248G BT IR IR FR R L [ 28
NEEE_T——F=—A=+—HIt+-@AZ
EIRIRABTAL ©
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10 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES - GROUP

10 REEATZRE - REM

2011 2010
— —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Share of net assets PEEETFE
Beginning of the year F1)) 28,299 601
Investment in an associated company NN s g - 30,380
Share of loss of associated companies FE(EH 2N T 2 B (40) (2,682)
Currency translation differences EBHQmEEZR (338) -
End of the year FE 27,921 28,299
Balance due from an associated company it YN
Amount due from an associated company FE U & A AR RN 3,779 10,226
Trade receivables E 5 IR 2,008 -
5,787 10,226
Amount due to an associated company JE TSt & A RIBR AR 357 305

The outstanding balances due from/to the associated
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, and are denominated in HK dollars.

The Group's share of the results of its associated
companies, all of which are unlisted, and its aggregated

assets and liabilities, are as follows:

RRLLEE N B M AR E R RN Z IR R
B PEAE - AEBRBEERE  RABT
REM -

AEBEREBERRCEE (B LDA
Al) > RREBEENBEWT

Attributable to the Group
EEEES
Place of % Interest
Particulars of issued  incorporation/ held
Name shares held establishment Assets  Liabilities  Revenues Loss indirectly
BEEE
£ FEERTRA /Rt {3 8f KA BE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHT  TET TR TER
2011
—2—F
TIS Karrie Technologies  Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited
(Hong Kong) HK$62,000,000 liability company
Company Limited () Z¥®i%62,000,00087T FHEBRETAH
RERER (BE)
AR 58,612 (31,208) 116,216 (29) 49%
Xiongguan Precision Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited
Metal Product HK$1,000,000 liability company
Company Limited ()~ E3@A%1,000,0008T AEERETAF
BERELEHm
BRAR() 681 (164) 644 (11) 40%
59,293 (31,372) 116,860 (40)

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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10 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED 10 REBEQT2RE — 458 (&)
COMPANIES — GROUP (Contd)

Attributable to the Group
REEES
Place of % Interest
Particulars of issued incorporation/ held
Name shares held establishment Assets Liabilities  Revenues Loss indirectly
ElEgeec]
£ RAEEETRA Rl P Ave:ik BE = WA B2 En
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET TET THEL
2010
—ET—FF
NEC Nagano Karrie Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited
Electronics Limited (i) HK$20,000,000 liability company
REAAEREANET  L@R20,0000008T EBEERETAR
ARAT() - - - - 30%
TIS Karrie Technologies  Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited
(Hong Kong) Company ~ HK$62,000,000 liability company
Limited () EiBAR62,000,0008T EEBREMEARF
REREE (BE)
ARAF() 36,228 (8,458) - (2,610) 49%
Xiongguan Precision Metal Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited
Product Company HK$1,000,000 liability company
Limited () LiEMR1,0000008T  BEEREERH
BERELEHm
ARAT() 655 (126) 515 (72) 40%
36,883 (8,584) 515 (2,682)
Note: PaE
(i) All these companies are indirectly held by the Company. (i) FZERNB AR ARIEERE -

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH 167
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 11 RENI>BEZEMIA
CATEGORY
Group
AEE
Loans and receivables
ER R B
2011 2010
—B——f —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Trade and other receivables (Note 12) B 5 REMEBIRIK (FIEE12) 450,746 444,419
Deposits (Note 12) &e (fiEE12) 6,605 23,443
Amount due from an associated JE B = R BIIR SR
company (Note 10) (PBF5E10) 3,779 10,226
Time deposit (Note 14) EHFER (Fi3E14) 96,000 91,312
Cash and bank balances (Note 15) RE RIRITEF (FFE15) 196,954 328,003
754,084 897,403

Financial liabilities

MEasE
2011 2010
—g—-& -—z-z%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Liabilities BfE

Trade and other payables (Note 19) B 5 REAMEMRR (FizE19) 460,399 571,314
Bank borrowings (Note 20) RITEE (Mi5E20) 364,884 387,830

Amount due to an associated FE{-THSE & R AR 5K
company (Note 10) (Mt3E10) 357 305
825,640 959,449
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 11 ®ZREPEz®MIE (&)

CATEGORY (Cont'd)

Assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 9)
Deposits and other receivables (Note 12)
Cash and bank balances (Note 15)

BE

FEUPH B X RINRFR (BTRE9)

1w R EAEBOIRK (FEE12)
Ae RRITHESF (HEE15)

Company
FiN/N
Loans and receivables

BRI EWIR
2011 2010
—E——F —T—FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
486,162 306,121
9206 411
431 375
487,499 306,907

Financial liabilities

g 3 =R
2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHAT
Liabilities BfE
Trade and other payables (Note 19) B 5 REMEMIRR (FIFE19) 4,753 2,720

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 12 BEFREWERR AR -ZE2R
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES H it FE YL R =X
Group Company
EE P N/N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —ZT——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TET
Trade receivables =Y N 385,560 427,247 - =
Other receivables H b fE YT bR 38 72,560 28,997 906 411
458,120 456,244 906 411
Less: Provision for B B S REAM
impairment of trade JEWUIR 5%
and other receivables TRE RS (7,374) (11,825) - -
450,746 444,419 906 411
Prepayments SEENE=N 5,295 4,210 - —
Deposits B"e 6,605 23,443 - =
11,900 27,653 - -
Less: Other non-current 8 B IERED
assets (Note) &E (M) (825) (12,803) = =
11,075 14,850 = _
461,821 459,269 906 411
Representing: K&
Trade receivables, =)
net of provision R A 378,929 416,150 - -
Prepayments, deposits ARNR - Rek
and other receivables, HAbFEUIR TR -
net of provision R 2 82,892 43,119 906 411
461,821 459,269 906 411

Note:  Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for purchase Bzt Hu3ERBEEREZEIEYE  BMERREYD
of property, plant and equipment. 4 -

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from 30
to 90 days. Aging analysis of trade and other receivables is
as follows:

12 BEFEWIRER AR BZER
HAibBUWIRR (&)

AEB—RETEP ZHBHH30HAE0AH - &
7 R EMEWIRK 2 Rk DT an T

2011 2010

= —TFF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 90 days 0z290H 444,512 429,838
91 to 180 days 912180H 5,071 9,313
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 4,468 15,359
Over 360 days 3608 KA £ 4,069 1,734
458,120 456,244

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximate their fair
values.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

B 5 RUIR « A - R M E A FE IR K
ZIREEEE A FERL -

B 5 RHEMEWRIRKE(EA T S8 RENT

Group Company
REH /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF —E——f —EETF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T T8 T
Trade and B 5 &EHAM
other receivables JEUR IR X
— HK dollar — BT 16,350 10,496 906 411
— US dollar — %70 367,381 423,920 - -
— Singapore dollar — BT - 5 - -
— Renminbi — AR¥ 74,389 21,823 - —
458,120 456,244 906 411
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is as follows:

B 5 M EAMERIRTREERZZENT

2011 2010

—E-—F —E-ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Beginning of the year F4) 11,825 11,825

Currency translation differences BEEmE=R 15 -

Reversal of provision for impairment BB 2 2 [B1 B

(included in general and (BER—K R

administrative expenses) THER) (4,466) =

End of the year FE 7,374 11,825

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expense in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash. The directors are of the opinion
that adequate provision for uncollectible trade and other
receivables has been made in the financial statements.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due
are not considered as impaired except for customers which
are in unexpected difficult economic situations.

As of 31 March 2011, trade receivables of HK$53,092,000
(2010: HK$38,239,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relates to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believe that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in the credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
aging of these trade receivables are as follows:

HEMERKER 2 RIMEBE BREESRS
BaERH—RETRER - £EEIKRE DMK
B REABRPELINORSEHE - B
FZRR - Teelm 2 8 5 e N E b R
REESZE P BRKRIEL BHER

BRIR=EA 2B ZRERKXTRESED
RAE - BR IF (8 Bl R (E < FE Wik 7K = 22 B by AR
FRAZEERNEBERCEFER -

RZE—F=ZA=+—H8  BZRKERERAE
53,092,000 7Tt (=& — & 4 : 38,239,000/%
TC) e BB EN ERE o WERIEF K EZE
EFEHRETZBURF - EREEREBUEL
B MEZNEETERERE BANEEE
ERBERNESNZFENR A Z2EWD -
WEE SRYBIRR IR DT ¢

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

1 to 90 days 1£290H 46,013 16,913
91 to 180 days 912 180H 2,987 8,373
181 to 360 days 1812360H 2,770 12,947
Over 360 days 360H A 1,322 6
53,092 38,239
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables stated above. The Group did not hold
any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group’s and the Company’s trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
the historical information about counterparty default rates.
The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults
in the past.

13 INVENTORIES - GROUP

12 BEZRWIRR AR BER
H At R R TR (47)

RBER  EERRZ&ZAER LRI
o me MEAMRUIRR 2 IREE - NEES
BERETMERER ZERM

REBEXPHEREUAKERARAESE
WIRR - e MEMBRIRK 2 EELREY
atlh - BRZBEPEBESBEANZHRCEE -

13 HFE-—-&X5£H

2011 2010

—B——F —T-FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHET

Raw materials JRAE 172,766 150,484
Work-in-progress BB 60,617 43,234
Finished goods R 84,323 75,918
317,706 269,636

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$2,099,645,000 (2010: HK$1,838,001,000).

During the year, the Group has provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories for an amount of approximately
HK$4,592,000 (2010: HK$3,667,000).

As at 31 March 2011, certain inventories were held under
trust receipts bank loan arrangement.

FEXABERAERLINABEEXNEAZ 2
B8 4 £2,099,645,0008 L (— & — & F:
1,838,001,000/ 7T ) °

AEBRAFERERBHETELEB 2 ELD
54,592,000 7L (Z & —ZF F : 3,667,000/
JT) °

R-ZE——F=ZA=+—H ' ETHEENUETE
WIRSRTTERLZHRFAE -

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH

173



174
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14 TIME DEPOSIT - GROUP

Time deposit represents a deposit with a bank in
Mainland China with initial term of maturity of one year.
The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31
March 2011 was 2.75% (2010: 2.25%). The balance is
denominated in Renminbi.

The conversion of this Renminbi denominated deposit
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China Government.

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

14 THER - X£H
FHEFERAREFRRPEKRE ZEIT W&
NP AE—F R-_BE——F=A=+—
BIEFHEBRRMERAE275% (T —F4F
2.25%) - BREIAARETE

R ANRBERRIINEEEE HFRINEETH
B K BE BT AR A 2 SN A 3R 1) SO AR

15 BERBTER

Group Company
rEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB-—F —E-TF —E——F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand $R{TTF R KRIRE 122,111 243,322 431 375
Short-term bank deposits 42 Bi$R1T1Z K 74,843 84,681 - -
196,954 328,003 431 375
Maximum exposure ZERE
to credit risk = A 195,505 326,363 431 375
Cash and bank balances were denominated in the R RBITEFATIEB REL -
following currencies:
Group Company
rEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF —E——F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET FET
HK dollar BT 24,972 25,966 431 375
US dollar e 158,796 149,533 - -
Renminbi AR 9,276 133,423 - -
Singapore dollar B s T 3,669 4,246 - -
Others HAith 241 14,835 = =
196,954 328,003 431 375
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits, HE_ZT——F=—A=+—HIEFER " 35

with maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months, was 0.19%
(2010: 0.18%) per annum during the year ended 31
March 2011. Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 B
2011 2010
S —F-TF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
BB B E HE i g E [EifI=)
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
i Fi# T T
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of TER e
HK$0.1 each E{E 1071 2,000,000 200,000 800,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BT
AR
Ordinary shares of BT
HK$0.1 each E B 107851
Beginning of the year == )| 577,098 57,710 577,098 57,710
Issue of shares R 1n 3517 291,000 29,100 - -
End of the year FIK 868,098 86,810 577,098 57,710
The Company increased the existing authorised capital by RAFIR -—_E—TF+—- ANBET KRS

the creation of additional 1,200,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each by passing an ordinary resolution by shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 6 December
2010. During the year, the Company allotted and issued
291,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1 each as consideration
for the acquisition of a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in
Mainland China (Note 31).

17 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme in May
2002 under which it may grant options to employees of
the Group (including executive directors of the Company)
and other third parties to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the
exercise of options. The exercise price will be determined
by the Company’s board of directors and shall at least be
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant of the options, (ii) an average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of
HK$0.1 each.

BIR g @B RZESR - 1% SM,200,000,000
BESE B MR o AN & AN 7]t U BE AP B oK B
IINEBE R UBR0NVETRERE KT
291,000,000 % (Ff15E31) ©

17 B

ARAR-_ZEZ_FHARA —BHBRET
2 ABREAAREZEE (BREARARZH
TER) RE=FRHUBEREAERBEAQF
ZB - ERZUARREREHETRAR
B (TERRTEREREMETZBN) 30%
BR - ZBRETEERBEARRIZESSE
BE - AR BBR O RBERERT B 2B
B (NERRTEREAMNLERISAARNAA]
Betn 2 FHWTE - RiDARRRG < EES
1078 - =FHARSE/LE -
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17 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

Details of movement of share options under the share

17 BRE &)
BREAECERERNSE T ——F=A=

option scheme during the year ended 31 March 2011 are T—BHILEFEAZEBFBROT
as follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
Exercise Beginning during during the during End of
Date of grant Exercise period Vesting period price of year  the year year  the year year
rEE XEE REEE
R A TR BTHR TREER £4 56 BT AREEUE FE
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
7 i i i i i
5 March 2010 1 December 2010 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-TF 4 March 2020 1 December 2010
=A%®RA —E-FE “E-FF
+ZR—BZE =“AnRz
—2-%F —T-%F
=AmA +=RA—-H 0.55 9,515 - - (303) 9,212
5 March 2010 1 July 2011 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-%F 4 March 2020 1July 2011
=AAA —T——F —T-TF
tA-RZ =AnRzE
2 —2——F
=AMA +A—H 0.55 8,865 = = (303) 8,562
5 March 2010 1 July 2012 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-TF 4 March 2020 1July 2012
=AEA —T--fF “T-TF
tA—-Bz =ARRZE
—2-%F —F——F
=AMA +HA—H 0.55 11,820 = = (404) 11,416
30,200 - - (1,010) 29,190
Note: B EE -

The vesting of the share options is subject to the performance of the

Group.

Karrie International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010/11
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17 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

The fair value of the share options granted was estimated
at the grant date by using the Hull White Trinomial
model, after taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The significant
assumptions and inputs used in the valuation model are as
follows:

Option value HK$0.223 to HK$0.244
Market price at the grant date HK$0.55
Exercisable price HK$0.55
Risk-free interest rate 2.68%
Expected volatility 50.73%
Expected dividend per share 2.78%

Hull White Trinomial model is subject to certain
fundamental limitations because of the subjective nature
of and uncertainty relating to the assumptions and inputs
to the model as well as certain inherent limitations of the
model itself. Any changes in the above assumptions or
inputs may materially affect the fair value estimation.

The fair value of the 30,200,000 share options granted on
5 March 2010 amounting to approximately HK$7,006,000
is to be recognised as employee benefit expense of the
Group according to the vesting conditions. An expense of
approximately HK$4,700,000 (2010: HK$419,000), partly
offset by the forfeiture of certain options during the year
amounting to approximately HK$1,063,000 (2010: Nil),
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 March 2011.

17 BRE &)

LAHull White Trinomial modelf&zt %% ¥ B
HryFARECERECATE  HEEIE
L B3R AR 2 IR IR R IR - 1
E?HEP“&&J\EFHZ1$@$ T

IREEE HK$0.223 to HK$0.244
RIREHZTSER HK$0.55
TEER HK$0.55
Y | pe 2.68%
TR IR 50.73%
TEEE RS 2.78%

Hull White Trinomial models % L ELAPR & -
EEXEEBzHEERTHEEEEEZRERBZAE
N UAR—EEEZEREAARGZRHREME - 10k
MR ABEMEEL - ATREE A EGET
BEATE-

R-ZE—FF=HFHHKEH30,200,0000% & i%
2 AFE - £54/57,006,000/8 7T 0 WEAR
BETHRGHERBEECEAEZL - REZE
—E——F=ZA=t+—BHIFEZHFAER i’«%
ERRAEBERZ£54%4,700,0008 T (==

T 1 419,000 L) © AR ’***H%Hxﬁéﬁﬁ%&

HEM S H 2 €54 51,063,0008 T (=F
TEFE ) o
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18 OTHER RESERVES 18 Hftf##
(@) Group (a) ZAE&£HE
Capital  Share-based
Share Capital  redemption compensation  Translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
EXRE  HRGXH
RiiaE ERfE #E  ZMERfk BERE CES

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAL TAL e TEL TAL TAL

Balance at 1 April 2009 ZETNENA-B KR 193,014 5,900 459 - 375 199,748
Employee share option scheme (BB B iE: 2
~ value of employee services - EERKZBE - - - 419 - 419
Currency translation differences  SME&HAEZE - - - - (355) (355)
Balance as at 31 March 2010 —F-Z4=f=1-H
ki3 193,014 5,900 459 419 20 199,812
Balance at 1 April 2010 “T-TENA-AER 193,014 5,900 459 419 20 199,812
Employee share option scheme B2 BRIE:E
- value of employee services - EERBZEE = = = 3,637 = 3,637
Currency translation differences  sME&#HREZE - - - - 2,083 2,083
Issuance of shares OE 145,500 - - - - 145,500
Balance as at 31 March 2011 “2——%=f=+-H
b 338,514 5,900 459 4,056 2,103 351,032
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18 OTHER RESERVES (Contd)
(b) Company

Share
premium

ka8
HK$'000

18 HibfHE (&)

(b) A2QF
Capital Share-based
redemption  Contributed compensation
reserve surplus reserve Total
UBRHX A
BXRERE BARR MERB &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL THET T THET FAT
Balance at 1 April 2009 “ETHEMA-H &R 193,014 459 193,185 - 386,658
Employee share option scheme  {E S BB A IET 2
- value of employee services - EERBEE - - - 419 419
Balance as at 31 March 2010 “E-ZF=A=1+—H
a3 193,014 459 193,185 419 387,077
Balance at 1 April 2010 “T-TEMA-BYER 193,014 459 193,185 419 387,077
Employee share option scheme  [& 8 B2
- value of employee services - EERBEEBE - - - 3,637 3,637
Issuance of shares IR 1T 145,500 = = = 145,500
Balance as at 31 March 2011 —T——#=f=1—H
R 338,514 459 193,185 4,056 536,214

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

REARE-NN\—FREDER (BE) - A
BHAHIIKRTRE  BEXNEREROAR
AITRE BB E  H(NVHEEZERE
BEfgRAmONEEERE D ETRANNA MK
B AT BARBETAIEM X
RE - HRHMABRBRIEL DK ©

EMNBERERERAR —8—8/— FH

179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19 EBEZRHEMEMRR

Group Company
REE RAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF —E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T FET T
(Restated)
(B=5)
Trade payables E S ERIRK
0 to 90 days 0%90H 281,854 371,913 - -
91 to 180 days 91%180H 2,352 26,523 - -
181 to 360 days 181£360H 4,806 2,213 - -
Over 360 days 3608 KA £ 5,983 4,494 = =
294,995 405,143 - -
Accrual for rental expenses 724 7 J81g 27,846 23,455 = =
Accrual for purchase of BERTEE
fixed assets ZTaiR 18,093 28,654 = =
Salaries and staff welfare  Eff#HE&RET
payable 2@ 45,728 40,669 - —
Others HAth 73,737 73,393 4,753 2,720
165,404 166,171 4,753 2,720
460,399 571,314 4,753 2,720

The fair values of the Group’s trade payables approximate AEBZEBSRENERR A FEEEREER
their carrying value. 4T o

AEEZEZFRMNERZRABEATIEES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies: B :
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
HK dollar BIT 76,897 86,570
US dollar ETT 178,005 273,829
Renminbi AR 35,689 40,267
Euro [Ex 78 1,573 1,220
Japanese Yen Hot 2,612 3,156
Others Hih 219 101
294,995 405,143
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd) 19 EBFZREMENIKRR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other REE 2 BB R K& E b FE IR 302 1R E E A
payables are denominated in the following currencies: THEMERBEN
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(Restated)
(BE3)
HK dollar BT 36,247 39,728
US dollar ETT 31,899 33,546
Renminbi AR 97,258 92,897
165,404 166,171
20 BORROWINGS - GROUP 20 fBE —AKKE
2011 2010
=F——F i
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(Restated)
(BE3)
Trust receipt loans BB ER 39,184 41,130
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —FARNEEZRITEE
within one year 2 E5 210,000 211,200
Portion of bank borrowings due for repayment & &R ESKEE G
after one year which contains a repayment 22— FREEZRITEE
on demand clause 2B 115,700 135,500
Total borrowings BEEE 364,884 387,830
(@)  All borrowings are with a contractual maturity of (@) FIBERERBREREERER  FIUAE

within one year as a result of the repayment on AEBHAR—FNA -
demand clauses.
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20 BORROWINGS - GROUP (Contd)

(b) The average effective interest rates of the Group’s

20 BE —X4X&£H ©)
by AEBRFEERZHRTEEEHERF

bank borrowings at the balance sheet date are as KR -
follows:
2011 2010
—F——F —Z-TF
Bank borrowings, at floating rate IRITIEE - FEX 1.50% 1.49%
Trust receipt loans EERIBEE R 2.07% 1.29%
(¢  The carrying amounts of the borrowings (00 BEZREDS\EEQFEMALRNAE
approximate their fair values and are denominated TLREEN ©

in HK dollar.

21 DEFERRED TAXATION - GROUP

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%).

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

21 EEBIE - AKE

EERERAABERERERREER X
16.5% (ZZ—ZFF : 16.5%) F28GTH -

EALAEEMNABEEVAEELRETER AR
RIS - MELERMEHIS RE—HHEHE - A
AR ER IR E EREEH AR BEE AR -
R ABERHER  TIeBERAEERE
KNG

2011 2010

—B——F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Deferred tax assets FEIEFRIEE = (941) (1,692)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIA B E 5,340 4,742
4,399 3,050

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$4,458,000 (2010:
HK$6,721,000) primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward indefinitely.
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21 DEFERRED TAXATION — GROUP (Contd)

The movement of the deferred tax assets and liabilities
prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction is as follows:

21 EERE - XEH (&)

Rl — & E 2 AR EREEA - EERIBE
ENBEIHEEHMT

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Accelerated
depreciation
ETE
HK$'000
FET
As at 31 March 2009 —EENF=H=+—H 7,518
Charged to consolidated income statement fEiraiEmR ik 679
As at 31 March 2010 —E-FFE=-H=+—H 8,197
Charged to consolidated income statement e e Ba Rk 34
As at 31 March 2011 —E——F=H=+—H 8,231
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEEE
Tax losses Others Total
BiIEEE Hit aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET

As at 31 March 2009 —EBEEAF=A=1+—H (638) (349) (987)
Credited to the consolidated EHaeBRRETA

income statement (4,066) (94) (4,160)
As at 31 March 2010 —E—ZEF=A=+—H (4,704) (443) (5,147)
Charged/(credited) to the e EERR (GEA)

consolidated income statement 1,376 61) 1,315
As at 31 March 2011 —E—F=A=+—H (3,328) (504) (3,832)

A summary of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction
is as follows:

—EHMER AR E AR ETERIA
(BE) REBEZHB2WT

2011 2010

=F——F —TTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FH&TT

Deferred tax assets BT IAE E (3,832) (5,147)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIA B & 8,231 8,197
4,399 3,050
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22 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
- GROUP

(@) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in Mainland China. The Group
contributes approximately 10% (2010: 10%) of the basic
salaries of its employees, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$5,200,000 (2010: HK$3,729,000).

(b) Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group’s
obligations for long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’'s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by
Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent
qualified actuary valuer.
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22 EAREFNEME - FKEHE

(a) HREMKEE

AEBELZHEERERELHBHMEREEE
([BEesTEl]) - BESTE BN TRENRET
2 HBUYURTAEIE - BRIEBESTE - K
SEREEESAVYREHERECAR (BE&
BoaslE RIBEEIAN) s% ezt EIEL K -

AEBEREBEZHAHRE 1,000 LA
R Hig o HRBIEEREEE -

REBHEAEZERRE  AEBARATEX
EREEMRE ZBERE RN EMEL MR -
AEEAREPBEREEARHFEMNI0% (ZF
—ZF 1 10%) FLEF - MBETAERER
R 32 SR IR AR A R B 7B 1F L (E AR E -
BREEZARKEXE —HHBEREZ
BRIRGTEIATE

RERARNEEF Lt RIRETEIER 2 =L
/45,200,000 70 (Z & —F 4 : 3,729,000/
JC) °

(b) REBRBEER

EHRBEEBRAKEREESE (BREIEM)D
EETHERTRILERES XN 2 RARSE
EFRTEZERE -

ZAETHERNBAEMEEAFE LS8
BEBRE LM AN EBERKFET $§E<l1 Nl
hZ Bt iEs - ZRPRBSEFHBILASE
RIFEREE AN ERERAERABMGE
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22 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 22 EBARBAEE - XEE (&)

— GROUP (cont'd)

(b)  Provision for long service payments (Cont'd) (b) REBRESEE (Z)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet EHRaEERBBERERZeBER NI ARE
are determined as follows: JE
2011 2010
—E——F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Present value of unfunded obligations and EGEEEABRAKREE
liability in the consolidated balance sheet EERAEZRE 9,520 8,264
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income EHREBRRERZEBOT
statement are as follows:
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Interest cost FBALA 443 664
Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised ERRBEER (W) 940 (5,329)
Total, included in employee benefit expenses &5 @ BIEHEREEBHNFHA
(Note 25) (Bf¥&E25) 1,383 (4,665)

The above charges/(credit) were included in general and

administrative expenses.

Movements of the provision for long service payments of

the Group are as follows:

AEEEBRBLEFRDNT

A /(GHA) BREE-—REITHRERA -

2011 2010

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Beginning of the year F1) 8,264 12,929
Provision/(reversal of provision) for REZHEME /(LEE 2 B

current year (Note 25) (FfF5E25) 1,383 (4,665)

Payments made during the year FREHER (127) -

End of the year FE 9,520 8,264
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22 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 22 EBARBAEE - XEE (&)

— GROUP (contd)

(b)  Provision for long service payments (Cont'd) (b) REBRESEE (Z)
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: KAZFTERERREOT :
2011 2010
—E-—fF —E-ZF
Per annum Per annum
8% BF
Discount rate ARIR & 2.90% 2.90%
Expected rate of future salary increases AR IRFH BN~ 78 HA1E R R 3.50% 3.00%
23 REVENUE 23 A
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Turnover S
Sales of merchandise from HE
— Metal and plastic business — A BRBERK 915,010 836,881
— Electronic manufacturing services business —BFEERITHEK 1,676,091 1,403,883
2,591,101 2,240,764
Other gains E ks
Rental income HaWA 4,322 3,220
Management fee income EEBWA 2,376 1,188
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate I EH A iR 2 Mz 7,600 -
14,298 4,408
Total revenue WA 2,605,399 2,245,172
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24 EXPENSES BY NATURE

24 BMHESECERN

2011 2010

—EB——F —ET-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

(Restated)

(BE5])

Raw materials and consumables used 22 R E B 1,959,585 1,724,786
Changes in inventories of finished goods and  ZUpk A R F KK B2 FEEE)

work in progress 140,060 113,215
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %2 - E kEEZITE

(Note 7) (Btx7) 49,355 47,047
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T AR 2 #EEE (FEE6) 1,129 1,221
Employee benefit expenses EERINFAX (BREEHS)

(including directors’ emoluments) (Ff3E25)

(Note 25) 324,169 252,276
Operating lease rental of premises WEZE&EHEHRS 13,624 13,082
Net exchange (gain)/loss N (W) EEFE (1,208) 877
Auditor's remuneration ZE RN & 1,838 1,580
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade % 5 & E {th FE Ut iR ZomiE

and other receivables (Note 12) Z B8 (fizE12) (4,466) -
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving PREE Ko M sl 17 B HEE

inventories (Note 13) (FF7E13) 4,592 3,667
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BMERREZ

plant and equipment Eia (as) F58 1,609 (658)
Gain on disposal of leasehold land and HETRE 1 40 K2+ s FRAE

land use rights pal & - (845)
Other expenses HAb Rz 83,398 81,040

2,573,685 2,237,288
Representing: K&
Cost of sales SHERAR 2,413,669 2,093,154
Distribution and selling expenses S NIHEER 32,883 27,276
General and administrative expenses —RRITEHRER 127,133 116,858
2,573,685 2,237,288
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 25 EERAXH -EBRESEME
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS
(@) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as (a) FREERMZIEMT :
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHAT
Wages and salaries FMERTE 313,949 252,793
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIREKA — REHKEE 5,200 3,729
Provision/(reversal of provision) for RERG ©EE(EHEZ
long service payments (Note 22) [O4) (FizE22) 1,383 (4,665)
Share option expenses for options granted to X FE %= NI SEAE
directors and employees ~ 3,637 419
324,169 252,276
(b)  Directors and senior management (b) ESBREHREEAER

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended BHE_T——F=-A="+t-HLFEREEZ

31 March 2011 is set out below: M5 R
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
BiERm EXRHRe
BEE2B e E 2L FHEIZHR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FET FET
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai BiSh: i - 4,436 370 12 4,818
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 2K ER A A - 1,400 76 12 1,488
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRIELE - 1,170 248 12 1,430
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia BRE 5k ME - 279 190 5 474
Non-executive director HHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fal AR A 277 243 = = 520
Independent non-executive director BV TTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BRERELAE 99 - = = 99
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond PREm R ot A 99 = = = 99
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing abii bt 59 - - - 59
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 25 EERAZE-BRFEESEHSE
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS' (4 )
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) Directors and senior management (Cont'd) (b) EEREREEBAE (&)
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended BHE_ZZTF=-A=T—"HIEFERESFZ
31 March 2010 is set out below: M5 RO
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
BiERm  EXEKS
£ we e ZIEAL  FEIZER aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FET FAT
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Blsh: b - 4,436 370 12 4,818
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 2K ER A A - 922 324 12 1,258
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRIELL - 841 208 12 1,061
Non-executive director HHTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming BELET S 266 22 - - 288

Independent non-executive director BB ITEE

Mr. So Wai Chun HEERLE 95 - - - 95
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond PRim R oA 95 = = = 95
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Vabiss i K idast 57 _ - _ 57
" Included fair value of share options charged to the consolidated ' BEFREFESBRRIIRZBEREATE -

income statement during the year.

No directors waived any emoluments during the year RENBESHENS (ZZ—FF: &) 71
(2010: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or BENHENFRIBLE TEMNESARSIHINE
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to any REESKREBUHE (ZE—FF:|) -
director during the year (2010: Nil).
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

()  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2010: three) Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2010: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

25 EERAZXH-BREEHE
(%)

() ITHEBSHFMAL

AEEREREESFMIALRE=R (=
T-TE:=2)EE AMSEERLXSH
i NEREBR—F (ZF—FF : —R) BE
FALZEAMEIT

2011 2010

—E——F —TEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&xT FHETT

Basic salaries and allowances' EHARFre KEah 1,748 1,731
Discretionary bonus BB 2 TEAL 230 117
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RKESKA — REHIKETE 24 24
2,002 1,872

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEHMEETIASHENR

Number of individuals

ALHE
2011 2010

—g——%  —F-FF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 =

L Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which
are determined based on the fair value of the share options
granted to the relevant employees at the date of grant and
recognised over the vesting period.

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2010: Nil).

26 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

! EEEAREXNZME  ZMEeRBERTHH
BREBRER A VEEERERBEHAAR -

REAREESFAL (BEREZRAMBE)
VEETMMESERREBRU2HE (ZF—
TEE) -

26 MBWARRA

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Finance costs BTSN
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —RAFREHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years IRTTEEMNEFAX 6,871 5,392
Finance income B A
— Interest income from bank deposits — SRITFIBUA (2,267) (3.312)
Net finance costs BTG R AN R 4,604 2,080
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27 INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda but
exempted from Bermuda taxation until 2016. Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year for
all group companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rate of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the group
operates.

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income statement represents:

27 FAEBXH (FHA)

N/NCIDEDAT=E S =35 AVAVA/NCIIRIY -+ 528 Eog=]
REFRBBE_ZT—XRF- - MERBEBXRILZ
AEERAIRIBEAE Z HETEREE M IZ
16.5% (ZZT—FF : 16.5%) 2 FHRFIRE B
ISR -

TSI ) 2 T K RNl R AN 4F 2 {7 T B AR A5 04 A
EARBERERBAEBRR ZRTHEFE -

ERABRRXE (GEA) 2BHEMAT

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
(restated)
(BEF])
Current taxation: RITHIA -
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEABNEH
— current year — REE 5,205 2,960
— under/(over)-provision in prior years —FEZTR S (BEE) &E 15,439 1,312)
— Overseas taxation — BINTIEEE
— current year — RNEF 1,568 1,568
— over-provision in prior years — EF 2 BRELER (18,824) (5,723)
Deferred taxation (Note 21) EERLIE (B3E21) 1,349 (3,481)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frig®ix (Gt A) 4,737 (5,988)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, certain subsidiaries
of the Group received from the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong additional assessments and/
or enquiries regarding their tax assessments for prior
years in respect of certain income, which the directors
have regarded as not subject to Hong Kong profits tax.
The directors are of the opinion that the Group should
have adequate reasons to defend against such additional
assessments. Nevertheless, given the uncertainty involved,
the directors decide to make a provision for such tax
exposure amounting to HK$16,175,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2011.

REBE2E-_T——F=A=+—HIFE  &T
SENBRARKEETEHRBE B 2B MR
/AR FEE TWETIH M &5
REZLENZETHNESNER -BEERA
AEBERRE 2 BEHZEBMTBRIEL IUE -
mwnfi AR GETHEEAERZ R ——
FZAZT—BULFE BEREHZLFIA
[EB2 fE 16,175,000/ T 2 4 ©
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27 INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)
(Cont’d)

In prior years, the Group had made provision for overseas
taxation based on the estimated taxable profits arising
from their respective operating countries outside Hong
Kong. The directors have undertaken a review of the
Group's overseas tax provision as at 31 March 2011
and have determined that a provision for overseas tax
of HK$18,824,000 would no longer be required and
should be derecognised. Consequently, the amount of
HK$18,824,000 was credited to the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 March 2011.

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits
tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country, as
follows:

27 FAEBIXH (RHA) (&)

RUARIEE » AEBEHERBRINCENE
2 HET IR FIEL EE c EFEHN =
T——F=Zf=+—HZ2AEEBINGIEERE
HITHRE - MBHET18,824,000/8 T 2 BN
BEBTIBEERETADE - At REZR
—E——F=A=+—HItFE#18,824,000
B2 BINRIBEBET ASREBEERT °

AEBARBRBRANEN 2 HRERERA %/a
ZREHER (REEAL ZER) MatE 28R
MEZEZRMT :

2011 2010
—EB——F —E—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
(restated)
(BE%))
Profit before taxation R B4 Bl A 27,070 3,122
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) (ZZ—ZF 1 165%) it &8 4,467 515
Effect of different taxation rate in EEMBERMEER 28
other countries 105 568
Income not subject to taxation RIERM WA (5.984) (9,598)
Expenses not deductible for ARHOIR 2 S
taxation purposes 3,703 7,709
Over-provision of overseas taxation FEFEZBINIIEZ
in prior years HREREE (18,824) (5,723)
Under/(over)-provision of Hong Kong FF2BHBREZTRE
taxation in prior years Kt (FBREAER) 15,439 (1,312)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FREFARERTEE R
tax losses (441) (2,717)
Tax losses for which no deferred RER BRI 2 BiIRE1E
income tax asset was recognised 6,272 4,570
Income tax expenses/(credit) Fs®isz i /(T A) 4,737 (5,988)
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28 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 28 ARuEZFEAERMGRT
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ARl E=EE ARG RF46,029,000% 7T

is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (ZZ2—Z 4% :7,025,00087T) - ERARAZ

to the extent of approximately HK$6,029,000 (2010: MEmERPRIE -

HK$7,025,000).

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE 29 SREF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the FIREREFNTIIRIBEARA AR EIEA AEL G

profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by FBEAERD BT L EmEINEFIGEETE o
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRAFIERRE ARG R
the Company (in HK$'000) (F&xsh) 21,223 12,497
Weighted average number of BEITTRAR I8
ordinary shares in issue (FR&ET)
(in thousand shares) 628,122 577,098
Basic earnings per share BRERRF
(HK cents per share) (ERABIIED) 34 2.2

There was no dilutive effect on earnings per share for BRFTAEARTTE ZBERES S REEE - dE

both years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011 since all BE_Z—ZSFAR-_FT—F=ZA=+—HIt
outstanding share options were anti-dilutive. MEFE 2SR ENSE#EZE -
30 DIVIDENDS 30 RE
2011 2010
—B——F —TEF
HK$"000 HK$000
FTExT FHET
Interim dividend, declared, of Nil ENHHRE — SEBRE
(2010: Nily per ordinary share (ZZ—TF : &) = -
Final dividend, proposed, of HK1.1 cents  #ERAHIILE — FEBAX1. 17810
(2010: HK1 cent) per ordinary share (ZZ—ZF : 178l) 9,549 5,771
9,549 5,771
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31 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 22 October 2010, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Castfast Properties Development
Co., Limited, a connected party of the Company, to acquire
100% equity interest in HEZFEHBAEREERA
Al at a consideration of approximately RMB105,120,000
(equivalent to HK$123,680,000); which was satisfied by
the issue of 291,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 of
each of the Company. The acquisition was completed
on 27 January 2011. EEENEBEAEREERAR is
engaged in the development of commercial properties in
Yixing, Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as of the
completion date are as follows:

31 WHEKEB QT

R-ZZE—ZFTF+A-_+-H AEEEHBEEBEQ
AEEEWERREBERARZEE M -
LA#) A R 105,120,000 2 KRB (BBER A
123,680,000/ 7u) W B B HH 5= 7 75 75 KN 2 7
BEERRAIEHIEEELR  UEROIBITET
291,000,000 E @R ARE - BEEZMEE A
ERZEERARETENTRTENEERERGE
EF o

RERBBREERBBEZIREENT
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2011
—E——F
HK$’000
FERT
Net assets acquired Wi BEFE
Land use right b {sE A 75,659
Property, plant and equipment I =N 32,696
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEf 3K - 124 K& H b FEULIR 7% 28,497
Cash and bank balances RS NMIRTHETF 115
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H A ERTIRER (75)
136,892
Excess of the cost of acquisition over WiEEBAFEEL A TE
the fair value of net assets 37,708
Total consideration satisfied by issue of shares  LARRY(B 2 42U BE B 174,600
Cash inflow in respect of the acquisition WEEMTB ARIEAZIRERA
of a subsidiary 115

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
net assets represents the difference between the fair value
of the shares issued in connection with the acquisition of
BEZFAEEAEMEERAR calculated based on the
share price of the Company of HK$0.60 at the completion
date of the transaction and 291,000,000 shares issued,
and the fair value of the net assets of B #5 | 5AE
FE AR A A] at the completion date of the transaction.
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32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group and the Company had the following significant
commitments and contingent liabilities which were not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements:

(@) Capital commitments

The Group had the following authorised and contracted
capital commitments as at 31 March 2011:

32 AERDIIAEE

REBEARNRNBEATRBERNGE P BRE
FEHREB T EEAERKABE
(a) EXEE

RZEBE——F=A=+—H' ' AEBEBUTD
BRERZH) 2 EARALE

Group Company
AEE RANFE]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF —E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET FET FA&T
Construction of investment  FAAR B7 A [ B
properties in REMZHE
Mainland China 71,850 - - -
Purchase of property, BEWE
plant and equipment NG 2,141 6,815 - -
73,991 6,815 - -

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land
and buildings under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to October 2055. The total
commitments payable are analysed as follows:

(b) RERERRE

AEBEZEBRE-_SRAF+ATAURHEH
LEHELEHERZ RENEES TN
T

Group Company
AEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——F —ZT-TF —E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FAT
Amounts payable BN &5
Not later than one year TBE—F 6,920 9,147 - -
Later than one year and BB —F &
not later than five years TBB A 26,625 26,335 = =
More than five years BilAF 254,217 256,749 = =
287,762 292,231 - -

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH



196

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Cont’d)

The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

32 FAERIIAREE (&)

(b) REHRERE (&)

AEEBU TN TAIBEEEHE 2 AR KIEE
WHE :

2011 2010

—B——F —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Not later than one year TEBiE—F 846 783
Later than one year but not BB FETBARF

later than five years 1,031 1,595

1,877 2,378

(d) Guarantees

As at 31 March 2011, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately HK$1,167,038,000 (2010:
HK$1,229,790,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
Such banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2011
amounted to approximately HK$364,884,000 (2010:
HK$387,830,000).

33 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries.
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(0 #BR

RZE——F=ZA=+—8 ARQAHKTIHH
BEABERERTRE THMONB AR 2 R1E
REE4/51,167,038,0008 T (ZE—TF :
1,229,790,0007L) e R=—E——F=ZHA =+
—B ' BEAZIEITRIE 4 /5364,884,0007 7T
(ZZ—Z% : 387,830,000/ 7T) °
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party is a party that is related to the Group if
directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group (including the Company or its
wholly or non-wholly owned subsidiaries); or the party has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence
over the Group; or the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly
or indirectly, any individual who is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group.

(@) Transactions with related parties

3 BEALIRS

BiEBEBALTA— ATEESBEEBRE— (A% @
FRAAL BEFAEE HAEE (BFEAA
AINEZ2ENFEE B AR K| kAR
SESHERZEHZAL ZABREAEEZ
I MZERA THEAEETREAFE
N HBZATE—HERAEBETHREAR
EREZETEEBEASERAEEZEN - EREEZE
SIS ITRERTE ) 2 [EE -

(a) HBREALTZXRS

2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET
Sales of goods and services: HEEYM R R
Sales of finished goods to SHE THEE N A2 G
an associated company 23,878 798
Purchase of goods and services: BESYKRE :
Purchase of raw materials from BN 3=t
an associated company 1,612 1,287
Others: Hith :
Rental income from an (B & A B EAR 2 WA
associated company 2,504 1,188
Management service fee income B A% A T U ER
from an associated company ERBWA 2,376 1,188
Rental charged by a related company {47 % FRAE QA 1,594 1,594
Consultancy service fee charged by X EEFIERT
an associated company YN 120 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary from M &N R R
a related company B AR 174,600 =

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group and on terms as agreed with the
related companies.

REEFZER J//(JZE‘%LX%ZEBZEQ\ZK%
B % 2 555 N B B R R E o ARR AT T
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 BEALIRS (&)
(Cont’d)
(b) Balance with related parties (b) EEREATZEER
2011 2010
—e——5 —z-=ZH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Amount due to an associated company FEEE A RIR R 357 305
Amount due from an associated company  JE U Esh 44 A S0 3K 3,779 10,226
(c) Key management compensation (0 ZEEEEMS
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses %l + T& - 285 MIEAT 17,281 14,984
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  RRE A — SE S ZGETE 168 165
17,449 15,149
(d)  Ultimate controlling party (d) ‘JRAEHAL
The directors regard Equity Trust (B.V.l.) Limited, which EERAEquity Trust (B.V.L) Limited » #FA X
beneficially owns 47.09% in the Company’s shares, to NAE47.09% D F - WHEER QA 2 &EE
be the ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho BIAE o @B e A - MBIR ML - M185%
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, their children under 18 and Mr. AR 2 F 2 KAl 2 B %t A& ABEquity Trust (B.V.I.)
Ho Cheuk Ming are the beneficial owners of the Equity LimitedZ & A ©

Trust (B.V.1.) Limited.

35 NON-CASH TRANSACTION 35 FMEXRH
The principal non-cash transaction is the issue of shares WMMFESTAEEE - FE 2R SR ZBURK
as consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary as BEITROKENRBAR -

disclosed in note 31.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBGHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEE

The results of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 March 2011 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011
are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AEEHZE _T——F=A=1+—HItRA@EH
BEBZEE —TEZ+F  —_TFNF =
TZENFE ZE-ZTFRF——F=H=++
—RBZEBEERBENT :

E 3

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1-HILEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—E——f% CZT-TF CZTTNF ZTIT\F CZTTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr FTET TET TET FET

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

(BE&E51) (B&E51) (EE51) E)

Revenue A 2,605,399 2,245,172 2,463,926 2,802,974 3,328,097

Operating profit R 31,714 7,884 24,834 29,420 154,062

Finance income WA 2,267 3312 10,071 14,853 11,104

Finance costs BIRAR (6,871) (5,392) (12,888) (20,071) (23,764)

Share of (loss)/profit of FE(hEE &R

associated companies w Al (E18) (40) (2,682) 201 - -

Profit before taxation B A E A 27,070 3,122 22,218 24,202 141,402

Taxation HE (4,737) 5,988 (1,785) (11,054) (16,474)

Profit for the year REFHER 22,333 9,110 20,433 13,148 124,928
Profit/(loss) attributable to RARERFAA

Equity holders of the company FE(E R A 21,223 12,497 22,081 13,148 124,928

Non-controlling interests FEE R R 1,110 (3,387) (1,648) - -

22,333 9,110 20,433 13,148 124,928

The Group adopts the relevant new/revised standards
and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards as described in Note 2.1(a) and revises
classification of certain financial statement items in the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
balance sheet as described in Note 2.24. Figures for the
prior years have been reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation.

P EE2 (@) R E  AEB RN EBEBY
BmEER 28 BRI R R 2R km
fiaE2.24Fr 8 A RBREKGEAEERE
RABDMBHRRBBEFNE - TFZ2HF
ERAFEZIBEREHIE -

EMNBERERERAR —E—8/— FH
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AFEMBGHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LhEEESE
As at 31 March
R=A=t+-H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E—-—-& —T-TF “TTHAF “—TTN\F "—TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FATL FET FET FAT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BEF) (BEF) (BEF) (BEF)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 688,084 579,007 508,778 452,388 318,119
Current assets mEBEE 1,076,260 1,158,446 1,357,052 1,199,646 1,303,248
Total assets BESE 1,764,344 1,737,453 1,865,830 1,652,034 1,621,367
EQUITY i
Share capital PR 86,810 57,710 57,710 57,720 41,228
Reserves B 773,327 644,363 640,459 617,697 514,970
860,137 702,073 698,169 675,417 556,198
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE 40,513 39,403 43,026 424 424
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 900650 /41476 741195 675841 556,622
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 14,860 13,006 19,809 18,546 13,589
Current liabilities MEAE 848,834 982,971 1,104,826 957,647 1,051,156
Total liabilities BEEE 863,694 995,977 1,124,635 976,193 1,064,745
Total equity and liabilities BakaEeE 1,764,344 1,737,453 1,865,830 1,652,034 1,621,367

The Group adopts the relevant new/revised standards
and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards as described in Note 2.1(a) and revises
classification of certain financial statement items in the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
balance sheet as described in Note 2.24. Figures for the
prior years have been reclassified to conform with the

current year's presentation.
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W EE2. 1(a)FTEE S ZKE@E%’ mAE BB S
BRMEER ZHIE ESETERI R 2E - kA
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